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Set out below is the financial summary for the year ended 3| December 2017 (“the year" or “the

reporting period”):

Revenue of the Group in 2017 increased by 70.1 1% to RMBI,601.57 million as compared with
2016.

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company in
2017 increased by 70.02% to RMB647.10 million as compared with 2016.

Basic/diluted eamings per share in 2017 increased by 70.24% to RMB1.43 as compared with 2016.

The Board of Directors proposed to pay a final cash dividend of RMBO.3 per share, subject to the
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approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held by the Company.

RIRNAR AR BITORRBEAE LI -

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBFT ARETT ARETT | ARETR
Operating result RS
Revenue F 3 316,429 440904 692,910 941,504 1,601,567
Gross profit EF 200,46 321,075 514,576 727,270 1,321,151
Profit from operation SRS 119,124 205,445 339,605 460,299 752,484
Profit before taxation R AT S5 70,180 163,115 314,706 453,066 748,195
Profit and total comprehensive KRR AR
income attributable to equity FEMR BT K
shareholders of the Company EEW B 57,800 135,343 265,750 380,597 647,101
Profit margin FE=
Gross profit margin EFI= 6335% 72.82% 74.26% 77.25% 82.49%
Net profit margin LA = 18.27% 30.70% 38.35% 40.42% 39.11%
Earnings per share BREF
Basic & Diluted (RMB) W B A RS (AR¥ - T) N/A 045 0.79 0.84 1.43
Assets condition BEMRR i
Total assets BEE 1658116 949,53 2,577,415 2,831,109 3,775,975
Total equity attributable to equity NN
shareholders of the Company TE(G Atz 478921 2774955 2,142,849 2,457,807 2,807,836
Non-controlling interests SEIERR I N/A N/A N/A N/A 252,750
Total liabilities BmaE 1,179,195 672,276 434,566 373,302 715,389
Net cash generated from KETEBATS
operating activities REFR 51,546 129,878 287,394 397,206 670,751
Quick ratio BB L 0.8 0.6 6.1 63 3.1




CORPORATE PROFILE
DA

The Company (also referred to as "HEC Pharm” in the Annual Report) is a pharmaceutical
manufacturing company that focuses on the development, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products in the therapeutic areas of anti-virus, endocrine diseases, cardiovascular and antineoplastic

diseases. It's the domestic pharmaceutical manufacturing platform of the HEC Group.

The Company entered into China’s pharmaceutical industry through the establishment of its
predecessor, Yichang Changjiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd,, in 2001. Up to now, we have been
operating for more than |7 years, and are becoming one of the top players in the domestic

pharmaceutical industry in terms of pharmaceutical sales performance and R&D capability.

The Company was converted into a joint stock limited company on || May 2015, and was listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 29 December 2015, with the stock code
01558.HK.

Since its establishment, the Company has always followed the motto of “serving the Chinese with
higher standards”. Meanwhile, we have a strong industrial foundation and leading competitive edges
in the manufacturing, marketing and sales of pharmaceutical products. As of 31 December 2017,
the Company has manufactured, promoted and sold a total of 33 pharmaceutical products in China,
including our core product, Kewei. The Company is currently the only manufacturer of oseltamivir
phosphate granules in the Chinese market. According to the data from IMS, during the years from
2013 to 2017, the Company's oseltamivir phosphate product ranked first in China in terms of sales
volume. In terms of sales arrangement, the product distribution network of the Company has a
nationwide coverage. The Company established professional teams to conduct differentiated sales

lines management for its core products, namely Kewei granules, Kewei capsules and Ertongshu

departments in 2017. As at 3|1 December 2017, the Group
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In the future, the Company will remain committed to the implementation of professionalism,
branding and differentiated development strategy. The Company is committed to the establishment
of a professional marketing team, a steady and innovative operation and a strategic integration
of resources, in order to create brand characteristics and core competitiveness unique to

"Pharm HEC" in the industry and create the greatest value for consumers and our partners.

In the future, the Company will further develop and expand its product lines and markets, enhance
the international production standards and quality of the products and continue to expand the
coverage of marketing and sales to facilitate the further growth of our business and profitability, and

strive for more economic benefits and cost-effectiveness for our investors.
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HISTORY OF DEVELOPMENT
RRER

® Results of the Company sustained a
significant increase as compared to that of 2016

® Oseltamivir phosphate was listed as
a drug recommended for treatment for
influenza by the Influenza Treatment Guidelines
(2018 Edition)
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® Started the cooperation with TaiGen

Kewei product dominated Biopharmaceuticals on Hepatitis C.

the largest market share of combination therapy
20 1 3 ;::I:lajrcr:: rél:\;:‘;;hate ® obtained three approvals for the
| 5 clinical trials for insulin product
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L RAMEERTERADE the “Listed Enterprises of the Year 2016”
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ABBRAERNER ® Successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on % December 2015
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am hereby pleased to present the annual results of the

Group for the year ended 3| December 2017 and the future outlook of 2018.

REVIEW OF 2017

2017 was a year of rapid growth with a promising development trend in China’s pharmaceutical
industry and was also a year of fruitful development in the overall performance of HEC Pharm. With
the successive promulgation and further implementation of favorable medical reform measures, the

pharmaceutical industry will enjoy limitless development potential in the future.

The Board of Directors plays a key role in connecting the shareholders with the management of the
Company, and is a major component of the Company's governance structure. Since our listing, the
Board of Directors has been upholding the governance principle of “standardization, independence,
rational structure and high efficiency”. The management of the Company constantly enhances and
improves its governance level and spares no effort in establishing well-regulated systems, uplifting
governance levels and improving the internal control system, striving to become a highly competitive

listed company in the domestic and even the intemational market..

In 2017, the Company's operating efficiency was substantially increased and the overall performance
recorded a leap-forward growth following a sequence of highly efficient operations by the
management. As at the end of 2017, the Company recorded a revenue of RMB1,601.57 million,
representing an increase of 70.1 19 as compared to last year, and a net profit of RMB626.36 million,
representing an increase of 64.57% as compared to last year, realizing a significant increase in the

overall performance.

In.2017, the Board of Directors strictly complied with all laws and regulations such as the Company

T

Law of the PRC and the Listiﬁg h;l;?;ﬁ'd'fUHy performedritssresponsibilities under the Articles of
Association. The Board of Directors strictly implemented all resolutions approved at the general
meetings, operated in compliance with laws and regulations, made reasoniable d]_cisions,'diligently

performed its duties, worked efficiently and fully performed all tasks and missions.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREEE

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, with the continuously deepening implementation of the priority evaluation system,
a number of the Group's competitive medical projects in areas including the anti-virus therapeutic,
endocrine, metabolic, and medical-related intelligent property, will be further approved. To achieve
these goals, we always strive to maintain a high standard of management and operations. The

products manufactured by us are in full compliance with the national and international standards.

At the same time, we will keep pace with the trend and strengthen our sales network, while firmly
grasping the two development directions of “expansion and optimisation of sales network” and
“shifting the distribution channel towards downstream”. By way of academic promotion, we will
establish extensive business partnerships with numerous distributors across China, and maintain a

highly recognized business image and well-respected reputation in the domestic market.

Under the leadership of the Board of Directors and with the efforts of all employees as well as
the active participation and supervision of all shareholders, we are able to sustain a promising
development trend and to achieve performance targets. We firmly believe that with a high level of
strategic leadership, high standard of management and operations, high-dimensional innovation and
highly efficient development, HEC Pharm will certainly maintain a rapid and positive development
momentum and truly become a benchmark pharmaceutical enterprise in China as well as a major

and influential brand in China’s pharmaceutical industry.
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YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was recognized as “Anti-Infectives
Engineering Technology Research Center in Hubei Province” by Hubei Provincial Science

and Technology Department.

From 23 October 2017 to 25 October 2017, Mr. Guillaume JEAN (chief inspector) and
Dr. Thomas HECKER (EDQM), being the designated officers of the European Union,
conducted a strict inspection on the factories of active pharmaceutical ingredients and quality
management system of YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and unanimously
agreed that No. 2 production base of YiChang HEC has been complied with the current

drugs manufacturing practice in Europe.

The Research and Application of the Upstream Process of Insulin Glargine was granted first

prize of Yidu Science and Technology Progress Award.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
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10 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. B &

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEBNWE D

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Looking back on 2017, the overall economic condition of China showed a trend of stable
growth. As a national emerging industry of strategic importance, the pharmaceutical industry
has become an important driver to China’s economic growth. In the future, the existence
of both opportunities and challenges in China’s pharmaceutical industry would remain
unchanged. The |3th Five-year Plan for the pharmaceutical industry has set a high standard
for the future development of China’s pharmaceutical industry. Hence, leading enterprises
with strong research and development (R&D) capability, high standard production system,
strong brand advantages and excellent marketing team will win the unprecedented

development opportunities in the further competition within the industry.

The directions of the Chinese government's policies on quality of pharmaceutical products,
high standard production system and regulated operation of pharmaceutical enterprises will
further enhance industry concentration. The implementation of policies such as “‘consistency
evaluation” and “two-invoice system” may bring challenges to some pharmaceutical
enterprises in the short term, but it would bring the “good money drives out bad” effect
for the industry in the long term. The pharmaceutical enterprises which are able to pass
the consistency evaluation will stand out from competitors in the future, leveraging on their
advantages in terms of medical insurance and tendering. Meanwhile, innovation capability has
always been the basis of future development of pharmaceutical enterprises. The promotion
and implementation of policies such as “Priority Evaluation System” and “System of the
Holders of Drug Marketing Licenses” have also laid the foundation for the future innovative

development of the industry.

In 2017, a series of policies in respect of encouraging innovations and improving industrial
standard were also promulgated. “Opinion on Deepening the Reform of Examination and
Approval System for Drugs and Encouraging Innovation of Drugs and Medical Instruments”
KRR BB ERESFEREFESZMAIFTAE L)) has provided the
overall guidance in respect of the reform of management of clinical trials, accelerating the
evaluation and approval of launching pharmaceutical products, facilitating the innovation
of pharmaceutical products and development of generic products as well as enhancement
in the whole life-cycle management of pharmaceutical products and medical instruments.
Meanwhile, in June 2017, China Food and Drug Administration (CFDA) joined the
International Conference on Harmonisation of Technical Requirements for Registration
of Pharmaceuticals for Human Use (ICH), indicating that China’s pharmaceutical industry
has met the international standard in terms of R&D and regulation, and also implying that
innovation and high standard would be the core competitiveness of the pharmaceutical

enterprises in the future competition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Looking ahead into the future, the continuous optimization of the industrial structure and

continuous and stable growth at the demand-side brought by income and population would

provide outstanding pharmaceutical enterprises with abundant room for development. The

Group will also seize the opportunities and strive to becoming a leading pharmaceutical

enterprise in the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Summary of Overall Results

In 2017, the Group recorded a revenue of RMBI,601.57 million, representing an
increase of 70.11% as compared to the previous year and maintaining a relatively
high growth. Profit and total comprehensive income attributed to equity shareholders
of the Company reached RMB647.10 million, representing an increase of 70.02%
as compared to the previous year. Revenue from Kewei, Ertongshu, Oumeining,
Xinhaining and Xining accounted for 87.49%, 2.48%, 3.14%, 1.97% and 2.71% of the
total revenue, respectively. There was no change in the structure of core products of

the Group.

Products and R&D
The Group made relevant progress in the R&D of the therapeutic areas of anti-virus
as well as endocrine and metabolic diseases during 2017. The latest update on the

progress of pipeline products are as follows:

I. Anti-virus therapeutic area
The Phase Il clinical trials for the combination therapy of the Group's NS5A
inhibitor Yimitasvir Phosphate, a National Class |.| innovative drug, with
Sofosbuvir, was launched in June 2017. There has been data showing that
the virus response rate could reach 100%. The Phase Il clinical trials for the
combination therapy of Sofosbuvir and Yimitasvir Phosphate is scheduled to

be conducted in the first quarter of 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEBNWE D

In addition, to meet the domestic demand for combination therapy of
Yimitasvir Phosphate, the Phase | clinical trial of the NS3/4A protease inhibitor
Furaprevir jointly developed with TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd.
(the “TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals”) was launched in August 2017 and the DDI
research for combination therapy of Yimitasvir Phosphate and the NS3/4A
protease inhibitor Furaprevir was launched in November 2017 in the PRC,

respectively.

Endocrine and metabolic diseases area

The Group has formulated a comprehensive plan on the development of
insulin product line, which covers both the second and the third generation
of insulin. Once all insulin products are successfully developed, the Group will
own a complete portfolio of pharmaceutical products for the treatment of
diabetes and will become one of the most advanced insulin manufacturers in

the PRC.

The latest progress of the insulin products during the Reporting Period is as
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The key endocrine and metabolic types Current stage Planned launch time
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production the beginning of 2019
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Isophane Protamine Recombinant Phase lll clinical trial By the end of 2020
Human Insulin Injection (Pre-mixed 30R)
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Insulin Glargine Injection Phase Il clinical trial By the end of 2020
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Insulin Aspart Injection Phase | clinical trial By the end of 2020
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Insulin Aspart 30 Injection Phase Il clinical trial By the end of 2020
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Adhering to the latest R&D guidelines on biosimilar drugs adopted in Europe
and United States, the Group’s has adopted a development strategy of making
strict comparison with the biologics in manufacturing insulin products. All
insulin products of the Group are highly similar to the biologics in terms of

quality, purity and stability.

Sales Performance Review
For the year ended 3| December 2017, revenue of the Group achieved RMBI,601.57

million, representing an increase of 70.1 1% as compared to the previous year.

From the aspect of sales structure of the Group’s products, the rapid growth in
revenue of Kewei was the major contributor to the growth of the results for the
year 2017. During the Reporting Period, the revenue of Kewei granules and Kewei
capsules amounted to RMB961.68 million and RMB439.55 million, respectively,
accounting for 87.49% of the total revenue in aggregate. During the Reporting
Period, to further increase the revenue of the core product Kewei, the Group has
established a professional team to conduct differentiated sales lines management for
Kewei granules and Kewei capsules targeting at different clinical departments. As at
31 December 2017, the Group has a total of 856 staff in its sales team. In order to
further expand the coverage of the Group’s core products in hospitals in the future
so as to increase the revenue of its core products, Kewei, and lay down a foundation
for marketing of the Group's pipeline products after being launched, the Group,

one of the future development strategies, will further expand its
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEBNWE D

The Group always adheres to the concept of self-operation and has gained extensive
experience after years of operation. In 2017, the Group officially began to set up an
Endocrine and Metabolic products team, which is responsible for the professional

academic promotion of benzbromarone and follow-on insulin products.

Manufacturing Review

The Group strived to improve its innovation capability and made unrelenting efforts
to pursue high standard quality. Through continuous integration of the existing
resources and reinforcement of the internal management, the Group continued to
benefit from its remarkable achievements and is determined to create a renowned

pharmaceutical brand that gives confidence to both the community and investors.

In the meantime, the Group scrupulously abides by the principles of equal importance
in resources development and ecosystem conservation, as well as developing in
a green and low-carbon way. The Group is committed to realising the ideas of
“scientific planning, rational layout, clean production, energy saving, environmental
friendly, strengthening awareness, compliance of laws and sustainable development”
in its business operations through environmental management. Meanwhile, the
Group has also formulated the “SR0O[-02 Environmental Management System’" as its
environmental protection guidelines for the daily management of production activities

of the Group.
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Ill.  OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS 1.
I. Revenue
For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group recorded a revenue of
RMB,601.57 million, representing an increase of 70.1 1% as compared with
RMB941.50 million for the year ended 3| December 2016, which was primarily

attributable to the increase in the sales volume of the core product Kewei.

The table below sets forth the revenue of the Group by therapeutic areas as a

percentage of total revenue.

REEBER AN

E 2

HE017F12A31BLLEE @ A%H
BREEEBARKIOISTEET &
HE2016F12A3IBILEEHARE
941.50E BITHEANT0.1 1%  ZIGIMEE
TR O Em A BRI E 2K -

IR ARG B %R BRI M A 3
BRAGRERBNBDLLER -

Year ended 3| December Growth as
BZ1A3IALEE Compared with

2017 2016 Last Year

20174 20165 RIELE &
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) % (%)
(AE¥F ) % (AR®EFT) % %)

Anti-viral drugs MASEY) 739,824 78.58% 90%
- Including core product Kewei —Eh - ROER AR (B

(oseltamivir phosphate) BEwE) 736273 7820% 90%

— Kewei granules —Heh: RER 544324 57.81% 7%

~ Kewei capsules —Ei: AIEBE 191949 2039% 129%

Cardiovascular drugs DIIEEEY) 89,182 947% 8%

Endocrine and Metabolic drugs Y GEEY] 46739 497% -12%

65,759 698% —15%

Others Hfty
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales consists of (i) cost of raw materials, primarily including cost
of active pharmaceutical ingredient (API), ancillary materials and packaging materials, (ii)
labour cost, primarily including salaries and benefits of our staff directly involved in the
manufacture of our products, (iii) manufacturing cost, primarily including depreciation
charge of machinery, equipment and plant and cost of labour protection materials,
fuel, machine oil and maintenance, and (iv) royalty fee paid to third parties in relation

to various patents and licences.

The Group's cost of sales increased by RMB66.18 million to RMB280.42 million for
the year ended 3| December 2017 from RMB214.23 million for the year ended 3|

December 2016, which was mainly due to the increase in sales volume.

The table below sets forth the cost of sales of the Group by therapeutic areas and as

a percentage of total cost of sales.

SHE LA

B AP B 8 B AR AN BT () R REB AR -
FERFME - SR RBEMERK
Ao (VALIRKA  TEREELHEE
WMAEEMNBIZTEREF -« (i)
B FZOERMRERENTE
5 - LE)REM BB - PR
R RV BEEA S
EAXAMERNE -

HE017F12A31BILLFE @ A58
HEHEKR AR R ARKE2B80NEBETT
BEZE0I6F12A3IALFEFENAR
B4 A B TEMARKCISES
T FERFHESHEAME o

TR AR B SR R E m A
ERARGEEERTNBDLAER -

Year ended 31 December Growth as

BZNA3ALEE Compared with

2017 2016 Last Year

20174 2016%F FLLIE &

(RMB’000) % (RMB"000) % (%)

(AE¥T ) % (ARBFI) % (%)

Anti-viral drugs RS 246,761 88.00% 169,782 79.25% 45%
~ Including core product Kewei —Hih ROERAIR

(oseltamivir phosphate) (BBRAMNE) 244,846 87.32% l68811 78.80% 45%

— Kewei granules —Eh : AR 152,433 54.36% 112,535 5253% 35%

— Kewei capsules —Hi : AEBE 92,413 32.96% 56,276 2627% 64%

Cardiovascular drugs LIEZEY 12,636 451% 14925 697% -15%

Endocrine and Metabolic drugs A0 o R (X st 2y 5,802 2.07% 6591 3.08% -12%

Others Hith 15,217 5.43% 22936 10.70% -34%

Total A5t 280,416 100.00% 214234 100.00% 31%
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3. Gross Profit 3.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s gross profit increased to
RMB1,321.15 million, representing an increase of 81.66% as compared with

RMB727.27 million for the year ended 31 December 201 6.

The table below sets forth the gross profit of the Group by therapeutic areas.

E5

HE017F12A31BILEE - A%H
MEFEMEARE1321I5BET
BEHZE0I6F12A3IALFENAR
¥&727 27 BB TTIE N8 1.66% °

TEREFIAKBE R ABEREE D OE
Al o

Year ended 31 December Growth as
BZ12A3IALEE Compared with

2017 2016 Last Year

20175 2016%F Rt &
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) % (%)
(AR¥T ) % (AR¥Fr) % (%)

Anti-viral drugs NREEY 570,042 7838% 104%
~ Including core product Kewei —HA: OEmAIR
(oseltamivir phosphate) (BRERAME) 567,460 7803% 104%
~ Kewei granules —Ei AN 431,788 5937% 87%
— Kewei capsules —Hi A HBE 135,672 18.65% 156%
Cardiovascular drugs DIEEY) 74,257 10.21% 13%
Endocrine and Metabolic drugs WD R EY) 40,149 552% -11%
Others Hif 42822 5.8%% -5%

727270 100.00% 82%
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Other Revenue

The Group’s other revenue mainly includes (i) government subsidies, including
amortization of subsidies for the construction of the production line of Kewei
by instalment in accordance with accounting standards, and other research and
development subsidies and awards granted by local government, and (i) interest

income and miscellaneous income.

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group's other revenue was RMB21.82
million, representing an increase of RMB5.83 million as compared with RMB16.00
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, which was due to the increase in

interest income, offset by the decrease in government subsidies.

Other Net (Loss)/Income

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group's other net loss was RMB25.42
million, while the Group's other net income for the year ended 3| December 2016
was RMB30.63 million, which was due to the fluctuation of exchange rate between

HKD and RMB.
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Expense Analysis 6. EBRESW
For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group's total expense amounted to BHZEWI7FNA3IBIEFE - X%
RMB569.36 million, representing an increase of 77.47% as compared with RMB320.83 ERHEFARKBSOEBET @ &
million for the year of 2016. The main components of the Group’s expenses are as 2016F M A R#32083 B & TR L3
follows: R7747% - REBEREEE BEKN
e
Year ended 31 December Growth as
BZ12A3I1BLFE Compared with
2017 2016 Last Year
20175 20165 RILLE &
(RMB’000) (RMB’ 000) %)
(AR¥T ) (ARETT) (%)
Distribution costs PaK | 372,090 180,887 105.70%
Administrative expenses 1TERERH Y 192,985 132,711 45.42%
Finance costs BRE R 4,289 7233 —40.70%
569,364 320,831 7747%
Distribution costs mainly consist of (i) marketing expenses relating to academic DHEKAEEBIE()EBASINERE R
promotion activities and other marketing activities, (ii) travelling expenses for H &SRB A - (i AEH
marketing purposes, (iii) labour cost, and (iv) other expenses. B B2 ZRRACA + (i) 85 TR - K (iv)
HMAA o
The increase in distribution costs was mainly due to the increase in operating cost DI  TEERHRAEE
and travel expenses in relation to the Group's academic promotion and other EITEBMTHERE N A EERNES
marketing activities, closely relating to the increased efforts on academic promotion of BN N 2= ik B A3 0 - EAAKEE B hnsk
the core product Kewei and enhancement of influence of other products. Meanwhile, 1200 EE h ] Bk D 10 HE E D S R
the Group put more effort in organizing and building the sales team and expanded its HihEROTENZYREE - [R -
sales force in 2017 and its sales and marketing staffs increased by 452 as compared to NEBERR2017FZE S N5 T $HE B X
2016. AR - HHERMET TR
3R - RER016FEMHE KI5
EAE452A ©
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Administrative expenses mainly consist of (i) R&D expenses, (i) salaries and welfare
benefits for management and administrative personnel, (iii) depreciation and
amortization costs relating to our office and facilities and land use rights, and (iv)

other miscellaneous expenses.

The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in labour

costs and R&D expenses.

Finance costs mainly consist of interests on bank loans. The decrease in finance costs
was mainly due to that the Group had sufficient funds and used such funds to repay

matured bank loans which resulting in the decrease in interest expenses.

Profit Before Taxation
As a result of the above, profit before taxation increased by 65.14% to RMB748.20

million in 2017 from RMB453.07 million in 201 6.

Income Tax

For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group'’s income tax expenses were
RMB121.84 million, representing an increase of RMB49.37 million as compared with
RMB72.47 million for the year ended 3| December 2016, which was mainly due to

the increase in profit before taxation.

Profit for the Year
For the forgoing reasons, the Group's profit for the year was RMB626.36 million for
the year ended 3| December 2017, representing an increase of RMB245.76 million as

compared with RMB380.60 million for the year ended 3| December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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IV. FINANCIAL POSITION V.  BESHRR

I. Overview I. BE
R2017F 128318  AEBBREER
AR¥377598B & BEEAEA
million. RET7IS39OBET - RRERARE

306059B&TT °

As at 3|1 December 2017, the Group's total assets amounted to RMB3,775.98 million,

with total liabilities of RMB715.39 million and shareholders’ equity of RMB3,060.59

RBEEFE
TREHNFZARPRABANREDE
E nBEAERRSHEEFE -

2% Net Current Assets 2.
The following table sets forth our current assets, current liabilities and net current

assets for the date indicated.

As at 31 December

®I12A8318
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR¥TT ARETT
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 87,967 110,624
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWEIE 746,961 337,149
Time deposits EHITER 346,519 238,988
Pledged deposits BRI - 2,635
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 887,183 1,212,072
Total current assets REBEEHAE 2,068,630 1,901,468
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B REMERNRIE 549,542 182,377
Bank loans H|ITERK 10,000 70,000
Deferred income EIEW 2= 4,379 4,379
Current taxation FETENERFR 1B 76,826 DTS,
Total current liabilities nREAEARE 640,747 284,281
Net current assets MENE E R 1,427,883 1,617,187
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The net current assets of the Group decreased from RMB1,617.19 million as at
31 December 2016 to RMBI,427.88 million as at 31 December 2017. During the
Reporting Period, as the result of the combined effects of an increase in current
assets of RMBI167.16 million due to sales growth and an increase in current liabilities
of RMB356.47 million due to increase in trade and other payables and increase in

current tax payable, the Group's net current assets decreased by RMB189.30 million.

Gearing Ratio and Quick Ratio

Gearing ratio represents total loans and borrowings as at a record date divided by
shareholders’ equity as at the same record date. Quick ratio represents current assets
excluding inventories as at a record date divided by current liabilities as at the same

record date.

The gearing ratio and the quick ratio of the Group as at 3|1 December 2017 was 0.65%
and 3.09 times respectively. The gearing ratio and the quick ratio of the Group as at

31 December 2016 was 3.66% and 6.30 times respectively.

Bank Loans

In 2017, all indebtedness of the Group was Renminbi-denominated bank loans. As
at 3|1 December 2017, the balance of the Group's bank loans was RMB20.00 million,
representing a decrease of 77.78% from RMB90.00 million as at 3| December 2016.

Capital Expenditure

In order to meet the production demand for our products, the Group constructed
plants and buildings, and purchased administration offices, machines and equipment
in 2017 with an aggregate capital expenditure of RMB207.05 million, representing an
increase of RMB146.28 million as compared to RMB60.77 million in 2016.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 3| December 2017, the Group did not provide any external guarantees.
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7. Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no pledged assets.

8. Employee and Remuneration Policies

(I) Human Resource Summary

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 1,997 employees,

BERH
HE2017F 128318 - "EBERTE
BEMAR -

B8 - HFMEE
(1) ADEFRER
MW20175 128318 » "EF

BEBIIITA -

by age: TREBEE S -
Age Distribution F@WoM Number Percentage
A8 Aotk
30 (inclusive) or below 305R(Z)AT 899 45%
30-40 (inclusive) 30-405% (&) 838 42%
40-50 (inclusive) 40-505% (&) 240 12%
Above 50 S0BRIA 20 1%
Total &= 1,997 100%

by education: 1S IE S

Education Level NALRRE Number Percentage
AE Aok
Master (inclusive) or above BLE(E)UE 64 3%
Bachelor % 618 31%

AE
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V.

24 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. BE&

(3) Employee Benefits
The Group strictly complies with the Labour Law, the Labour Contract
Law and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, under which it contributes
various social insurance premiums and housing provident fund for employees.
Meanwhile, the Group arranges staff in key positions to have an annual
occupational health check and organizes new staff to attend intensive leaming
sessions of safe production knowledge, in order to safeguard health and safety
of the employees. In addition to the statutory requirement of the PRC, the
Group has established corresponding systems such as the housing benefits and
children’s benefits, and set up public welfare facilities such as kindergarten and
infirmary room. The Group will further optimize the employee welfare and
protection system in accordance with its development progress so that it can
protect the employees’ rights and interests at the system level and provide

them with more benefit and protection.

RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks that may have material effects on the operation of the Group are as follows:

The risk of products failing to pass consistency evaluation

According to the Opinions of the Office of the State Council on the Commencement
of Consistency Evaluation on the Quality and Healing Effect of Generic Drugs
(Guo Ban Fa [2016] No. 8) and the Announcement on the Implementation of
Matters in Relation to the Opinions of the Office of the State Council on the
Commencement of Consistency Evaluation on the Quality and Healing Effect of
Generic Drugs issued by the CFDA on 26 May 2016 (2016 No. 106), for generic
drugs which have been approved for market launch prior to the implementation of
the new registration category of chemical drugs, if the approval was not carried out
according to the principle of consistency in quality and curative effect as the original
researched pharmaceuticals, such generic drugs are subject to consistency evaluation.
For the generic drugs which are not able to pass the consistency evaluation within the

prescribed period, no further registration will be approved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1l The risk of the decline in drug prices
With continuous progress in the reform of drug prices, deepening of reforms in
the medical insurance system and the promulgation of other relevant policies and
regulations, a declining trend in drug prices will appear. On 4 May 2015, the Notice
on the Publication of Opinions on Proceeding with Reforms on Drug Prices (B8R
EZS 3 22 R (BARE B R AYBAN) ) was jointly issued by seven departments
including the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC to
expressly cancel the drug prices originally set by the government except for narcotic
drugs and Category | psychotropic drugs. In addition, the Group'’s core products,
Kewei capsules and Kewei granules were included in the National Reimbursement
Drug List in 2009 and 2017, respectively. Under the impact of the lifting of drug
price addition policy and control of medical insurance expenditure, unit price of the

Company's products may fall, which in turn will affect its revenue and profitability.

The Group adopted corresponding policies in dealing with the aforesaid risks in 2017.

In respect of the consistency evaluation, the Group had a total of 33 products involved in
consistency evaluation, among which 24 products are under consistency evaluation and nine
generic products will not undergo consistency evaluation. As the Group’s core products,
Kewei granules and Kewei capsules have not been included in the National Essential Drugs
List (2012 Edition), they are not required to complete the consistency evaluation by the end
of 2018. Currently, Kewei capsules have completed pharmaceutical study and BE experiment
and are expected to commence the corresponding registration in 2018. At the same time,

the consistency evaluation of Kewei granules is scheduled to be completed in 2020.

Except for the 9 generic drugs products which will not undergo consistency evaluation, it is
expected that the consistency evaluation of the remaining products will be completed in or

around 2020.

As for the risk of decreasing drug price, the Group's drug prices are under control due
to the less competition for the Group's core product, Kewei, the established relationship
with a number of domestic renowned distributors by the Group, the well-established drug
distribution system, and the Group's ability to control the cost of distribution. As at 3|

December 2017, the Group established cooperation with |,205 distributors.
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Vi.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The continuous stable development of pharmaceutical industry is one of the China's future
strategic plans. The “Guidelines for the Development and Planning of the Pharmaceutical
Industry” ((E8%E T %25 E R B35 )) has set a high fundamental for the development
of pharmaceutical industry during the “|3th Five-year Plan”, and the contribution of
pharmaceutical industry to the gross national product would be significantly increased.
In particular, technical innovation, high standard quality of drugs, green development and
internationalization would be the important targets for the future development of China’s
pharmaceutical industry.

Looking forward, driven by the factors such as continuous medium-to-high growth in the
economy of China, increase in disposable income, upgrade of consumption structure,
steady establishment of a “healthy China”, further improvement of the medical insurance
system, increasingly serious ageing population, higher incidence rate of certain diseases and
full implementation of two-child policy, it is expected that the pharmaceutical market will
sustain a faster growth. With the deepening of reform of China’s pharmaceutical industry,
the coming year will thus be full of opportunities and challenges. In 2018, the Group
will pay close attention to the changes in industry policies and adjust its development
directions constantly. The Group will strive to enhance its innovation capability and standard
and continue to optimize the production and sales model while maintaining the strong
competitiveness of the existing products, and further grow the market share of its major
products. At the same time, the Group will expand its product lines and search for an
everlasting way for sustainable scientific development.

Moving into 2018, the Group will, based on the existing product advantages, fully utilize
its advantages in academic promotion, enhance the development of professional academic
promotion team, reinforce and improve the market position of its current core product,
Kewei, and lay down the foundation of our future products in the market in order to
guarantee the Group's long-term stable growth in the future.

VI.
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DIRECTORS E=
Name Date of joining the Group Date of appointment Position
e MAEEEAH BZERH Bz
Mr. TANG Xinfa (& $73%) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Chairman and non-executive Director
BB S 2015495 A48 2015548 EERFIFNTES
Mr. JIANG Juncai (3897) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Executive Director
BIA KE 201545 A48 2015548 HITEE
Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (AR T34k) |1 May 2002 16 June 2017 Executive Director
RIgHt k4 2002658 11R 2017F6A16R HITEE

Mr. WANG Danjin (E FH#)
FrEEEE

Mr. CHEN Yangui (BRZEAE)

Mr. MO Kit (BR)

Mr. TANG Jianxin (BEE3T)
B E

27 February 2006
2006F2H27H

| May 2014
2014F5 81 H

4 May 2015
201545 A48

4 May 2015
201545 A4R

27 February 2006
20062 H27H

4 May 2015
201545 H4H

4 May 2015
201545 H4H

4 May 2015
201545 A48

Executive Director

HITEF

Executive Director

HITEF

Non-executive Director

FATES

Independent non-executive Director

BN IFITES

Independent non-executive Director



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE EEKSREEAEEN

Mr. TANG Xinfa (fF#7%), aged 48, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director of the Board.

He joined the Company in May 2015 and has served as a non-executive Director since then.

Mr. Tang has extensive working experience in the following companies or entities:

Period

a2

Name of Company/Entity
DR/ EREHE

HITESE M-

BREETIIA

Position

B

BHBEL - 4858  RESENEERFRIFNTE
= o fR2015F5 A IIARRA] - b8 —BE#EEE

A EREA S E M TIREER

Principal Function

TERRE

Since January 2017
B{2017F 1 AES

Since March 2016
A#t20I16F3AE5

Since December 2016
B{t2016F 12AES

Since November 2015
20151 | A &S

Since December 2014
H2014F 12 &5

Since March 201 |
B0 324

Since October 2010
B2010F10A &S

Dongguan HEC TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.

RERGRER R EEERE
BREEAF

Shenzhen HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
YT ES R BEE B R AR

Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Research
Co), [Lial,
WS R R B R A A

Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development
Co,, Ltd.
RITREAERERAR AT

Yichang HEC Research Co,, Ltd.
HERGEREHR AR

Yichang HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd.
HERGHEZRHERAH

Dongguan HEC Medicine Development
and Research Co,, Ltd.
RERGAEYREBRAF]

Legal representative and director

AERFA - EF

Director

5=

Legal representative and director

AEREFA - BEF

Director and general manager

EEREKIE

Legal representative, executive

director and general manager

EERRA - RIITERREKE

Vice chairman, executive director and

deputy general manager

BE=R  TEEREERE

Legal representative and executive
director

EERRARATES
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Corporate management and
decision-making

NEIETREIRE

Corporate management and decision-
making

NCIBEYS P S-

Corporate management and
decision-making

NAEIERRORE

Corporate management and
decision-making

NEIETRERE

Corporate management and decision-
making

NEIETREIRE

Corporate management and
decision-making

NEIEERERE

Corporate management and
decision-making

ATERERE
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Period Name of Company/Entity Position Principal Function

5 DR/ BREE B EERRE

Since May 2010 Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Director Corporate management and

B20106E5AES Co, Ltd. BF decision-making
WERGREZXRERR AR NAEIRERE

Since September 2009 Ruyuan HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Director Corporate management and

B2009F9AES FLRRG S B R AT == decision-making

NEIETRERE
Since September 2005 Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. Director Corporate management and
H2005F9R &S BRRGHEEEFR AR BF decision-making

Since December 2004
H2004F 2 AES

Dongguan HEC Industrial Development

Co.,, Ltd. EEREKA - ES

REMREABEXEERER AT
Chief of the office

Since September 2002 to Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development

September 2005 WAEE(E

E20024F9 A £20054F9 A

Co, Ltd.
AYITMRE AR ERER AR

Mr. Tang received a master degree in literary aesthetics from the Department of Chinese of Xiamen

University in September 2002.

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (5&153#), aged 49, is an executive Director and the deputy general
manager of the Company. He joined the Company in May 2002, and has served as the deputy
general manager of the Company since then, and served as an executive Director of the Company

since June 2017.

Mr. ZHU Qiaochong has also been the vice chairman of Pharmaceutical Profession Association of
Hubei Province since April 2015, and has served as a supervisor of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical
Co,, Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) since June 2005. Prior to that, Mr. ZHU
Qiaohong was the director of GMP office of Apeloa Kangyu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from October
1993 to May 2002, and a technician of the General Security Station of the State-owned Ecological
Forest (B8 £ RE A S MEIRE42Uh) of Dongyang City from August 1990 to October 1993.
Moreover, Mr. Zhu graduated with a bachelor degree in science from Jilin University in July 1990. He
was recognised as an engineer in pharmaceutical engineering by the Bureau of Human Resources
and Social Security of Jinhua (formerly known as the Bureau of Personnel of Jinhua (£ 21 A = F))
in August 1999.

Legal representative and director

NGB NN

Corporate management and
decision-making

NEIETRERE

Corporate management and
decision-making

NEIERERE
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R -
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Mr. JIANG Juncai (#3974, aged 36, is an executive Director and the general manager of the

Company. He joined the Company in May 2015 and has served as an executive Director since then.

Mr. Jiang has also served as a director of Yidu HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. from March
2012 to May 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Jiang was a director of Yichang Shancheng Cordyceps Sinensis
Co, Ltd. (BB IL3/KEPLBEEHFRRAF]) from March 2012 to July 2015, and successively
served as a researcher at the biochemistry division, a researcher and deputy head of the traditional
Chinese medicine division and the deputy head of the zoological and botanical division of Sunshine

Lake Pharma from July 2006 to May 2012.

Mr. Jiang graduated with a master degree in science from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University in

June 2006.

Mr. WANG Danjin (£ }5£), aged 48, is an executive Director and a deputy general manager of
the Company. He joined the Company in February 2006, and has served as an executive Director

since then.

Mr. Wang has also served as a supervisor of Parent Company from December 2010 to July 2015,
and a director of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from April 2006 to January 2018. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Wang was the head of production department of Jilin Tonghua Dongri
Pharmaceutical Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (FM& BILEH B ZE£RR (D AR A7) from March 2002 to
January 2006, and a technologist at Jilin Dandong Pharmaceutical Factory (& #M& F 3R R 25 )
from November 1991 to February 2002.

Mr. Wang graduated with a bachelor degree from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University (7[5 Z&%I K
&) through correspondence courses in January 2008. He is recognised as a licensed pharmacist by
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China (formerly known
as Ministry of Personnel of the People’s Republic of China), and was recognised as a pharmacist-in-
charge by Bureau of Human Resources and Social Security of Dandong (formerly known as Bureau

of Personnel of Dandong (F}ER 1 A % F) in October 2001.

Mr. MO Kit (FE7R), aged 67, is a non-executive Director of the Board. He joined the Company in

May 2015, and has served as a non-executive Director since then.

Mr. Mo has also served as a director of North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment Company
Limited since October 2006, a director of Dongguan Bisheng Electronic Limited since June 2002, a
member of the board of directors of Ruyuan Yangzhiguang Aluminium Development Co., Ltd. since
June 1998 and a director of North & South Brother International Investment H.K. Co. Limited since

September 1998.

BT KL 3658 RATESRARALKLHE -
fP2015F5 AMMARRR - thik —EEERITE
e

BEER2012F3AE0I5F5 AL TR RS
REXZREBRDAIMNES o AT BEELER
20124F3 A &22015F7 A AR A E 2 LBk E 2 &
EEARARIMNES - WH2006F7 A E201245 A
Hi R EEER RS L EE YL EFRMES -
Bt SR B REIFTR A REEY BRI K

B ER2006F 6 A RENERGERKE - MEE

BEL 8 -

EREEE 4855 BITESRARF ALK
o fthA2006F2 AMAARAT] © 1 —EHETH
TEE—B-

FHRAEBF0I0F12AE20I5F7ABEEEAFIN
B AR B2006F4 AR E20I18F | AEEE RS
HBEFRARETES - EMARRRZAH -
F S AER2002F3 A E20065F | A AL ES A @
bR BEXERNDERAREEIR - ARRI99]
F 11 BE2002F2 A BRESEME A RBERET
T FEAETR20084F | B R EREG HER B KR -
S 2T E7 o th AEREARKEFME A N ERH
HEREB(RPEARKAFMBEASZ) BATHH
AR - RIN2001F 10 AEENERMANER
A RER(RFRTAER) RN EELEME
1% o

ERLE 6758 REZEIFHNTES ° (1102015
FSAMARRAT - WE—EEDRTES B -

EREB2006F I0ARBEEREIL LR EXKERR
NAINESE - B200F6ARREERELBEETFH
RARMNES - B 199856 BREEEIIRE 2 kia
FERBRAFNEZTGKE N E 19989 B EHE
EBHEREILAFEEREGRARIRES -

30 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERB X R TEXRAER AT



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE EEREREEAESEN

Mr. CHEN Yangui (FR3%%E), aged 36, is an executive Director. He joined the Company in May
2014, serving as the head of the sales department, Mr. Chen has served as an executive Director

since May 2015.

Mr. Chen has also served as a general manager of Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. since
March 2016, a supervisor of Ruyuan HEC Medical Instrument Co., Ltd. (FLJRIRF5 't BB E 22
BPBR/AA]) since July 2012 and a director of Ruyuan HEC Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. since February
2010. Mr. Chen joined Dongguan HEC Medicine Development and Research Co., Ltd. in 2005,
and successively held positions as a researcher, the deputy head of research and development
department and the head of synthesis department before he was appointed as the deputy head of

research institute and the head of generic drug department.

Mr. Chen graduated with a master degree in science from Hunan University in June 2006.

Mr. TANG Jianxin (FF3£#), aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2015.

Mr. Tang has also served as an independent director of Sino Great Wall Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock
number: 000018) since December 2015, an independent director of Pingdingshan Tianan Coal
Mining Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 601666) since May 2013. He has been an independent director
of Zhongbai Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 000759) from December 2011 to
December 2017 and an independent director of Shenzhen Huapengfei Modern Logistics Co., Ltd.
(SZSE stock code: 300350) from August 2010 to August 2016. He was an independent director of
Wouhan Sanzhen Industry Holding Co., Ltd. (SSE stock code: 600168) from June 2009 to June 2015,
and an independent director of Wuhan Zhongnan Commercial (Group) Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code:
000785) from May 2008 to May 2014. Prior to that, Mr. Tang served as an independent director
of Wuhan Accelink Technologies Co., Ltd. (SZSE stock code: 002281) from September 2006 to
September 2009 and an independent director of Hubei Chutian Expressway Co., Ltd (#i1t#E

=R A FERAD AR A Al (SSE stock code: 600035) from April 2002 to April 2008. Mr. Tang has
been a professor of the Accounting Department of Economics and Management School of Wuhan
University since 2006 and a doctoral tutor at Wuhan University since 2006. He served as the dean
of Accounting Department of Economics and Management School in the same university from 2005
to 2015. He has been a professor at Wuhan University since 2004, and worked for the postdoctoral

research center of the accounting department of Renmin University of China from 2000 to 2002.

BREEAESLRE - 3657 * BTTES © 2014554
IIAZR BN RS E AR ES - FREAE B 201595 A
EERTES -
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Mr. Tang received his bachelor degree from the Economics Department of Wuhan University in
June 1985, and then obtained a master degree in economics and a doctoral degree in economics
from Wuhan University in September 1988 and January 1999 respectively. Mr. Tang was granted
independent auditor qualifications by the National Audit Office of the People’s Republic of China in
December 1992 + and CPA qualification by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
December 997.

Mr. FU Hailiang ({5/85%), aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in

May 2015.

Mr. Fu has been a partner and the head of administration function of Hubei S&H Law Firm since
May 2005. He was a partner of Hubei Haohan Law Firm (#iib}& 82 RIEFEFT) from October
2000 to May 2005 and an associate at Wuhan Third Law Firm (EZET 5 = 2RI EEHT) from
November 1996 to October 2000. Mr. Fu has been a council member of the Wuhan Lawyers
Association and the chief of the Association of Finance, Securities and Law Industry (& Bl 785 AR

HE¥R B E) since February 2014.

Mr. Fu graduated with a professional certification in financial management from VWuhan University
in July 1993, and graduated with a bachelor degree in law from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law in June 1998. After that, he graduated with a master degree in law from Wuhan University
in February 2003. Mr. Fu has been admitted to practice PRC law in June 1998 and was recognized
as an excellent lawyer of Hubei by the Department of Justice of Hubei and the Hubei Lawyers

Association (j#11b & 2AN 17 &) in March 201 I

Mr. LEE Chi Ming (Z=75#7), aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Board in May 2015.

Mr. Lee has also served as a director of Ever East Consultants Limited in Hong Kong since August
2013 and served as a director of Knowledge Transfer, Office of Research and Knowledge Transfer
Services in the Chinese University of Hong Kong since September 2016. Prior to that, Mr. Lee
served as an executive science director in the research of central nervous system and pain control
and a global product director of AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd, a section head, associate
director and project manager at Bayer Corporation and a senior group leader of neuroscience
at Abbott Laboratories. He also worked as a lecturer and then a senior lecturer at the Chinese

University of Hong Kong from September 1982 to February 1992.

Mr. Lee received a bachelor degree in science and a master degree in biochemistry from the
University of Hong Kong in June 1975 and July 1977 respectively, and a doctoral degree in
pharmacology from the University of Cambridge in July 1980 before he completed his postdoctoral

research at the Johns Hopkins University in July 1982.
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SUPERVISORS E=
Name Date of joining the Group Date of appointment Position
e INAZEE HH# BZERH By
Ms. HUANG Fangfang (& 75 75) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
BEASAL 201545 A4H 201565848 EFEXR
Mr. WANG Shengchao (£ f578) 20 May 2012 21 July 2017 Employee representative supervisor
IBBEL 2012454208 2017678218 BTRKRES
Mr. LUO Zhonghua (7& BZE) I3 June 2005 |6 June 2017 Supervisor
EBESRSE 20056 A 138 2017567168 EF

Ms. HUANG Fangfang (25 7), aged 36, is a Supervisor of the Company. She joined the
Company in May 2015, and has been the chairman of the Board of Supervisors since then. She has
also served as the executive deputy head of the generic drug department of Sunshine Lake Pharma
Co,, Ltd. since June 2014, and the head of formulation department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co.,
Ltd. since February 2009. Prior to that, Ms. Huang was the head of analysis section under the
formulation department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. from July 2006 to February 2009, the
head of formulation department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co.,, Ltd. since February 2009, and the
executive deputy head of the generic drug department of Sunshine Lake Pharma Co., Ltd. since June

2014.

Ms. Huang graduated with a master degree in science from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2006.

Mr. WANG Shengchao (Ff578), aged 35, is an employee representative Supervisor and the
deputy chief of the quality division of the Company. He joined the Company in May 2012 as a
quality controller of the quality division, and served as the vice director of quality assurance of the
quality division of the Company from April 2015. Mr. Wang held the position of the quality assurance
director of the quality division of the Company from May 2016 to June 2017, and served as the

deputy chief of the quality division of the Company from July 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wang worked as a researcher of new traditional Chinese
medicines in Hebei Yiling Pharmaceutical Group (JA1dE LA4aE5 Z4 & [E]) from July 2008 to March
2010, a pharmaceutical analysis researcher in Pharmaron (Beijing) New Medicines Technology Co.,
Ltd. (FEBelbAk (b)) ¥R AR A ) from April 2010 to May 201 |, and an inspection
engineer and inspection supervisor of the quality department in Lepu (Beijing) Medical Equipment

Co, Ltd. (8% (Jb) BESSMARD AR A F]) from June 201 | to May 2012.
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Mr. Wang graduated from Shenyang Pharmaceutical University in July 2008 with a master degree in

science.

Mr. LUO Zhonghua (& 1%£), aged 34, is a Supervisor of the Company. He joined Dongguan
HEC Medicine Development and Research Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of Shenzhen HEC Industrial
Development Co., Ltd. (RYITTRIGHEZEZE B R A F]), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, since June 2005 to engage in the research and development of APIs. He is currently the
head of the generic drug API synthesis department and deputy head of the generic drug division in

Dongguan HEC Medicine Development and Research Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Luo graduated from the Central South University in June 2005 with a bachelor's degree 7B

in pharmaceutical engineering and Sun Yat-sen University in 2015 with a master's degree in

pharmaceutical analysis, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT BREEAR
Date of joining Date of

Name the Group appointment Position Responsibility
HA MAZEEE R B BZREEH By BE
Mr. JIANG Juncai (3394) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 General manager Overall day-to-day management
FE A et 20155 A48 201565848 T EENHEER
Mr. WANG Danjin (£ /37£) 27 February 2006 4 May 2015 Deputy general manager Operational management
EEEE 200652 4278 201545 34H Bl SEEE
Mr. LI Shuang (Z=%&) 7 August 2005 4 May 2015 Deputy general manager Operational management
FIREL 200568 A7H 2015485 548 Bl HEEE
Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (RT5HE) I'l' May 2002 Il May 2002 Deputy general manager Operational management
RIDHFKE 20029F5 4 11 H 20025411 H Bl SEEHE
Mr. LEI Xiantong (& 75 #f) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Chief financial officer Financial management
EARLE 20154F5 44 H 2015584H BT RE M ER
Mr. PAN Sanxiong (& = ) 4 May 2015 4 May 2015 Secretary of the Board Day-to-day operation of the Board
B L 2015485 H4H 201545 84H BEaNE E=gmMREEE
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For the biography of Mr. JIANG Juncai (#197), Mr. WANG Danjin (£f4#) and Mr. ZHU

Qiaohong (ARI54), please refer to “Directors” in this section.

Mr. LI Shuang (Z28), aged 37, is the deputy general manager of the Company. He joined the
Company in August 2005 and worked as a member of the insulin research team. He has served as

the deputy general manager of the Company since May 2015.

Mr. Li has also served as the deputy head of the Company's insulin factory since October 2013 and
the head of APl department of that factory since February 2006. Mr. Li was the head of purification

department of the Company's insulin factory from December 2008 to September 201 3.

Mr. Li graduated with a bachelor degree in engineering from China Three Gorge University (= I5¢K
E) in June 2004.

Mr. LEI Xiantong (5 5t1f), aged 48, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Lei joined

the Company in May 2015, and has served as the chief financial officer of the Company since then.

Mr. Lei has been the chief financial officer of Parent Company from December 2010 to May 2015.
Mr. Lei has also been the deputy head of financial department of Yidu Dongyangguang Industrial
Development Co., Ltd. from January 2004 to December 2010 and a staff member at the financial
department from September 200! to January 2004. Mr. Lei held positions relating to financial

accounting in various companies before that.

Mr. Lei graduated with a professional certification in financial accounting from Zhongnan University
of Economics (currently known as Zhongnan University of Economic and Law) in June 1997. Mr. Lei
was recognised as a registered tax agent of China by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social

Security of the People’s Republic of China.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B EERSREEASEHN

Mr. PAN Sanxiong (7% =), aged 36, is the secretary of the Board of the Company. He joined

the Company in May 2015 and has served as the secretary of the Board since then.

Prior to that, Mr. Pan was a representative of the securities department of Parent Company from
April 2010 to April 2015, responsible for investor communication, handling financing and corporate
secretarial matters. Mr. Pan also worked in the securities department of Starway Bio-technology Co.,

Ltd. in Guangdong (F& 3R 2 7] £ M EHE A% 1D A BR A Al) from October 2008 to April 2010.

Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor degree in management from Guizhou University of Finance
and Economics in 2007. He obtained a Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary issued by
the Shanghai Stock Exchange in November 2010 and passed the qualification examination for

practitioners in the securities industry held by Security Association of China in November 2009.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. PAN Sanxiong (7&=1#)
For the biography of Mr. PAN Sanxiong (7& =), please refer to “Senior Management” in this

section.

Ms. NG Wing Shan (& 5k i)

Ms. NG Wing Shan (R 7kHH) was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company on 24
July 2015. Ms. Ng is an assistant vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited and is
responsible for assisting listed companies in respect of professional company secretarial work. She
has over |0 years of professional experience in the company secretarial field and is a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and

Administrators in the United Kingdom.
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The Board of Directors now presents the Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the

Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 3| December 2017 to Shareholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors currently consists of nine Directors, comprising four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The incumbent

Directors during the year ended 3| December 2017 and as the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. JIANG Juncai

Mr. WANG Danijin

Mr. CHEN Yangui

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (appointed on 16 June 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)

Mr. MO Kit

Mr. ZHU Yingwei (resigned on 9 May 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a PRC pharmaceutical manufacturing company that focuses on the development,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in the therapeutic areas of anti-virus, endocrine
and metabolic diseases and cardiovascular diseases. For further information of the principal business

of the Company, please refer to the section “Business Review" of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

On 10 February 2017, the Company completed the issue of 1,200,000 new Domestic Shares to
the Parent Company. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated |2 December
2016 and 10 February 2017, and the circular of the Company dated 20 January 2017 for detailed

information.

As of 31 December 2017, the total share capital of the Company was RMB452,022,850, divided
into 452,022,850 shares of RMBI.00 each. Details of movements in the share capital of the

Company during the year 2017 are set out in Note 23(c) to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY
Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of

the Company for the year ended 3| December 2017.

DEBENTURES IN ISSUE

The Company did not have any debentures in issue for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

On |6 December 2016, the Company entered into the capital increase agreement with the Parent
Company, pursuant to which, the Company conditionally agreed to issue and allot, and the Parent
Company conditionally agreed to subscribe in cash for, an aggregate of 1,200,000 new Domestic
Shares with an aggregate nominal value of RMB1,200,000 at the subscription price of RMBI6.12
per new Domestic Share (representing a premium of approximately 28.01% to the closing price
of HK$14.10 per H Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the capital increase

agreement) (the “Subscription”).

The Subscription was conditional upon the fulfilment of the following conditions:

() the completion and fulfillment of necessary internal approval procedures by the Parent

Company; and

(i) approval of the Subscription by the independent Shareholders at the 2017 first extraordinary

general meeting of the Company.

The Subscription enabled the Parent Company to apply for certain preferential tax payment
arrangement when it disposes of its entire equity interest in the Company to Guangdong HEC
Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (EBER &R 5 BHEIES

PRC regulations. Furthermore, the Company could utilize the net proceeds from the Subscription

f&R% 15 B PR 2 F)) in accordance with relevant

to supplement the general working capital of the Company. The Subscription completed on 10
February 2017. The net proceeds from the Subscription was approximately RMB18.29 million. Such
net proceeds from the Subscription has been utilized as described in the sections headed “(F) Use
of proceeds” and *(G) Reasons for and Benefit of the Proposed Subscription™ in the circular of the

Company dated 20 January 2017.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not entered into any equity-linked agreement, nor did

any equity-linked agreement exist during the year ended 3| December 2017.

EEERE

Z A
ANRATER2016F 128 16 BB R R]FTS G E ek
Bt - RAREKRGERSETREE  MBARE
RERBIAR & REEEEA R 120000072 &
| 200,0008% 5 W& A Ak (7 - REBEAERFTNERK
BROAR 16127 ([REE]) - HERIEE B
HATE B 2 FT T SR B AR HAR MR T (B 14,1078 TO R (B 40
2801% °

s %/Af‘ifu\—r HJEFLWTQE—H/E =L &

() ERAATHKERBITVENIEMER K

(i) REBEEIIRRILARAT0I7FERERR
RARE L#E -

RBEBE R RN ERBETEERAERREG

RHRARAR 4 B PR 2 7] B AL AR 2 SRR A
BAETEERENRZHE - thih - RAT A AT
FARESRIEFEMRTARN —REEES -

RIEER2017F2A 108 THK  REFMSRIBFE

HWABARKEIB2EET - ZSREMEBRBFHED
E$@ia%ﬁmmﬁﬂmam‘@fwﬁ

& | R[(GETHERE 2 RE R e |Z & prt
FRER o

B EXFTHEEI  #iE2017F 12831 HIEFEE
AR B EET S AR E AN e - TR
BMAGHTEE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £# 39



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
The Company has purchased appropriate liability insurance for its Directors, Supervisors and senior

management. The permitted indemnity provisions are set out in such liability insurance.

Save as disclosed above, no permitted indemnity provision was made by the Company for the
year ended 3| December 2017 and no permitted indemnity provision was in force as at the Latest

Practicable Date.

PLEDGING OF SHARES BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
The Controlling Shareholder didn't pledge any of its shares in the Company to secure the
Company's debts or to secure guarantees or other support of the Company’s obligations for the

year ended 3| December 2017.

LOAN AGREEMENTS OR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company didn’t provide any financial assistance nor guarantee to its affiliated companies for
the year ended 31 December 2017, which gives rise to a disclosure under Rule 13.16 of the Listing
Rules. The Company didn't enter into any loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance of its Controlling Shareholder nor breach the terms of any loan agreements for the

year ended 3| December 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company did not adopt any share option scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company is not subject to any
pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion to

their shareholdings.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on page 99. The financial condition of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 3| December 2017 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
on pages 100 to 101. The consolidated cash flow of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement on pages |03.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements affecting the
results of operations and financial condition of the Company during the year are set out in

Management Discussion and Analysis of the Annual Report on page 10 to page 26.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the Group's future
business development are provided on pages 7 to 8 and pages 10 to 26 of this Annual Report,
respectively. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be
found on pages 24 to 25 of this Annual Report. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year are provided on note 28 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key

performance indicators is provided on pages |5 to 24 of this Annual Report.

In addition, further information of the Company's environmental policies, performance and initiatives
can be found in the section heading “Environmental Policies and Performance” of this Report
of the Directors. The Company's compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Company are provided in the section heading “Compliance with Laws
and Regulations” of this Report of the Directors. An account of the Company's relationships with
its employees, customers and suppliers are disclosed in the section heading “Relationship with

Stakeholders” of this Report of the Board of Directors.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors resolved to recommend a final dividend of RMB0.30 (tax inclusive) per
Share for the year ended 3| December 2017 (the “2017 Final Dividend”) with an aggregate
amount of approximately RMBI35.61 million to Shareholders whose names are listed on the
Company's register of members as at 19 June 2018, subject to the approval by the Shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM. The 2017 Final Dividend will be denominated and declared in RMB. The
Company will pay dividends in respect of Domestic Shares in RMB and dividends in respect of H
Shares in HKD. Once the relevant resolution is passed at the AGM, the 2017 Final Dividend is

expected to be paid on or around 16 July 2018.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China ({#F 2 A R £ M
B (> FT{S %)) and its implementation rules both effective since | January 2008, and other
relevant provisions, the Company is required to withhold and pay a 0% enterprise income tax
when paying the proposed 2017 Final Dividend to non-residential enterprise shareholders listed
on the Company’s register of members of H Shares. Any H Share registered in the name of a non-
individual shareholder, such as HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees, organizations
or corporates, will be deemed as shares held by a non-residential enterprise shareholder, and
therefore the enterprise income tax on the receivable dividend in respect of such shares will be

withheld.

According to the Individual Income Tax Law of China ({1 2E A R B E A FTBFLE)) and
its implementation provisions, the Notice Concerning Individual Income Tax on the Dividends,
Bonuses that Foreign Individuals Obtain from Foreign invested Enterprises Issued by the Ministry
of Finance of Hubei Province (i1t 1175 Bl 75 BN £ IME B ARINI IR E D E ISR S
AL FIFT B BUE A FT SRR R A4 ), the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on
the Issues Concerning Taxation and Administration of Individual Income Tax After the Repeal of
the Document (Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045) (Guo Shui Han [201 17 No. 348) { IR 1542 /5
FAT B B[ 1993104557 SRR IE 18 B RAE A PR S L EE M RERUB AN (BB EK[201 1]3485%)
and other laws and regulations, the Company will withhold and pay the personal income tax at the
tax rate of 10% generally for individual Shareholders of H Shares. For the individual Shareholders
of H Shares who are citizens of countries or regions that have entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC with tax rates higher than 10% but lower than 20%, the Company will withhold the tax at the
agreed rates under such treaties. For the individual Shareholders of H Shares who are citizens of
countries or regions without taxation treaties with the PRC, the Company will withhold the tax at a

rate of 20%.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The aforesaid non-residential enterprises and foreign individuals may enjoy the concessionary tax
rate in accordance with the relevant provisions of treaties or arrangements for avoidance of double
taxation entered into between their country or region and the PRC, and the Announcement No. 60
in 2015 of the State Administration of Taxation: Administrative Measures for Non-residents to Enjoy
the Treatments of Tax Treaties { FE/E RATI A ZZ TR EFFBEIEIHE)) (the “Measures”)
after completing relevant procedures. The aforesaid Shareholders shall provide complete
information as required by the Measures to the Company by 25 June 2018. The Company will file
tax return to enable the aforesaid Shareholders to enjoy the concessionary tax rate stipulated in the
Measures. The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation
to the tax status or tax treatment of the Shareholders of H Shares of the Company and for any
claims arising from any delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment of
the Shareholders of H Shares of the Company or any disputes over the withholding mechanism or

arrangements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM and to the proposed
2017 Final Dividend, the share register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 8
May 2018 to Friday, 8 June 2018 (both days inclusive) and from Thursday, 14 June 2018 to Tuesday,
19 June 2018 (both days inclusive), respectively, during which periods no transfer of shares will be

registered.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming AGM, all unregistered shareholders
of the Company shall lodge transfer documents with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
7 May 2018.

In order to qualify for receiving the proposed 2017 Final Dividend (subject to the approval by
the Shareholders at the AGM), unregistered shareholders of the Company shall lodge transfer
documents with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at the above mentioned address for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,

I3 June 2018.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company and its subsidiaries during

the year of 2017 are set out in Note |0 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year 2017 are set out in
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, of which details of reserves available for distribution
to equity Shareholders are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The Company's
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders as at 3| December 2017 represents the

retained profits of approximately RMB777.0 million (2016: RMB483.7 million).

DONATIONS
During the Reporting Period, the Company and its subsidiaries made external donations of

approximately RMBO0.2 million (excluding personal donations of employees).

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 3|

December 2017 are set out in Note 20 to the Financial Statements.

INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The partial information and the biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management

of the Company are set out on page 27 to page 36 of the Annual Report.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the

independent non-executive Directors to be independent of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into service contracts with the Directors. The principal particulars of
these service contracts are () each of the contracts is for a term of three years following each
Director's respective appointment date; and (2) each of the contracts is subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed under the Articles

of Association and applicable rules.

The Company has entered into contracts with the Supervisors in respect of, among others,
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and provisions of

arbitration.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into a contract of service
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statuary compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The remuneration of each executive Director are determined pursuant to the decisions of the
shareholders’ general meeting, and with reference to the duty, responsibility and performance of the
executive Directors, results of the Group and other factors which may be considered as relevant
and appropriate. The non-executive Directors do not receive remuneration from the Company.
The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors are determined with reference to
their duties and responsibilities within the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy and the

prevailing market conditions.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors in 2017 are set out in Note 7 to the
Financial Statements. None of the Directors or Supervisors waived any emoluments during the year

ended 3| December 2017.

Details of the emoluments of each senior management of the Company (excluding Directors who

also hold executive positions) in 2017 are set out below:
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Wages, salaries and schemes
allowances ERERMRER Total
ITE RS2 FTEIHRR Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Mr. Li Shuang Deputy general manager 20 I'5 23%
FREL IS
Ms. Xue Lian Supervisor 86 12 98
3 ko BE
Mr. Lei Xiantong Chief financial official 258 I5 205
BEMEL BTG R
Mr. Pan Sanxiong Secretary of the Board 221 12 233
WA EEgWE
Total et 787 54 841
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

At the end of the year of 2017 or at any time during the year, there were no transactions,
arrangement or contracts of significance subsisting in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, directly or indirectly, and in which any Director or

Supervisor (or an entity connected with any Director or Supervisor) had a material interest.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits

by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
For the year 2017, none of the Directors or their associates had any competing interests in any
business that constitutes or may constitute direct or indirect competition with the Company'’s

businesses.

EEREERRS - ZHRSNHER

201 74 REF R RO ERERRE - ARA R A
BRAMESET VR EETHAER(HEZEENK
EEERENER) ERIMERENEr - A
SEXBEH  BNDABRNEER S - THHE
# e

BAR G REREE 2 L5

ARRAT -~ EERA RS EAEAHE A B kR RS
R AR F AR RSS2 ET I E A B BUe
AABERAEBARRRREMEMEAREZ

Bein Sk fErERE & o

EERBIERNES
ROI7FER - HEEZREFHBEAERKRF
EEr B E R R F N ARG EAE

R -
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including those taken or deemed as their interests and short position in accordance with
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant

to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

shares/underlying

EEERE

ES  EERESTHASERS - AERORE
EEREENERRAA

20174 12A318 » THESE  BEERAD AR
TBABEARARREEMBEEZE(EERLES
KERGIGHIZEXVER) BIRR - B BB Sk &R E
HERAREEF L EROIEXVEIET R AP
GAR A KRBT A S kAR (RIERRIEES
KRB RAINZ SR TERR BRI FER R &
W) - AR S R EEGIE3526EH A
{EBIFTR R AN A R B 69 & R A R i es ROA B -
SHBAR BT AE ST BI A& AR 1 B R Bt 32 P R 2 Bk

i

kog

Approximate

Number of Approximate percentage of

percentage of relevant class

shares held total issued of shares capital

(shares) share capital HEER

wERE AR R

Name of Director Types of Shares  Capacity HERA BB BHAFEIL
EEpE gyl 54 2B (R) (%) (%)
Mr. Mo Kit! H Shares Interest in controlled corporation 75,000,000 (L) 16.59% 3321%
ERELE HA% AR R 75,000,000 (L) 16.59% 3321%

(8] — Long position (L) —4FE

The calculation is based on the total number of 452,022,850 shares in issue of the Company, as at

31 December 2017, comprising 226,200,000 Domestic Shares and 225,822,850 H Shares.

Note:

Mr. Mo Kit owned 100% equity interest in North & South Brother Investment Holdings Limited and
is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by North & South Brother Investment

Holdings Limited.

STETREARARR20174 12831 BHE TR
42 £7452,022,850% M 1S I+ B35226,200,000% A&
% X%225,822,850& HA% ©

B EE -

FERFERMNorth & South Brother Investment Holdings
Limited i | 00%/i% AN 2S » 0 4%4R A5 North & South
Brother Investment Holdings Limited FT 5 A 2 I {7 #
HHEREE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, none of the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including those taken
or deemed as their interests and short position in accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register kept by the
Company referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, to the knowledge of the Directors, the persons (other than the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) who have an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

% EXFRESN  R20175E 128318 BEEM
M WEZE  EERAQARSTRAERER

Al AR EE (E& R &5 R AE GRPIZEXY

BB R - R D EEE T EEARER
N EGEPIEXVERSE7 K 55857 #R A& AN A &) K fE 2
PrevEzROR R (BREREREE S B GHIMZ

FRENARIESEENERLRR) - HAR

1578 75 M HA S 5RM 55 352 5R BB B 16k 9 Pt | 7R
ARFENETMANERIOAR - HARBIRE

RIS AR R RHE R PTE R SO R ©

FTERRABRMDHIER
R2017F 128318 * MEZEFRA » TAAL(E
= EEYAQNARETERABRIN RAAR B

DR P FEA AR IR 5 X B R PIEXVED
FARFEIDAMARRWENERIAR - R
RIRIRE S R ERPIE3366A T HERERF

oREmiiifols 2

Number of

shares/underlying

AR

Approximate
percentage of

relevant class

Approximate
percentage of

total issued

shares held of share capital share capital

(shares) 1BEA%E R 28T

wERG, RAKY RA A Y

Name of shareholders Types of shares  Capacity 1HEARR 1D BABDL BHESE
REREHE gl g% 2B (R) (%) (%)
Parent Company* Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
[SYNG NER ERERA 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation 226,200,000 (L) 1009% 50.04%

Investment Co., Ltd. *2

MERGREXRERRA AR WA R EE R 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
Shenzhen HEC Industrial*? Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
RYTERG KB E* MERK X EE RS 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
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Approximate

Approximate

Number of percentage of percentage of
shares/underlying relevant class total issued
shares held of share capital share capital
(shares) HEEER B#T
BERG, JRA< #Y R
Name of shareholders Types of shares  Capacity THER R 17 BREs T BRES
BRRER gyl % 2B (R) (%) (%)
Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.2
REREAGBRETESE WA R EE R 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
BEAR?
Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
Xinjing Technology Development
Co, Ltd?
R BRI R R WER R EE R 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
BRAR?
Mr. Zhang Zhongneng® Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
R A A ME R I EE R 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
Ms. Guo Meilan* Domestic Shares Interest in controlled corporation 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%
Ellisl e WERR SR EE RS 226,200,000 (L) 100% 50.04%

75,000,000 (L)

e

S Al P i I

1659%
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Approximate Approximate

Number of percentage of percentage of

shares/underlying relevant class total issued

shares held of share capital share capital

(shares) THEER! 21T

BER®B, BRAHY R 2BEEH

Name of shareholders Types of shares  Capacity THEA R 17 IR BMABA

RER&EH gl =40} 2B (R) (%) (%)

Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric H Shares Interest in controlled corporation 15,503,000 (L) 6.87% 343%
Co, Ltd#

Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Hi% G EE R 5,503,000 (L) 6.87% 3.43%
Ca, ILiigl®

AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. H Shares Interest in controlled corporation 15,503,000 (L) 6.87% 343%

AUX Holdings Co,, Ltd$ HA% AR 15,503,000 (L) 6.87% 3.43%

Mr. Zheng Jianjiang® H Shares Interest in controlled corporation 15,503,000 (L) 6.87% 343%

EPERT 5 s Hi% AR R 15,503,000 (L) 6.87% 3.43%

Ms. He Yiju” H Shares Interest in controlled corporation 15,503,000 (L) 6.87% 343%

ARt Hi% AR R 15,503,000 (L) 6.87% 3.43%

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited® H Shares Interest in controlled corporation 17,260,000 (L) 7.64% 3.82%

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited® HAR AR 17,260,000 (L) 7.64% 3.82%

e B EREREEEER AR H Shares Other 1,705,490 (L) 5.18% 2.59%

HeRRREREEEERAR HAR Hit 1,705,490 (L) 5.18% 2.59%

China International Capital H Shares Interest in controlled corporation [1,705490 (L) 5.18% 2.59%

Corporation Limited”
BB S BRI AR AR’ HAR X EE R 11,705,490 (L) 5.18% 2.59%

) — Long position L) R
The calculation is based on the total number of 452,022,850 shares in issue of the Company as at st A JIARIEARARR20174 12 31 BHIE Z1T

3| December 2017, comprising 226,200,000 Domestic Shares and 225,822,850 H Shares. #880452,022, 850 M 5 i » B5226,200,0008 WE
% $2225,822,8508% HA% °
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Notes: gz -

Mr. Tang Xinfa is a director of the Parent Company, Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd, and
Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhu Yingwei is a director of the Parent Company
and Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd..

The shareholding information of the shareholders of the Company as at 3|1 December 2017 are based on
the information recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO.

As at 31 December 2017, Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd. owned 60.70% equity
interest in the Parent Company, therefore Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd. is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by the Parent Company. Shenzhen HEC Industrial owned 100%
equity interest in Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd, therefore Shenzhen HEC Industrial is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Linzhi HEC Pharmaceutical Investment
Co., Ltd.. Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. owned 42.34% equity
interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial and 58% equity interest in Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment
Company Limited, which owned 27.01% equity interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial, therefore Ruyuan
Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares
which are interested by Shenzhen HEC Industrial. Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology
Development Co., Ltd. owned 30.66% equity interest in Shenzhen HEC Industrial and 42% equity interest
in Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment Company Limited, which owned 27.01% equity interest in
Shenzhen HEC Industrial, therefore Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology Development

Co,, Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Shenzhen HEC Industrial.

As at 3|1 December 2017, Mr. Zhang Zhongneng (“Mr. Zhang'") owned 99.69% equity interest in Ruyuan
Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd., therefore Mr. Zhang is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Yuneng Electric
Industrial Co., Ltd.

As at 3|1 December 2017, Ms. Guo Meilan (“Ms. Guo"”) owned 99.51% equity interest in Ruyuan Yao
Autonomous County Xinjing Technology Development Co,, Ltd. therefore Ms. Guo is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by Ruyuan Yao Autonomous County Xinjing Technology
Development Co., Ltd.. Ms. Guo is the spouse of Mr. Zhang and is deemed to be interested in the Shares
which are interested by Mr. Zhang under the SFO.

As at 3| December 2017, North & South Brother Investment Holdings Limited owned 100% equity
interest in North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment Company Limited and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by North & South Brother Pharmacy Investment Company
Limited.

BB ERTRR  WERGHAEXRERRA
ARAITREAEXFEREBRARMNES - RE
BAERBDRARMEZRGAEEREFRATN
B=-

2017512 A31 BARA RIRER U5 AR & B DR IR AR
NAIERFEF R KAIFE2MEE FHFHER
ATREERA B RS ©

R2017F 128318 MEZRGAEZKEER AT
B &R R60.70%M IR AR - Fit - SR
BEREREBRABWARRNE R RIPIFE ZRH
BEHERER - ATREABEXEAMNS RIS EERE
REBRDA]100%M AL - Bt - RINTRE
HEEFER AN ERGHEEREARAAER
BENROTHEE#ER - ILRERBAGERE
FEEARRDEGRIITRE N E 42346
1 75 N ¥ A Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment
Company Limited (LB R I TR IS5 B 22701%
ARANHE R ) S8% R A e - AL ILREREAGS
HETEXARAAERAN AT RGN EEE
HEBRRG AR o LRERBAFH "B
RERA R D AHEGRIIT RS B 3£30.66%MR A
1 7 N ¥ A Shaoguan Xinyuneng Industrial Investment
Company Limited (LB R I TR IS5 X B H2701%
ARAME &R ) 2% AR AN M - B LR IR B G%FT R
BIRERERATNERANRYMREGHAEEE RS
BENRDPHEEER -

M2017F 1274318 » skhaeE([REEDHEEI
RERE ARG B E TEEBRAR9.69%R A
= AR EWE ARILREREAEBEET
BEERAR B A NRNDPES B -

R20174F 128318 - ML ([P DEEI
IREEIR BRSBH AR R B RARARF9.51 %R A
g o E R TR AR ILIRE R B8 SR R
BERAERATNERBEANBROHES#R - BRE
AREEZER - BREFSFEHEGEAIRRSR
REEMBE SRR h AR °

72017412431 B * North & South Brother Investment
Holdings Limited # A Fdt B EEBR EHR A A
|00% kA as - EMEAR R FEIL LR EXERER
PRA BIEA s AR RIS s o
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6. As at 31 December 2017, Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. owned 100% equity interest in 6.
Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
are interested by Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited. AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. and Mr.
Zheng Jianjiang owned 37.54% and 19.61% equity interest in Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd.
respectively. Mr. Zheng Jianjiang owned 70% equity interest in AUX Holdings Co., Ltd.. Therefore, AUX
Holdings Co., Ltd. and Mr. Zheng Jianjiang are deemed to be interested in Shares which are interested by
Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd.

7. As at 31 December 2017, Ms. He Yiju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang and is deemed to be interested 7.
in the Shares which are interested by Mr. Zheng Jianjiang under the SFO.

8. As at 31 December 2017, Bartley Investments Pte. Ltd. owned 100% equity interest in Ellington 8.
Investments Pte. Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by Ellington
Investments Pte. Ltd.. Tembusu Capital Pte. Ltd. owned 100% equity interest in Bartley Investments
Pte. Ltd. and Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited owned 100% equity interest in Tembusu Capital Pte.

Ltd.. Therefore, Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited and Tembusu Capital Pte. Ltd. are deemed to be

interested in Shares which are interested by Bartley Investments Pte. Ltd..

o As at 3| December 2017, China International Capital Corporation Limited owned 100% equity interest in %,
R 2B AT B B2 AR A R] and is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are interested by
P EREREREEEAR AR

720174 12 A31 B * Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric
Co, Ltd. # B Sanxing Electric (Hong Kong) Company
Limited 100% A% 7 4 2% - ifl #% 18 & 7 Sanxing
Electric (Hong Kong) Company Limited # & 1 z= &)
A&7 A #E A #Ea% © AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. [ #5221
% 4 5 Bl # B Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co.,
Ltd. 37.54% K 196 1% B ANtz - EIT R AR
AUX Holdings Co., Ltd. 70% A #E 2z o E L + AUX
Holdings Co., Ltd. & %8 B2 T 5% 4 ¥9 3% 4% & 7 Ningbo
Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. 75 # AR 1) =
B ©

20176 12A31 B A EH L+ R EET kAR
18 RIRFEFREAEEG] - #5158 AP B ER T 5 4
ERmARND PR o

2017512831 B - Bartley Investments Pte. Ltd A
Ellington Investments Pte. Ltd. 100% & AN 4z + B M
?EZEEE’\Engton Investments Pte. Ltd. %A 1z HIAX
DR EERERS ° Tembusu Capital Pte. Ltd. %5 Bartley
Investments Pte. Ltd. 100% % 7~ # #& @ i Temasek
Holdings (Private) Limited#E /5 Tembusu Capital Pte. Ltd.
100% AR A~ # 25 + B L + Temasek Holdings (Private)
Limited & Tembusu Capital Pte. Ltd. # 18 7 74 Bartley
Investments Pte. Ltd. A #E MR (D G #E 2% ©

2017F 128318 - HEERE RN AR AR %#

ER S EEREREETERR AR 009/ A -

AR AR S EREREERFRARES
BRI ER

Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2017, the Directors were not aware of any interests  Fx EXFT#ESIN » R2017F 12831 H » BEEFT

or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive

- MEEMAL(BRES  EFXARFARST

of the Company) in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be A BN RAR BIAX D sk HBRER% (5 ek EHE 5 P 1
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which are  HZBIRIEE 5 K HIE1EHIFEX VI 52 K& 535 2h[a24N

required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of A=A BERE(THERIAR » BN IREEZSFKL
the SFO. HEGHIE3B6IEAE T HIFNA R B & ez
KR ©
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contract concerning the management and administration of all or any substantial part of our

business was entered into by the Company or existed in 2017.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain non-exempt connected transactions during the year.

Connected Transactions

On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into the projects contracting agreement with Yidu
Shanchengshuidu Project Construction Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Shenzhen HEC Industrial and a
connected person of the Company, in relation to the expansion of the APIs production plant at
Yidu Base Area No. 2 (the “Expansion Project”) and the construction of a new insulin production
plant at Yidu Base Area No. 3 (the “Construction Project”). The total consideration under the
projects contracting agreement was RMB225,000,000, comprising of RMB 138,000,000 for the
Expansion Project and RMB87,000,000 for the Construction Project. For the reasons of entering
into the transaction , the terms of payment and other detailed information, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 24 February 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 24
March 2017.

On 27 March 2017, the Company entered into the equity transfer agreement with TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals (Beijing), a shareholder of the Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co.,
Ltd. (“"Dongguan HEC TaiGen") and a connected person of the Company, to acquire 9% equity
interests in Dongguan HEC TaiGen held by TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals (Beijing). The consideration
of the equity transfer under the equity transfer agreement will be US$40 million or US$20 million,
subject to the results of the Phase Il clinical trials conducted by the Dongguan HEC TaiGen for the
Furaprevir and Yimitasvir Phosphate. For the reasons of entering into the transaction , the terms of
payment and other detailed information, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated

27 March 2017.
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TR ([ TAR 1) I 72 B AP E 3t = 55% st B35 1 R
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T BIEERE TR AR 1380000007T REETZ
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Croup has conducted certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions during the year:

AEERFAET T ETIHERRHEFERS

Annual caps

Actual transaction

value in 2017

for 2017 (RMB million)
(RMB million) 201751
Connected transactions under Connected persons 201 7FEFE LR BRRXZE
BER5EHE BEAL (AR®EBEET) (AREBEETT)
Energy Purchase Parent Company 9.506 7.072
Yichang HEC Power Plant Co,, Ltd.
PREBREIR [SYNS] 9.506 7.072
HERGAANEERRAF]
Purchase of Packaging Materials and Parent Company 23.829 16473
Chemical Raw Materials Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing
Co,, Ltd.
SR B TR R LB R BAT 23829 16473
HEARS K BRER BRI R
Purchase of APIs Parent Company 19.000 2,367
PRI R 52 [SYNE] 19.000 2362
2017 Liquid Waste Processing Agreement Parent Company 2.5 2.137
2017 R FERR IR 5K ek {SYNC] 25 2137
Framework Equipment Purchase Agreement Yidu Changjiang Machine and Equipment 50 0.586
CionyiLital
RiEBEIEZR a8 HERITHMRBEAR AR 50 0586
Framework Pharmaceutical Products and Guangdong HEC Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. 8.0 2.594
APls Sales Agreement
B N R B AR IR e BERRG I EEER AT 80 2594
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Framework Energy Procurement Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework energy procurement
agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial in relation to the purchase of electricity and steam
from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and its subsidiaries from time to time. The framework energy
procurement agreement took effect upon the Listing Date and shall be valid for a period of
three years ended in 2017. On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into the 201 8-
2020 framework energy procurement agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial with a term

of three years, effective from | January 2018 to 31 December 2020.

Pricing Policy

According to the framework energy procurement agreement, the price for the electricity
to be charged under the framework energy procurement agreement was determined
with reference to the official written reply issued by Yidu Price Bureau (E#TH#IER)
in response to the pricing enquiry of the electricity and steam submitted by Yichang HEC
Power Plant Co., Ltd. in 201 | (the “Reply”), which provided the reference price of electricity
of RMB0.383 per kWh. The price for the steam to be charged under the framework energy
procurement agreement will be determined pursuant to the price range of RMB85 per ton

to RMBI 35 per ton as prescribed by Yidu Price Bureau in the Reply.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

prospectus of the Company dated |5 December 2015.

Framework Packaging and Chemical Materials Purchase Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework packaging and chemical
materials purchase agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial in relation to the purchase of
certain packaging and chemical materials from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and/or its associates
(other than the Group) for the packaging and manufacturing of our pharmaceutical
products. The framework packaging and chemical materials purchase agreement took effect
upon the Listing Date and shall be valid for a period of three years ended in 2017. On 24
February 2017, the Board resolved to adjust the original annual cap for the year 2017 under
the framework packaging and chemical materials purchase agreement from the existing

RMB18,829,000 to RMB23,829,000.
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On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into the 2018-2020 framework packaging
and chemical materials purchase agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial with a term of

three years, effective from | January 2018 to 3| December 2020.

Pricing Policy

According to the framework packaging and chemical materials purchase agreement, when
selecting supplier of the packaging and chemical materials, the Company obtains quotations
from our connected person as well as from at least two independent third party suppliers.
During the Reporting Period, the price and terms offered by our connected person were fair

and reasonable and comparable to those offered by such independent third party suppliers.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

prospectus of the Company dated |5 December 2015.

Framework APl Purchase Agreement

On 6 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework APl purchase agreement
with Shenzhen HEC Industrial for the purchase of certain APIs from Shenzhen HEC Industrial
and/or its subsidiaries (other than the Group) for the production of our pharmaceutical
products, mainly azithromycin, clarithromycin and roxithromycin products. The framework
API purchase agreement took effect upon the Listing Date and shall be valid for a period of
three years ended in 2017. On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into the 2018-
2020 framework APl purchase agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial with a term of

three years, effective from | January 2018 to 31 December 2020.

Pricing Policy

According to the framework API purchase agreement, when selecting supplier of the API,
the Company obtains quotations from our connected person as well as from at least two
independent third party suppliers. As the Company is also engaged in manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products industry, we are familiar with the market price of relevant APls
required for the production. During the Reporting Period, the price and terms offered by
our connected person were fair and reasonable and comparable to those offered by such

independent third party suppliers.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

prospectus of the Company dated |5 December 2015.

56 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERB X R IHEXRAER AT

R2017F 128228 » ARRIERIIREGRE
FET720184F —2020FF HEZR B 5 oL BB AT &Y
BEZ  RE=F  520I8F I AIHRE
MZE20208 12 A31 BE °

EEEE

REBEERBERCEMHBE R - 1NE2
BEMMBYMHEERER - NARREZEA
TRESMBBLE=TTHEMZIEE -
RiEBA - HFIAORIEA LPTIRHAVER
MGRBATFAEIE  WRZFBIE=T7H

BRfiREERE

AR SEHRAMFS  FLEARF A
HAR20155 12 15 H B EAR

ERFRIEEE

R20I5F 12868 - AR EERIITERE K
EEETERRMEBERZ - NEEHM
RYTRE A EER,REKERE (K%
BRINBERERHMEANEESEY - +
ERMEER RNBRRBABSRER °
BERRBABEHRZER LB BHERRE
Z017F L= EFEHMB R - B20175F 12
A28 - ARRIERIIRE KR ERFT L2018
F—200FERRHEBE N - A=
F - 820185 | A | BABAERE20204 12 A3
B °

EEEFE

REIERER ZEE W  BIEFERHEMRE
B AR BAMEA LT REDMBEL
F=THERZRIRE - ANRMATERE
Y ETRE  RPIRMEERFTHERR
RENTE - RBMEHA - BANEEAL
Frie it ERRIGREAFAE  WHEZE
BYF=THERMRRHERS -

BARSEHRREMEE - F2HAAAA
B3A20154E 128 IS B HBIRETR -



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2017 Liquid Waste Processing Agreement

On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into the 2017 liquid waste processing
agreement with the Parent Company, pursuant to which, the Parent Company has agreed to
provide liquid waste processing service to the Company. The term of the 2017 liquid waste

processing agreement is from 24 February 2017 to 31 December 2019.

Pricing Policy
The Parent Company will only charge the service fees based on the actual cost incurred,
which is more favorable than the term that can be obtained by the Company from

independent third parties.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

announcement dated 24 February 2017 of the Company.

Framework Equipment Purchase Agreement

On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into the framework equipment purchase
agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to
purchase customized equipment from Shenzhen HEC Industrial and/or its associates. The
term of the framework equipment purchase agreement is from 24 February 2017 to 3|

December 2019.

Pricing Policy

Under the framework equipment purchase agreement, the price for the customized
equipment will be determined with reference to the Consumption Quota and Unit Pricing
Table for General Installation Works in Hubei Province (it A BALE T2 EFEETE
8N B {H{EZR)) issued by the Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of Hubei Province in 2013. The Consumption Quota and Unit Pricing Table provides pre-
determined formulas for service fees calculation by setting out each category of fees to be

charged and the formula for calculating the fees in different scenarios under each category.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

announcement dated 24 February 2017 of the Company.
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6. Framework Pharmaceutical Products and APIs Sales Agreement
On 24 February 2017, the Company entered into the framework pharmaceutical products
and APIs sales agreement with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, pursuant to which, Shenzhen HEC
Industrial and/or its associates have agreed to purchase pharmaceutical products and APls
from the Company. The term of the framework pharmaceutical products and APIs sales

agreement is from 24 February 2017 to 3| December 2019.

Pricing Policy
As the Company also sells pharmaceutical products and APIs to independent third parties,
the fees to be charged shall not be lower than the price charged to any independent third

parties.

For the reasons of entering into the transaction and other details, please refer to the

announcement dated 24 February 2017 of the Company.

Review by and Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected

transactions, and confirmed that such transactions were:
0] carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) made on normal or better commercial terms (as defined in the Listing Rules); and

(i) carried out according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements, which are fair and

reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

External auditor’s report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on page 54 of the Annual Report in
accordance with Listing Rule [4A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the

Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 26 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Apart from the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
as disclosed in this Annual Report, none of the related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules, which
are subject to the requirements of announcement or independent shareholders' approval. The
Company has complied with disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter |4A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the connected transactions and the continuing connected transactions as set out

in the Annual Report.

NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

The Company had entered into a non-competition agreement on 6 December 2015 (the “Non-
Competition Agreement”) with the Controlling Shareholders, under which our Controlling
Shareholders agreed not to, and to procure its subsidiaries (other than the Group) not to, compete
with us in our businesses and granted us options to acquire the businesses of production and sale
of APIs and overseas sale of pharmaceutical products operated by the Parent Company and/or its

subsidiaries (other than the Group) and certain future new business.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their compliance with

the Non-competition Agreement for disclosure in this report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-competition Agreement and
had determined that the Controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the Non-competition

Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) did not make any decisions in relation to whether to exercise or terminate an

option or a right of first refusal and take up or waive any business opportunity.
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STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENT

We refer to the section headed “Business” in the prospectus of the Company dated |5 December
2016. As disclosed in the prospectus, we have entered into the Strategic Cooperation Agreement
with Shenzhen HEC Industrial, pursuant to which we have a pre-emptive right to acquire the
right to manufacture and sell new pharmaceutical products being developed by HEC Research
Group (including Yichang HEC Research Co,, Ltd. (B &ERFZ ) ZEM 2B R A 7)), Linzhi HEC
Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd. (WA= HREG L BEZEIRE AR A A]) and their respective
subsidiaries, being the subsidiaries of Shenzhen HEC Industrial). During the year of 2017, in
consideration of the R&D progress of new products conducted by the HEC Research Group and
the Company’s product strategy, the Company didn't exercise the pre-emptive right under the

Strategic Cooperation Agreement.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total amount of procurement from the five largest
suppliers of the Company accounted for 44.8% of the total amount of procurement of the year.
Among the five largest suppliers for the year of 2017, Yichang HEC Power Plant Co., Ltd. and
Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd. are subsidiaries of Shenzhen HEC Industrial; the
single largest supplier was Shaanxi Jiahe Phytochem Co., Ltd. and our purchase from that company

accounted for 17.7% of the total purchase amount during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total amount of sales to the five largest customers of
the Company accounted for 23.3% of the total revenue of sales of the year. The sales to the largest

customers accounted for 8.8% of the total revenue of sales of the year.

Save as disclosed above, during the year of 2017, to the knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their close associates, or Shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares of the Company) had interests in

the five largest suppliers or customers of the Company.

MAJOR ACQUISITION

On 27 March 2017, the Company entered into the equity transfer agreement with TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals (Beijing), a shareholder of the Dongguan HEC TaiGen, to acquire 9% equity
interests in Dongguan HEC TaiGen held by TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals (Beijing). The consideration
of the equity transfer under the equity transfer agreement will be US$40 million or US$20 million,
subject to the results of the Phase Il clinical trials conducted by the joint venture for the Furaprevir
and Yimitasvir Phosphate. For detailed information, please refer to the announcement of the

Company dated 27 March 2017.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year of 2017 had the Company or any
of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance with the Controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered into for the services provided

by the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME
Please refer to the Note 5(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements for detailed information on

the retirement and employee benefits scheme.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
As a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company always strives to maintain a high level of
corporate governance and complied with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as

set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained a public float of no less than 25% of the issued shares as at

the date of this Annual Report, which was in line with the requirement under the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Proceeds from the Global Offering

According to the final results of the global offering of the Company (the “Global Offering”), the net
proceeds raised from the Global Offering are approximately HK$1,307.5 million (approximately
RMB,095.4 million).

In view of the relatively low interests rate on deposits and in order to enhance the efficiency of
use of the net proceeds from the Global Offering and avoid exchange loss, based on the latest
construction budget for the new oral formulation production plant and new insulin production
plant, the Board resolved on 22 December 2017 to reallocate the unutilised net proceeds originally
allocated to (i) new oral formulation production plant and (i) promotional and marketing activities
of approximately RMB701.4 million for (i) the new insulin production plant and (ii) working capital
and general corporate purposes, including the payment of the patent royalties in connection with

oseltamivir phosphate and cash dividends to the Shareholders.
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As at 31 December 2017, details of utilization of the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering

are as follows:

R2017F 128318 2IRBEEMGHIEFENER

FIEAT

Revised allocation
of use of net proceeds

(Approximate

Utilized amount as
at 31 December 2017

(Approximate

RMB million) RMB million)

FEREFE REE2017F12831H

ARNEET HWEBREE

(WAR¥EBEET) (WAR¥EET)

New oral formulation production plant 30 PR A= 2= TR 3000 67.5
New insulin production plant FREEZEETR 3287 454
Promotional and marketing activities HEE R EEE 136.1 1359
Working capital and general corporate purposes LiEE R —REERE 330.6 301.1
Total st 1,095.4 549.9

Proceeds from the Subscription RBAERE

On 16 December 2016, the Company entered into the capital increase agreement with the Parent
Company, pursuant to which, the Company conditionally agreed to issue and allot, and the Parent
Company conditionally agreed to subscribe in cash for, an aggregate of 1,200,000 new Domestic

Shares at the subscription price of RMBI6.12 per new Domestic Share (the "“Subscription”).

The Subscription completed on [0 February 2017. The net proceeds from the Subscription was
approximately RMB18.29 million. Such net proceeds from the Subscription has been utilized as
described in the sections headed “(F) Use of proceeds” and “(G) Reasons for and Benefit of the
Proposed Subscription” in the circular of the Company dated 20 January 2017 to supplement the

general working capital of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
For the year ended 3| December 2017, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or
arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the

Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company includes two independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Tang Jianxin and Mr. Lee Chi Ming and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Tang Xinfa. With
professional qualification and experience in finance, Mr. Tang Jianxin was appointed as the chairman
of the audit committee. The primary duties of the audit committee are to make independent
recommendations on the effectiveness of our financial reporting procedures, internal control and
risk management systems and maintaining good relationship with external auditors of the Group, so as
to assist the Board, supervise the audit process and perform other responsibilities and related duties
assigned by the Board. The audit committee will meet with the external auditors of the Company
and in-house auditors, and review their plans, internal audit procedures, their results of audits and

review of the risk management and internal supervision system.

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the Group’s 2017 annual results announcement,
the Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

prepared in accordance with the IFRS.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the environment and the society.
In recognition of the potential climate impact due to manufacturing of pharmaceutical products,
the Company strives to enhance the environmental performance of its pharmaceutical products
manufacturing and development through eco-friendly operational measures as well as supporting
a number of external charters with regard to energy efficiency and carbon reduction. In addition,
during the Reporting Period, the Group had continually increased investment in research and
development, upgrading its technology, improved production process, focused on the establishment
of drug quality system, extended the life cycle of pharmaceutical products and lowered the cost in
order to offer safe, efficient, affordable pharmaceutical products and services. The Group constantly
strengthened environment protection, optimized the production process and improved the
utilization rate of the production facilities for the purposes of energy saving, emission reduction and
environment protection. The Group emphasized harmonious development with nature to protect
the sustainable development of the environment. The Group also improved clean production as
well as environmental protection construction, and proactively supported environmental protection

and charitable matters in the community.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory requirements and the risk of
non-compliance with such requirements could lead to the termination of operating licences. The
Group has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators effectively through effective
communications. During the year of 2017, the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge,
with all relevant rules and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company, including but
not limited to the Company Law of the PRC, the Securities Law of the PRC, the Code of Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies, the Listing Rules, the Law of the PRC on the Administration
of Drugs, the Measures for the Administration of Drug Registration and the Good Manufacture

Practice of Drugs.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees, customers and business associates are keys to our
sustainable journey. We strive to achieve corporate sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality services for our customers, collaborating with business partners and supporting our

community.

The Company places significant emphasis on human capital. The Company provides a fair workplace,
promoting non-discrimination and diversity to our staff, together with competitive remuneration
and benefits, as well as a range of opportunities for career advancement based on employees’
merits and performance. The Company administers its employee health and safety management
system and ensures the adoption of the principles across the Group. The Company provides regular
trainings for staff to keep them abreast of the latest developments in the market and industry, in the

form of both internal trainings and trainings provided by experts from external organizations.

To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-oriented culture within the Company,
we take ‘Customer First’ as one of our core values. We value the feedback from customers through
daily communication, regular inspections and etc. We have also established the mechanism about
customer service, support and complaints. When dealing with a customer complaint, we treat it as
an opportunity to improve our relationship with the customer, addressing the concem in a timely

manner and in accordance with international standards.
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We believe that our suppliers are equally important in driving quality delivery of our products. We
proactively collaborate with our business partners (including suppliers and contractors) to deliver
quality sustainable products and services. We have included certain requirements in our standard
tender documents. These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices, anti-
corruption and other business ethics. We assure the performance of our suppliers through supplier
approval process and by conducting factory audits/site visits and spot checks on the delivered goods

at site during the contractual periods.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2017 have
been audited by KPMG who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company’s auditors will be proposed
for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM. The Company did not change the auditor for

the past three years.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Summary of results of operation and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial

years is set out on page 3 in the Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board

YiChang HEC ChangJiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

BYREEZEERENER  HEBNACRTRHE
BEE - AMRBEEBBH (REHER AR
) A 1E - R EE TR AR Em RARES © B
RIBEXHFETHETRE - BRETER T
RMTA - BRI REMEEEE TR - &
FEBEEENIZER AR THEMRERE
ZEHEERR - WRA MRS AE 2 EmE
RS ERUER KA -

23 (1
REEEZ2017F 12831 BIEFELREMEHREA
2R EHMER - RERGHHEBHE
RIRFBFERGRE  HEAERIT BB EERE
- ARBEESHGRMEBHITARR IR
WRAER  BREERREFAE LIRR - ARF]
IR E = I 4 B HRAL SR o

MBEHE
AEBEBEREYRFEOLERE - BERAE
HEFIINAFIRHEIE

REESE

HERBARIRXROERDA



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ESg®RE

In 2017, all members of the Board of Supervisors of the Company complied with the requirement
of the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association, as well as relevant regulations to
diligently and honestly perform their duties. They independently exercised their power under the
law to ensure the standard operation of the Company and protect the interests of the Company
and the investors. The Board of Supervisors supervised the Company's operation plans, use of
proceeds from financing activities, connected transactions, production and operation activities of
the Company, financial position and performance of duty of Directors and senior management of
the Company as well as the operation of subsidiaries, and facilitated the compliant operation and
healthy development of the Company. The report of main works of the Board of Supervisors for

the year is set forth below:

[le BASIC ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY’S OPERATION AND
MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES AND PERFORMANCE IN 2017
In 2017, the Board of Supervisors strictly complied with the requirement of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association, the Rules of the Procedures of the Board of
Supervisors as well as relevant laws and regulations to honestly perform its supervise duties
in pragmatically protecting the interests and rights of the Company and the many minority

shareholders.

After having attended each of the meetings of the Board of Directors and the shareholders’
general meetings in 2017, the Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that the Board of
Directors has earnestly implemented resolutions of the shareholders’ general meetings and
faithfully performed fiduciary duties, it has not conducted any acts which would damage the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders. Each resolution of the Board of Directors
has been in compliance with the requirement of the Company Law of the PRC and other
laws and regulations as well as the Articles of Association. The Board of Supervisors
supervised the production and operation activities of the Company during its session period.
It considers that the management members of Company earnestly implemented every
resolutions of the Board with due diligence and conducted no acts of violation in the course

of business.

2 DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors held three meetings in aggregate:

(1)  On 20 March 2017, the first meeting of 2017 of Board of Supervisors was convened,
on which the resolutions in relation to Work Report of Board of Supervisors
for 2016, 2016 Final Accounts Report of the Company, The Plan Regarding
Dividend Distribution for 2016 and The Proposal Regarding Continuing Connected

Transactions for 2016 were considered and approved.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(2)  On 22 May 2017, the second meeting of 2017 of Board of Supervisors was convened,
on which the resolution in relation to the appointment of Mr. LUO Zhonghua as a

Supervisor of the Company in place of Mr. LIN Jian was considered and approved.

(3)  On 21 July 2017, the third meeting of 2017 of Board of Supervisors was convened,
on which the resolution in relation to the re-appointment of Ms. HUANG Fangfang as

the chairman of the Board of Supervisors was considered and approved.

3. THE SUPERVISORY OPINION FROM THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON
RELATED MATTERS OF THE COMPANY IN 2017
(1) Financial Conditions of the Company
The Board of Supervisors of the Company conducted inspection with regard to the
financial conditions of the Company's own segment and its subsidiaries after having
taken into account the actual situation of the Company in ways of hearing reports
from financial department and regular auditing and other methods, thus strengthening
the supervision over the Company'’s financial affairs. The Board of Supervisors of the
Company is of the view that the Company and each of its subsidiaries have established
their own independent financial departments with separate financial books and have
conducted auditing independently, and that they have complied with Accounting Law
as well as relevant financial regulations and rules. In 2017, the financial management of
the Company and each of its subsidiaries was carried out on a standard basis and the
accounting statements gave a true and accurate picture of the actual situation of the

Company and each of its subsidiaries.

(2) Details of Connected Transactions
During the Reporting Period of the current year, the ordinary connected transactions
between the Company and its connected persons have all been considered and
approved on the meetings of the Board of Directors or shareholders’ general
meetings (if applicable) of the Company. The connected transactions were carried
out in accordance with contracts or agreements in arm’s length with no damages to

the interests of the Company.

4. COMPREHENSIVE OPINION FROM BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON THE
COMPANY'’S SITUATION IN 2017

(1) During the Reporting Period, members of Board of Supervisors eamestly performed

duties and supervised the Board of Director’'s performance of duties and its

implementations of the Company's decision procedures by attending meetings of the

Board of Directors. The Board of Supervisors is of the view that each resolution and

decision procedure has been arrived by the Board of Directors in due compliance of

the requirements of the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association and

the Rules of the Procedures of the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are legal

and effective.
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(2)  During the Reporting Period, the senior management members of the Company
fulfilled their duties in accordance with the Articles of Association and relevant laws
and regulations of China. With aims to protect the interests of the Company and
its Shareholders, they earnestly implemented the resolutions of the Company's
general meetings, fulfilled obligations of fiduciary and due diligence so as to facilitate
the Company to carry out a standard operation, democratic decision, management
science, clear targeting and continuing innovation, having achieved favourable

economic benefits without acts of violation.

(3)  The Board of Supervisors has honestly reviewed the financial reports for 2017 and
other relevant information. It considers that such reports give an objective view of
the Company's financial conditions and operating results. The operating results of the

Company for 2017 are true and accurate and the control over cost is effective.

(4)  Opinion Regarding The Company's Self-Appraisal on Its Internal Control
The Company has, taking into account of the Company’s actual situation, established
and developed an internal control system that covers all areas of the Company
according to the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China and Articles of Association. Such system has ensured
that the Company's operating activities are in a normal and ordinary course and
has safeguarded the security and integrity of the Company's assets. The institutional
framework of the internal control of the Company is complete and the internal
auditing department and personnel allocation are in place, which has ensured that
the implementation of and supervision over key activities under the Company's
internal control are sufficient and effective. In 2017, no circumstances under
which the Company would violate the Guidelines for Internal Control of Listed
Companies and the internal control system of the Company occurred. The Board of
Supervisors considers that the Company’s self-appraisal on its internal control gives a
comprehensive and true picture of the actual situation of the internal control of the

Company.

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
HUANG Fangfang
Hubei, the PRC

23 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report as set out in the Company’s

annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance Shareholders’
value and safeguard Shareholders' interests. The Company’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal controls and accountability to

Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE
The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing

Rules during the year ended 3| December 2017.

The Company will review its corporate governance practices regularly to ensure its compliance with

the corporate governance code.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |10 to the Listing Rules as its

code regarding Directors’ and Supervisors' dealings in the Company's securities (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry to all of the Directors and Supervisors and all of the
Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code since the

Listing Date to 31 December 2017.

EEEMARSENARFEHE2017F 1283181k
FEREZDEE QRS -

AEEBNERSBERELCEER - RITEREE
RRERRER - ARR < BEERREBRETE
=g ARAREERABRREEZEEE -

TEERER
HBE0I7F1N2A3IBLEFEA - XARIEEFEN
FR AP 8 1 4ETE A ET A ST RIS »

NAEERRTEEEE AT - RRENS
% —n

JASPR °

. S
Ul

BETERESRESMETRSRS 2RETA

AATBRAETRAM K 0PT B MR EFANER
HERESEREZEREARAESH TR ([REST
all) e

ANAFIEMEEBESREEEHSTER M8
EERESHEMR  BEB LM HBRZE2017F
12A31 B 1IEE ESFZESFR) -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's strategic development, and determining the
objectives, business strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance in pursuit of the Group's strategic objectives. The Board
currently consists of nine Directors, comprising four executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The Directors who held office during the

year ended 3| December 2017 and as the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. JIANG Juncai

Mr. WANG Danijin

Mr. CHEN Yangui

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong (appointed on |6 June 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)

Mr. ZHU Yingwei (resigned on 9 May 2017)
Mr. MO Kit

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each

other.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors,

Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the Directors (including the non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company. The principal particulars of these service contracts are: (a) each of the contracts is
for a term of three years following each Director's respective appointment date; and (b) each of the
contracts is subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts

may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the applicable rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Up to the date of this report, the Board at all times complied with the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence

guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shall exercise the following functions and powers:

. To convene the general meetings, submit relevant matters to the general meetings for

passing, and report on its work to the Shareholders;

. To implement the resolution of the general meeting;

0 To decide on the business plans and investment schemes of the Company;

o To formulate the Company's proposed annual financial budget and final accounts;

. To formulate the Company'’s profit distribution plan and plan for making up for losses;

. To formulate proposals for the increase or reduction of the Company’s registered capital,

and plans for the issue of corporate bonds or other securities and the listing plan;

. To draw up plans for material assets acquisition or disposal, repurchase of the Company's

Shares, or merger, demerger, dissolution or change of the form of the Company;

. To decide on the establishment of the Company's internal management organization;

. To appoint or remove the Company's general manager and secretary of the Board; to
appoint or remove other senior management officers pursuant to the general manager's
nominations, and to determine the abovementioned matters relating to the remuneration,

incentives and punishments of the senior management officers;
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To formulate the Company's basic management system;

To formulate proposals for any amendment to the Articles of Association;

To decide on the matters such as merger, division, reorganization or dissolution of the

Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries and subsidiaries;

To change the use of the placement to the extent beyond the decision of the general

meeting as required by laws and regulations;

To decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and to appoint or

remove its person-in-charge;

To propose at the general meetings a resolution in respect of candidates for independent

Directors and replacement of independent Directors;

To propose at the general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of accountants’

firm conducting auditing for the Company;

To hear the work report and inspect the work of the general manager;

To manage information disclosure of the Company;

To formulate the equity incentive plan;

Save as otherwise required to be decided by the general meetings under laws and

regulations and the Articles of Association, the Board exercises its power to make decisions

on external investments (including capital increase and equity transfer of the invested

enterprises), financing, risk management and trust management, external guarantees, etc;

To decide on other major affairs of the Company, save for matters to be resolved at the

general meetings as required by the PRC Company Law and the Articles of Association;

To exercise other functions and powers as granted by the Articles of Association or the

general meetings of the Company; and

To conduct other matters as required by PRC laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition, the Board undertakes corporate governance function includes:

o To establish and review the Company’s corporate governance policies and codes;

. To review and supervise the training and sustained professional development of the

Company's Directors, Supervisors and senior management officers;

. To review and supervise the Company’s policies and practices in connection with compliance

with laws and regulatory requirements;

. To establish, review and supervise the codes of conduct and compliance handbook (if any)

applicable to Directors and employees;

. To review the Company's compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

and the disclosures made in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board had reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies and codes; the training
and sustained professional development of the Company’s Directors, Supervisors and senior
management officers; the Company’s policies and codes in connection with compliance with
laws and regulatory requirements and the Company’s compliance with the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices and the disclosures made in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Group’s management team, which possesses extensive operating experience and industry
knowledge, has been delegated by the Board with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day management of the Group. During the year, the Board considered and approved the annual
budget and its performance under management supervision together with the business reports from
the management. The Board also reviewed and approved the final results for the year ended 3|
December 2017 and other critical business operations. The Board also assessed the internal control

and the financial matters of the Group.

In addition, this corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge of its

corporate governance function.
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OPERATION OF THE BOARD EEerEE

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least 4 times each year. Such meetings shall be ~EEEGFE2 VAR ESH  HESEAE -

convened by the Chairman of the Board.

In case of any of the followings, the Chairman of the Board shall convene an interim meeting of the {34 RHI{EAIHIEK - EERKEFEEIRZER 0

Board of Directors within 10 days: HANBREERESEESE

. When proposed by Shareholders representing one tenth of voting rights or more; . KRB+ D Z2— A ERFEAI R IR

. When proposed by one third of Directors or more; . =HZ— A EREEHEIRE

. When the Chairman of the Board deems it necessary; . EERABENER

. When proposed by two or more independent Directors; . MBI LB SR ER

. When proposed by the Board of Supervisors; or . B eI Rh 5K

. When the General Manager proposes the convening of the interim meetings of the Board of . aiIBIR A e E e @ o
Directors.

To convene a regular or interim meeting of the Board of Directors, a written notice shall be sent ARESECHSRERENSE AR 48 AR
EREHAMIBMBNERES BEF -

an interim meeting. By written consent of all Directors present at the meeting, the above time limit ~ EHFEZMNEEEEEMRAEA - I X Ltk

EWAEREFTSHTOEMITMIE

responsible for serving the written meeting notice to all Directors and Supervisors by direct service, & @ BEZEERBA  BBEEXE - #HH &1

to all Directors and Supervisors |4 days prior to the date of a regular meeting or 3 days prior to =EE

may not be observed. The office or other department designated by the Board of Directors is RS - =

fax, e-mail or other means. If an interim meeting of the Board of Directors needs to be held quickly — E{FaiEEHEM AR - B EEEE EF - FRE

due to urgent circumstances, a meeting notice may be given at any time by telephone or other oral & - FEERRBMAEE SRS HH © A UABERE

methods, provided that the convener makes an explanation thereof at the meeting. BAEFEREEMOBESABELSZBN - BEEEA
EEESH LERERA -

Meetings of the Board of Directors may be held only if more than one half of the Directors are ~ EE & &#ES RBFLENESHEFE T I817 -
present. Each Director shall have one vote. Unless specified otherwise in the laws, administrative ~ ZEZEH —ZRAE - EBSEH RE - BARE
regulations or the Articles of Association, resolutions of the Board must be passed by more than TBERN AR EESEREN VAR RES
half of all the Directors. FOFERS SGELE]

Directors shall not vote the resolution on the approval of contract, arrangement or other T E TS ER F S HE B AGA EH 7
suggestions that they or their associates maintain interests inside (which shall not be included inthe ~ ZEH A W EZHREMEBZHN TR BRETE
quorum of the relevant meetings). Even though such Directors claim to vote, the votes will not be  SR(B B ABBEZHEEAH) @ BIFEE=ET
counted, unless otherwise specified in laws, administrative regulations, relevant regulatory regulations BERR NI EEERE - BEE - 1TTHBUE

or rules. - BEEEKPISGRRI S B R ERIBRI
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In 2017, the Board held eight meetings and the attendance records of Directors at the Board

meetings were as follows:

Name of Directors:

EEERWE

M2017F BEXGCHRTBREH  EFEHFES
SEHAHNRENT

Meeting attended/

Number of Board meetings convened

EEpE HEER CHESSSRH
Mr. Tang Xinfa ek it 8/8
Mr. Zhu Qiachong® RIGHFEED 4/8
Mr. Jiang Juncai B9 kA 8/8
Mr. Wang Danjin FrhEEAE 8/8
Mr. Chen Yangui FRIERE S AE 8/8
Mr. Mo Kit ENREE 8/8
Mr. Tang Jianxin BT A 8/8
Mr. Fu Hailiang ek 8/8
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TREARSLE 8/8
Mr. Zhu Yingwei() RIEEIEOD 4/8
Note®: Mr. Zhu Yingwei resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 9 May 2017. O REBEEDR2017F5 AIBFHEARRIIERITE

@: Mr. Zhu Qiaohong was appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 16 June
2017.

NOMINATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR

The Company has formulated a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of new
Directors to the Board. Nomination of new Director is first considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and then recommended to the Board
for consideration. All newly nominated Directors are subject to the approval of the Shareholders
at the general meetings of the Company. Removal of members of the Board are also subject to the

approval of the Shareholders at the Company's general meetings.

DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

The Directors are continually updated their knowledge on the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing
and professional development for Directors will be arranged by the Company where necessary.
Individual Directors also participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional development by way of

attending training courses or via online aids or reading relevant materials.

= o
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EHEE ©

EE5
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that they could make contribution to the
Board based on their possessing of comprehensive professional attainment. In 2017, the Directors
are committed to complying with the provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’ training. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional development and provided a record of

training they received.

The list below summaries the training received by the Directors for the year ended 3| December

ARRRBEF2HEFENERER - UBEREE
HRE MBS R - NERESERBEEBE
BB TAESSELER - 120175 - £F
BAR B ST ST AR ACSETE R - 2REFY
E2EBENEEEE - WERHESWIHE
FCE% -

LTI ESEREE2017F 12431 B ILEEEBES

2017 HsEzl -
Reading materials like newspaper,
Attending seminar, conference and journals and updates relevant
workshop related to director’s duties to corporate governance
Name of Directors HERESHEEENHNE - BIEER - BIANIRAR -
EEHS SERAWE MAREEERERENEN
Mr. Tang Xinfa R A Vv v
Mr. Zhu Qiachong RIS E v v
Mr. Chen Yangui RIS A& Vv v
Mr. Jiang Juncai B kA Vv Vv
Mr. Mo Kit ENEE v v
Mr. Wang Danjin FREEE v Vv
Mr. Tang Jianxin BT E Vv v
Mr. Fu Hailiang =k E v v
Mr. Lee Chi Ming LA Vv v
Mr. Zhu Yingwei() REFRFEO v v

Note®:  Mr. Zhu Yingwei resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 9 May 2017.

O REEFELECR2017FE5 AR BRI AN I EHITE
$ °
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

The roles and duties of the Chairman of the Board and the general manager of the Company are
separate and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the Articles of Association.
Mr. TANG Xinfa and Mr. JIANG Juncai act as the Chairman of the Board and the general manager

of the Company respectively.

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. TANG Xinfa, a non-executive Director is entitled to exercise the

following functions and powers:

0 To preside over Shareholder’s general meetings, to convene and preside over meetings of

the Board of Directors;

. To procure and inspect the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors;

. To sign the share certificates, corporate bonds and other negotiable securities issued by the
Company;

. To sign important documents of the Board of Directors and other documents to be signed

by the legal representative of the Company, and to exercise the functions and powers of the

legal representative;

o To organize and establish various systems and harmonize the operation of the Board of

Directors;

EERRAKE
EERNARABEENBRERMRD  XHTE
ALTHEE - BERRRIERBHEATE - FAELEER
IS REDIEEERRRARAIBLE -

EERRINTEEENRELEETETIIR
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. To hear the regular or non-regular work reports of the senior management officers of the

Company, and give guidance on the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of

Directors;
. To nominate the list of the secretary candidates of the Board of Directors; and
. Other functions and powers conferred by the laws, regulations or the Articles of Association,

and the Board of Directors.

Mr. JJANG Juncai, an executive Director and general manager of the Company, is responsible to the

Board of Directors and exercise the following functions and powers:

o To be in charge of the production, operation and management of the Company, and report

to the Board of Directors;

o To organize and implement the resolutions of the Board of Directors, annual business plans

and investment schemes of the Company;

o To prepare the annual financial budget plan, and final account plan of the Company, and

make recommendations to the Board of Directors;

o To prepare the basic management system and plan for establishment of the Company’s

internal management organization;

0 To formulate specific rules of the Company;

2 To request the Board of Directors to engage or dismiss other senior management officers;
and

o To engage or dismiss the responsible managers except those who shall be engaged or

dismissed by the Board of Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The Company had
established three Board committees, being the Nomination Committee, Remuneration and

Evaluation Committee and Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 4 to the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lee Chi Ming (an independent
non-executive Director), Mr. Zhu Qiaohong (an executive Director) and Mr. Fu Hailiang (an
independent non-executive Director), among whom Mr. Lee Chi Ming serves as the chairman of

Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition of the Board, assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations to the

Board on the appointment and removal of Directors.

The Company had adopted a diversification policy aims to set out the approach to achieve the
diversity of members of the Board to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a

merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified criteria, including but not limited to
sex, age, cultural and education background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
years of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible contribution that the selected

candidates will bring to the Board.
In 2017, the Nomination Committee held one meeting and the attendance record of Directors at

the Nomination Committee meeting was as follows:

Name of Directors

EEHA

EEERWE

REZEES
RRRIERE LT AR RIS | 4P B R B VA T RIAK
VREEREE  UHIEEEHBEEE - RBES8
SH=BKEMEK - IFEERALECBLIERNTE
F)  RIGAKREBTES) RIYERTECELIE
BITEER)  HhFERAEELFREZEENE
o

REZEENIERAER/ERETGNREAR
B ERTERNBIMARMNESSREE
EMERES -

ARBERBMETCBE  BREINEEZTGKES
b2 BH) - {EMIRFTE R MEL - AR RARL
EXEZTEHNETERNENEES - EABNRRE

BREABARRIESFTRABEERT - €k
SEROEBHNAE -  ARRNERBEAENRE
VEBHEEEXNES TINERMIFLESEX
e

REZBEBUZHTARSTEEZETERE &
BEDRNMUR - Fi - UERHBEER - Bk -
BRER - BB MRERRBEER - WIRES AR
AREFETRNERMMELRERE

R2W17F REZEFCBET-REH  EFHE
REZESGIRNENTHENAT ¢

Meeting attended/
Number of Nomination Committee convened

HEEE CBHREEZSETHRY

Mr. Lee Chi Ming FHEARLEE
Mr. Zhu Qiachong® RIGHGEER
Mr. Fu Hailiang ez AE
Mr. Zhu Yingwei(®) REFEFEO
Note:  Mr. Zhu Yingwei resigned as a non-executive director of the Company and member of Nomination

Committee with effect from 9 May 2017.

@: Mr. Zhu Qiaohong was appointed as an executive director of the Company and member of
Nomination Committee with effect from 16 June 2017.

In 2017, the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in accordance with
the requirements as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and concluded that the Board
comprised members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured balance and safeguarded
the interests of Shareholders as well as the public. In 2017, the Nomination Committee has
considered a number of aspects including diversification factors, and approved the nomination of
Mr. Zhu Qiachong as the executive Director of the Company and has submitted to the Board of

Directors for consideration and approval.

[/1
o/1
171
171

B0 REBEEER2017F5A9BBHERDRIERITE
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Remuneration and Evaluation Committee

The Company had established a Remuneration and Evaluation Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules. The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee consists
of three members, namely Mr. Fu Hailiang (an independent non-executive Director), Mr. Jiang Juncai
(an executive Director) and Mr. Tang Jianxin (an independent non-executive Director), among

whom Mr. Fu Hailiang serves as the chairman of Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are to advise on and formulate
the remuneration and evaluation policy in respect of Directors, senior management and other

managing members of the Group and make recommendations to the Board.

In 2017, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee held one meeting, at which the resolutions
in relation to the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management of the Company
in 2016 and the remuneration policy for the executive Directors and senior management for
2017 were discussed and proposed. The attendance record of Directors at the Remuneration and

Evaluation Committee meeting was as follows:

Name of Directors

FMRELESS

AR BARE LR RIFE3 256 A K& £ #7 Bkt 8%
|4PTE R EVAT RIS Fr N R E R E S| - Wl
EHEHBERE - HFMEERZE R =2KE
MR - BB A (B IETES) - BIHA %

ETES) RERN AL B IFNTES) &
RRESEEHEFMEERZEGNERE -

FMEERZE SN I EREARAEEES 5
ARETEAB R EADE IR B 5 M I TE Hr B L AT (i
MR - WREFEERHER

@i, &

==

20174 HFEEZZEGEHT K
i mEEREEEERAMNICFRRANTE
EREHREEETMAORER K201 7FHITESE K

EEENFHMECR - EEHEHMEEXES
BEHNEW LT -

Meeting attended/Number of Remuneration and

Evaluation Committee convened

EEng HEEE BHETMEERZEESSRAY
Mr. Fu Hailiang NpsErivtas /1
Mr. Jiang Juncai B4 e 1/
Mr. Tang Jianxin EEFLE /1
In 2017, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee assessed the performance of executive R2017%F - HMMEEZZ B BB TESHR

Directors, reviewed the remuneration policy, considered and approved the proposed 2018
Director’s fees for executive Directors and made recommendation to the Board on the Directors’

fees for non-executive Directors.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management
The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating policies on
remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the

Directors for the year ended 3| December 2017 are set out in Note 7 to the Financial Statements.

5 AT FIBOR - B A0 8F BT E R A
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Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) by bands for the year

ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration bands HKD

TREHFFIEZ2017F 12831 B IEFEREMED
NHFEREEAB(TRIEES)NEHH

Number of individuals

HFHER B AE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 TEIBEBT 2
Audit Committee EREES

The Company had established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.2 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Tang Jianxin (an
independent non-executive Director), Mr. Lee Chi Ming (an independent non-executive Director)
and Mr. Tang Xinfa (a non-executive Director), among whom Mr. Tang Jianxin serves as the

chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting system and
internal control procedures of the Company, review the financial information of the Company and

consider issues relating to the external auditors and their appointment.

The work performed by the Audit Committee in 2017 included review of the annual results of
the Company for the year ended 3| December 2016, interim results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2017. The Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system and making recommendation to the Board for

improvement of internal control, credit control and risk management.

ARFERE TR BIE3 21 RIA R =48 RIF 8%
4P EEATAIREREZE S - WHEEE
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In 2017, the Audit Committee held two meetings and the attendance records of Directors at the

Audit Committee meetings were as follows:

R0I17F + EZZESERITMADH -
ERZECSHAEMRHOT ¢

BERHRE

Meeting attended/

Number of Audit Committee convened

Directors
BEEpE

Mr. Tang Jianxin BT
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FERAKE
Mr. Tang Xinfa EREE A

In 2017, the Audit Committee reviewed, discussed and approved the annual results for the year
ended 3| December 2016 and the interim results for the period ended 30 June 2017. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the auditor's remuneration for 2017 and recommended the Board to
re-appoint KPMG as the Company's auditor for the year of 2018, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2017. The Directors consider that the Group
has sufficient resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and are not aware of
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concemn.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, inside information announcements and other disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s Consolidated Financial

Statements, which are put to the Board for approval.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the Company maintains sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets at all
times. In preparation for the Listing, we engaged an internal control consultant to perform certain
procedures in May 2015 in respect of assessing our internal control. Upon completion of such
procedures, the internal control consultant provided us with a number of assessment results and
the relevant recommendations, which we have adopted in full. In particular, we have adopted a
series of internal control policies, procedures and programmes designed to achieve effective and
efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Highlights of our internal control system include the following:

o Internal Audit. We put in place the internal audit charter that clearly states the objectives,
organisation, functions and responsibilities, working scope and procedures of our internal
audit functions. We established an internal audit department that is responsible for internal
auditing and execution of antibribery measures in accordance with the internal audit charter.

The internal audit department reports to our senior management and the Audit Committee.

0 Listing Rules Compliance. We have adopted various policies to ensure compliance with the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to corporate governance, connected
transactions, notifiable transactions, inside information and securities transactions by the
Directors. We have designated staff to monitor our compliance with Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations who have the power to investigate relevant incidents if any

and communicate with the related authorities or advisers.

. Code of Conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to each employee our values,
acceptable criteria for decision-making and our ground rules for behaviour. Our code of
conduct also includes whistle-blowing policies to encourage all employees to speak up against
any sub-standard behaviour. We also established an anti-money laundering management
group and a related working group that are responsible for monitoring and supervising the

implementation of our code of conduct and our anti-money laundering policies.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group to ensure that major risks that may impact on the Company's
performance are appropriately identified and managed to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of

failure to achieve business objectives. These measures are regularly reviewed and updated.

The Board, on the basis of the target setting, identifies the risks in the process of interal control
through daily and regular assessment procedures and methods, classifies the risks and prepares
the Company's risk list. The Company understands its obligations under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be announced immediately after
such information comes to our attention and/or it is the subject of a decision unless it falls within
the SFO safe harbours. Meanwhile, the Company has set up an inside information management
system, the insider internal reporting obligations, reporting procedures and liability of disclosure
of information of the personnel concerned has been clearly stated, and the Company shall
arrange self-examination in a timely manner in accordance with the provisions of the relevant
regulatory authorities. The real-time monitoring performed by the Company may involve the inside
information, and should organize intermediary agencies to determine whether the information
belongs to an inside information and practical, if it has fulfilled the disclosure requirements, will soon
organize the disclosure and will strictly control the scope of the monitoring before the disclosure,
the volatility of share price will be monitored until the disclosure of inside information is completed;
if the disclosure requirements are not satisfied, the Company will also maintain strict confidentiality.
The main functions of the risk management and internal control systems are to safeguard assets, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and provide reliable financial reporting, and to

ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The Company will review the internal control and risk management twice a year. The Board has
reviewed the internal control and risk management system for the year ended 3| December 2017

and confirmed its effectiveness and appropriateness.

The Company’s internal audit function is performed by the Internal Audit and Risk Department.
It is responsible for conducting independent reviews of the appropriateness and effectiveness of
the Company's internal control and risk management system. It also assesses the risks inherent in
particular business or functional areas, including fraud or corruption, and conducts reviews or audits
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance that adequate governance and controls are in

place to address such risks.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION BB &

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities for the — ZN/A BISNIB#Z BNETH A B8 E fiAR & B 7SR R BAIER
Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on page 96 to ~ FHAZRE (LRI R EH N F 962 98 B B[ B L 1% AR
98. HIA -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's  FN&R#=FNEHZE2017E 12831 BIEFEE - Xt FER

external auditor, KPMG, is set out below: TARRAIINEIZERAD 2 5 B & SR = ISPy N -
Amount
RMB
|
ARY
Annual audit services FEEZRE 1,300,000
Non-audit services IEEZIRT 600,000
Total fees BREsE 1,900,000
The non-audit services were interim review service. FEZIRE R BEM RS
GENERAL MEETINGS &N
During the Reporting Period, the Company held one annual general meeting, three extraordinary ~ RIREHIA - KRR ERIT T —AREBFAE -
general meetings, and the attendance records of the Directors at the general meetings were as = XRRBRREAEY  EEHFEREANSHIG R
follows: T
Meeting attended/
Name of Directors Number of general meetings convened
EEpA HESS BHEREASAH
Mr. Tang Xinfa ERTES SE A 4/4
Mr. Zhu Qiachong® KIgtt k4@ 2/4
Mr. Jiang Juncai B9 ek 44
Mr. Wang Danjin JE s as 4/4
Mr. Chen Yangui BRI ST A 4/4
Mr. Mo Kit ENELE 44
Mr. Tang Jianxin B 4/4
Mr. Fu Hailiang R AE 4/4
Mr. Lee Chi Ming ERRKE 4/4
Mr. Zhu Yingwei) KRB ELEO 2/4
Note:  Mr, Zhu Yingwei resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 9 May 2017. S0 REEEEBR2017F5AIBFHEAR R ERITE
=
@: M. Zhu Qiachong has been appointed as executive director of the Company with effect from 16 June @ RTHEER017F6 A 16 HEZERA D RIHAIT
2017. R
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is essential for enhancing
investor relations and investor understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication between

the Board and the Shareholders.

Shareholder rights
Right to propose to convene extraordinary general meeting
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders request for the convening of the

extraordinary general meeting or meeting of class Shareholders shall follow the procedure below:

Shareholders individually or jointly holding a total of 10% or more of the shares carrying the right
to vote at the meeting sought to be held may sign one or more written requests of identical form
and substance requesting the Board to convene an shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting or
a meeting of shareholders of different classes and state the subject of the meeting. The Board shall
convene an shareholders’ extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting as soon as possible after
having received the abovementioned written request. The shareholding referred to above shall be

calculated as of the day on which the written request is made.

If the Board fails to issue an announcement on the convening of meeting within 30 days after
receiving the above-mentioned written request, the proposing Shareholders are entitled to submit
a written request to the Board of Supervisors on the convening of Shareholders’ extraordinary

general meeting or meeting of the class Shareholders.

If the Board of Supervisors fails to issue an announcement on the convening of meeting within
30 days after receiving the above-mentioned written request, the Shareholders individually or
collectively representing 10% or more of the Company's voting Shares at the proposed meeting
for at least consecutive 90 days may convene the meeting on their own within four months after
the Board of Directors receives the request. The convening procedures shall be the same as the

procedures for the convening of Shareholders’ general meeting by the Board of Directors.

Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at the general meeting

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the total voting shares of the Company
shall be entitled to propose an interim resolution and submit the same to the convener. The
convener shall issue a supplemental announcement of shareholders’ general meeting within 2 days
after the receipt of such proposal and submit such interim resolution to the shareholders’ general
meeting for consideration and approval. The contents of an interim resolution shall fall within
the authority of the shareholders’ general meeting and maintain topics for discussion and specific

matters to be resolved.
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The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to communicate with the
Company:
Telephone number 86-769-81768866
Company website www.hec-changjiang.com
E-mail address pansanxiong82@dyg-hec.com

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

On 6 February 2017, the Company passed a resolution, among other things, to approve the
amendment to its Articles of Association, which was effective on |0 February 2017. The updated

Articles of Association was published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on

|0 February 2017.

On |3 October 2017, the Company passed a resolution, among other things, to approve the
addition to the business scope of the Company and corresponding amendment to its Articles of
Association, which was effective on 20 October 2017. The updated Articles of Association was

published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 20 October 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. PAN Sanxiong and Ms. NG Wing Shan act as joint company secretaries of the Company. For
the biography of Mr. PAN and Ms. NG, please refer to the section headed "Profiles of Directors,

Supervisors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

Ms. NG is an assistant vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited and her primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. PAN Sanxiong. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, each of Mr. PAN and Ms. NG has undertaken no less than |5 hours of relevant

professional training during the year ended 31 December 2017.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING
The Company had entered into a non-competition agreement on 6 December 2015 with the

Controlling Shareholders. Please refer to page 59 of this Annual Report for details.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-competition Agreement and
had determined that the Controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the Non-competition

Undertaking during the year ended 3| December 2017.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENR &

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of YiChang HEC ChangJiang

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical
Co,, Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 99 to 178, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3|1 December 2017, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B ENR S

BRENER

RERFINEXAL - BRECSASEMATEA

HRa P BHmAPREENEIE - RIEER

FAPBRENBUTRERFEELEEIE - M
ERUFERERERER

Timing of revenue recognition

LON A E

DI E IR IR E 123 H ) RAT IR

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 123.

The Key Audit Matter
HRELSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTHNERET

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises sales of pharmaceutical products to
a large number of distributors.

BREWAEZBIERZED HREHEZEmABA

:Eé.-tﬁ
The Group enters into standard sales contracts with each distributor and
manufactures and sells its products in accordance with the terms agreed in
the sales contracts.
EEEERDHE R EERRRIRE
IR © SHE B o

HEH & IHE & RYREA RAE

Once the products leave the warehouse and are delivered to the location
designated by the distributor, the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are considered to have been transferred to the distributor and
revenue is recognised accordingly.

EEVBRAEBIERAE D HEIE TN - BRAAELENER
R BB ERREEB LD HE - BULEREZEA

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of revenue recognition included

the following:

BARHE 2 R A RSN EZ T2
. obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness of management's key
internal controls in relation to revenue recognition;

0 TRRANRHE B R A FER IR TR ORI BV RET - BT B
TR

U inspecting sales contracts with customers, on a sample basis, to
understand the terms of the sales transactions including the terms
of delivery and acceptance and any sales return arrangements to
assess the Group's revenue recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
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The Key Audit Matter
HREZSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNERTE

The Group's sales contracts are standardised and do not include terms
relating to discounts or rebates and do not permit sales return except for
where the products are damaged or defective.
EEFESHARTNRELCHEARR - TR HHEITE KR
F e REBEAROTE - REREEMBEIN - TEIEMTANERE -

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or expectations.
AR & E AN TR R —ERERERER - AREERA
SESEMRNEEER . FEEEEEBBRME R BAERE
HGZERE B R HENEA AR

O inspecting goods delivery notes and logistics records, on a sample
basis, to assess whether revenue transactions recorded just before
and after the financial year end date had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period on the basis of the terms of sale as set
out in the sales contracts;

c BEMERERmEEE RN NEECHERERR
RAFRNERZWAZDRIBHE A FRE R RN L
BB TS ER R AR

O inspecting underlying documentation for manual journal entries and
adjustments relating to revenue raised during the year which were
considered to be material or met other specific risk — based criteria;
and

0 TR B E W AR AR R RE R A H ALK E R R G
FI DR PRSI - &

. inspecting actual sales returns and credit notes recorded after the
financial year end and evaluating whether the related adjustments to
revenue had been recorded in the appropriate financial period.

0 WEEERR B REREAHERE RFHE DO - ST E
HERAEY & E AT R A AR MR IR -
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Recoverability of trade receivables

FE W R = 9 T [ W e

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 111-113.

B IR I 6 RE ]I 3R EFHEE

The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNERTE

The carrying value of the Group's gross trade receivables as at 3|1 December
2017 totalled RMB602.38 million, which included an allowance for doubtful
debts of RMBI .06 million.

201712 A31 B E KB A R RRIRE A5 /7602.38 & AR -
H B2 EiHREREFENELERR11.06BBARE

The Group's allowance for doubtful debts is based on management's estimate
of the recoverability of individual trade receivables with reference to the
ageing of overdue balances, repayment histories of individual debtors, existing
customer — specific and market conditions and the fulfiment of repayment
arrangements agreed with specific debtors, all of which involve a significant
degree of management judgement.
BEREHIERERNHEREN B2 B S B S EIKIR KA B 1t HRT
it - BEEZE T BHRRROERER - EREBANELERER R
BEEFEEMTSERREFERFPRNERLHFNETERER
T EEERBRRO AT O - A ERERESR TEREREH
B o

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade receivables
included the following:

AR ARR A B E B R F T R B

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal controls
relating to credit control,debt collection and the calculation of the
allowance for doubtful debts;

o TR REHERE RS BRI IR AR R ATER Y
RASEABPIEHIRRE - BT SETTHIARRILE -

U assessing the classification of individual balances in the trade
receivable ageing report by comparing the details in the trade
receivable ageing report with the underlying goods delivery notes and
invoices, on a sample basis;

0 BIEEEURA - LB MR AR SR 5 FIAR R 0 B e B
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The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNERTE

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key audit
matter because of the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade
receivables will be recovered in full and because the assessment of

the allowance for doubtful debts requires the exercise of significant

management judgement.

FAIE A AR e P I R — BRI B2 IE - RIS
HRETNBUEOFEFERTOTREY - AEFEERER
REEERASENEREHE -

O obtaining an understanding of the basis of management's judgements
about the recoverability of individual overdue balances and evaluating
the allowance for doubtful debts made by management for these
individual balances with reference to the industry in which the
debtors are operating, the ageing of overdue balances, historical
and post year-end payment records and repayment arrangements
agreed with specific debtors. This included inspecting relevant
correspondence with individual debtors;

0 T AR E IR [E K 8 B R MK [ FE U SR IR B AT U [ 1 A B BRI RR
ERNKE  EUKIEEREBAMENTRERIR - BHEK

R ERRIARE: - ESE R EREN - B EER AT
BRLHE  eiahaRlE@REBANERR

. assessing the historical accuracy of the estimates made by the
management for the allowance for doubtful debts by comparing the
level of provision made by management as at 3| December 2016
with the actual new provisions, write offs and recoveries in respect of
trade receivables as at 3| December 2016 during the current year;
and

c BBHREEEE0/6F 12731 BFHENEREGNE IR
20165F 12 A3 1 B MR SRR AR AT S AR VIR AR BB » IREE

OB - 5HGHE TR BN AR IR RRAHR B SE R
P54
O comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the financial

year end relating to trade receivable balances at 3| December 2017
with bank statements and relevant underlying documentation, on a
sample basis.
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Capitalisation of intangible assets

BIEEERL

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 110-1171.

BRI RAMIGE | I RE 102 ]| | RATEEHE

The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNERTE

As disclosed in Note || to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
capitalises costs incurred in the development of its pharmaceutical products if
they meet the criteria for capitalisation as set out in the prevailing accounting
standards.

MANERE BATEMRMEEV1PTIEE - EEEEH S BE S ERMEE
MR G B REmPIELRAXBETENR -

This involves significant management judgement in both determining when
the criteria for capitalisation are met and in identifying the relevant costs to
be capitalised. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of capitalised
development costs of intangible assets totalling RMB 57.16 million.
EREEEENEAHE - AEEE MR 2 & #5) 1 E
NMEEFBRAR AR © 1201746128318 - BEEMERER & ER KA
REESEHRR/ARKST16B8

Our audit procedures to assess the capitalisation of intangible assets included

the following:
BFRHEET EEEMEMBRIEFBIE T ISR -
° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness of management's key
internal controls in relation to the capitalisation of intangible assets;

2 TREMFEEEEREETEEEMCREABMOEENE
ZHHORRET - BT RBITR AL

. obtaining the commercial and technical feasibility report prepared
by the Group’s researchers and assessing the reasonableness of the
commercial and technical feasibility by reference to the industry and

market information;

+ DSESEMEABRENOBEEEMATIERS - SHERE
BREMATHEMNARN - BEHSSTERTSEM
. challenging management’s assessment of the fulflment of the criteria

for capitalisation of intangible assets as set out in the prevailing
accounting standards by discussing with the Group's researchers
the development progress and commercial application of each
development project;
2 FREEEEMTAR N WS
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The Key Audit Matter
HREZSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERTFNERTE

We identified the capitalisation of intangible assets as a key audit matter
because of the significant level of management judgement involved in
determining the timing and amount of development costs capitalised.
BRI LB EEEAME R —ARRERSEH  RESRERER
EHE - NEEEEMERBERANKREREHE -

inspecting a sample of items capitalised during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, including clinical trial expenses, staffing
cost and etc;
MREESFAEERNMLIAE RN - BEBRKSBRAX R
BTHARE

Obtaining the profit forecast prepared by the management for
each development project and assess the appropriateness of key
assumptions by making enquiries of management and researchers and
comparing the sales data with comparable companies.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of intemal control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AN E PRSI B AR S M IR AR 18R
AR - SHIREREE TR - AERT R
FEER - HII AR EENBEREANH
HHHPMESNEZRE - AW - RRFMH
SERAEEHERETERERERZEN

BES -

« FHEEAMBEHER(BREURIE) LS
W} EBBNAR  UREEVBREEERE
DA MR R FIHAERZ 5 R FH -

¥ BEEEASERIAXRBHLDNUBER
BB R ENBEZRE - URRA M RERE
RER - BfIBRRES  BEBENHITES
BRIz TIE - RMARKFINERZE R A
ERHERE -

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope ML EZ TIERET IS E R - EFIZBEFD
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal A== 23R (B E N 2P HI A & Kk ) R E =18

control that we identify during our audit. HEZEZERHEITER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENR &

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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BB BIEENR - WA WA IER AR LR
ERERE R BENE b EIARBRERER
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201843 A23H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REeEEkEMEERER

for the year ended 3| December 2017

B ZE2017F 1231 IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AAREEZ5)
2017 2016
201745 2016%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR¥TT ARETT
Revenue = 3 1,601,567 941,504
Cost of sales SHERA (280,416) (214.234)
Gross profit EF 1,321,151 727,270
Other revenue E Al A 4(a) 21,823 15,998
Distribution costs SRR (372,090) (180,887)
Administrative expenses THREIRRS (192,985) (132711)
Other net (loss)/income Hth (E5H8) WASFLE 4(b) (25,415) 30,629
Profit from operations FEE=— g 752,484 460,299
Finance costs BB A 5(a) (4,289) (7,233)
Profit before taxation RRFE AT A 5 748,195 453,066
Income tax FRSHE 6 (121,838) (72,469)
Profit for the year 626,357 380,597
Profit and total comprehensive income BEERUATEENEREFNR
for the year attributable to: EHUNSEEE 13
Equity shareholders of the Company /NG i 647,101 380,597
Non-controlling interests FEfEAR R A (20,744) =
Profit and total comprehensive income FERBEANREZE WS
for the year #azg 626,357 380,597
Basic and diluted earnings per share EREXARBERR 9 RMBI.43 RMB0.84

AR¥1.43T AR#0847T

The notes on pages 104 to 178 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends payable

to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

23(b).

FI04B R 178B 2 B ZENHRE—3H0 -
ERFREF P EMN D BESBROR B S - &
HBIEE23(b) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBERRR

at 31 December 2017
MR2017F12H318

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBZ75)
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR¥T T ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EE&E
— Property, plant and equipment —W% - BEREE 10 590,390 413915
— Interests in leasehold land held for own —RIBKEHEREERZ
use under operating leases THE i kERS 10 79,835 81,767
670,225 495,682
Intangible assets B AE I 374,170 -
Goodwill (RS 12 75,896 -
Prepayments TAfTFRIR 14 558,811 422,544
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE E 22(b) 28,243 I1,415
1,707,345 929,641
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE |5 87,967 110,624
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b fE Gk IE 16 746,961 337,149
Time deposits TEHITFR 17 346,519 238,988
Pledged deposits [mEAEEEE = 2,635
Cash and cash equivalents ReEREEEIAER 18 887,183 1,212,072
eeeemmeeemmmeeemmeeeemmmeeeeenmeeemnmeemnnenneeenneenneenneennneenneeenneeeeeennnnnnn NN 2068630 Latlnts
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E A FE /I8 19 549,542 182,377
Bank loans RITER 20 10,000 70,000
Deferred income FIEW 25 21 4,379 4,379
Current taxation FEAT BNERFR 18 22(a) 76,826 27,525
e d0.747 284281
_Netcurrentassets = FRRERE S 1427883 617,187 _
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERS 3,135,228 2,546,828

S 104E 2 |78 A Z R BARZ FM 0wk — 310

The notes on pages 104 to |78 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
IIV—\élﬁ\jﬁ%ﬂﬁsﬂli

at 31 December 2017

2017612311

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZ751)

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR¥TT ARETTT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank loans RITER 20 10,000 20,000
Deferred income FEIEW = 21 64,642 69,021
e T4g2 89021
Net assets BEE 3,060,586 2,457,807
Capital and reserves BEAXRKHE
Share capital A& Zx 23(c) 452,023 450,823
Reserves Gl 23(d) 2,355,813 2,006,984
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 782 F]#E%S IR R FE(L
of the Company R 2,807,836 2,457,807
Non-controlling interests AR R A |3 252,750 -
Total equity BrEs 3,060,586 2,457,807
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2018. BB ERE AESEMN20I8F3 A23 Bt R
3% o
Tang Xinfa Chen Yangui
E#TE BRREE
Director Director
2= 2=
The notes on pages 104 to |78 form part of these financial statements. FI04EE 1788 2 MK Z E M s —301 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 3| December 2017

BZE2017F12 31 IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(AAREEZ5)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAFEDRRES
Non-
Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
B EARR EERE  RERE & FERED aER
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
Mt ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT AREBTL ARETR ARETR
Balance at | January 2016 201651 51 B HILE 450659 456,614 26571 209,005 2,142,849 - 2,142,849
Changes in equity for 2016: WI6FRERT
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNRENALE - - - 380597 380597 - 380597
Dividends approved in respect of the previous year  #tEB# FEHR S 23(b) - - - (67623) (67623) - (67623)

Shares issued upon the over-allotment options TR AR BT

exercised ki 23(c) 164 1820 - - 1984 - | 984
Appropriation to statutory reserve BREATRE = = 38,065 (38,065) = =
Balance at 31 December 2016 R2016F128318 K

and | January 2017 01751 B I BiEER 450,823 1,458,434 64,636 483,914 2,457,807 - 2,457,807
Changes in equity for 2017: WITEEREE
Issue of ordinary shares BTEER 23(0) 1,200 18,144 - - 19,344 - 19,344
Acquisition of equity interests in a subsidiary WeE—RAM B A AlkE 12 - - - - - 273,494 273,494
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZENANLE - - - 647,101 647,101 (20,744) 626,357
Dividends approved in respect of the previous year  #tAEBEFERE () - - - (135,607)  (135,607) - (135,607)
Dividends approved in respect of the current year ~ BLAAREERS () - - - (180,809)  (180,809) - (180,809)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BETETERE = = 67,738 (67,738) - - -
Balance at 3| December 2017 R017E 12831 Bl 452003 1476578 132374 746861 2,807,836 252750 3,060,586
The notes on pages 104 to |78 form part of these financial statements. FI04E 2 1 78E 2 MK ZEM MK —3 D -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MEBRERER

for the year ended 3| December 2017
BHZE2017F12A31BILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZ751)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3IBLEE

2017 2016
20176 20165
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt eE ARBTT ARKETT
Operating activities RS
Cash generated from operations KEREZES 18(b) 760,116 448,999
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") EXH R EARLME(THE )

Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") paid EREHR(EEMER]) 22(a) (89,365) (51,793)
Net cash generated from operating activities fRErTHELENREFE 6_ 7_9,7_5_I ____________ ???_2_0_6_ i
Investing activities BRETE
Interest received B W F & 14,737 8,104
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and BEWE - BB KERE

equipment FIE (327,036) (62,987)
Proceeds received from disposal of property, HEME - BEREREMSE

plant and equipment IB 367 =
Prepayment for intangible assets B AERNR (43,709) (110,000)
Payment for acquisition of equity interests in a subsidiary 4B —fEF{ /B A FIRE (S 53X 12 (137,402) -
Investment in time deposits with maturity over FHRBA=EA 2 EHFR

three months wE (536,210) (235,826)
Proceeds from time deposits TE HATE RTS8 416,882 33,000
Net cash used in investing activities REzghEAnRe®Ea 0 ( _6_I_2_,_3_7_I_) ___________ ( ?{:?_7_0_9_)_
Financing activities REER
Proceeds from issuance of shares BTG P15 508 19,344 1984
Payment of listing expenses LRSI SRIE = (22,535)
Repayments of bank loans BERITERK 18(c) (70,000) (105,000)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company B SN Rl zS A% B A% B (316,416) (67,623)
Interest paid 2AFE 18(c) (4,394) (7,454)
Net cash used in financing activites  AR@&EZ®HHRe®s (371,466)  ( (200,628)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERFSEEERFHD (313,086) (171,131)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIAIENEERRSEEER 1,212,072 1,353,651
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERBE L (11,803) 29,552
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RIZAIANESRBESZEIER 18(a) 887,183 1,212,072

The notes on pages 104 to 178 form part of these financial statements.

S I04EE |78 A 2 MFEBRZ S IEMER — 8D °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(C)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are

disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note | (c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from

initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

Basis of presentation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

comprise the Company and its subsidiary (together referred to as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the

historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are

discussed in Note 2.

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

I BAGTTEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) |
(c) Changes in accounting policies
The IASB has issued several amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. None of these impact on the accounting
policies of the Group. However, additional disclosure has been included in Note
18(c) to satisfy the new disclosure requirements introduced by the amendments to
IAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows

and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet

effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group

and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly
or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling

interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and

no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate or joint venture.

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) | BEREFEEE)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont'd) d) MBATRFEERERE)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note | (i)) unless the investment is classified

as held to sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(e) Goodwill (e)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's

previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as

at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on
a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or Groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination

and is tested annually for impairment (see Note | (i)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of

purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

®

Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note | (i)):

= Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land classified as

held under operating leases (see Note | (h)); and

= Other items of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the
cost of materials, direct labour and the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see

Note [(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date

of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and

equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

= Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the

unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than

50 years after the date of completion

- Machinery |5 years

- Motor vehicles |0 years

= Office equipment and others 5—8 years

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB I -

HAAREFITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

U}

(2)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note |(i)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction during the construction period. Capitalization
of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see Note |(i)). Other development expenditure is recognised as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note |(i)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(2

(h)

0]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont'd)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use

and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

= capitalised development costs |0 years

- patents 12 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases

Leasehold land held for own use under operating leases represent cost of land use
rights paid to the PRC government authorities. Land use rights are stated as cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see Note |(i)). Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the respective period of the

rights.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables
Trade and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group

about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal

environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

1 BEREFHBEE)
(8 EBREEGEERNGE)

(h)

0]

ARFHERNET EERE  BF
AEr A AF SN ERERNERR AN
B AR REMERNETEER
AHERE R REE - A REH
LUNE

—  BXcRABIL 104

- A 124F

BIHEH N A BERM -

RECEHERFEARZ L bR

BIBEEREREE Rz Ll
7] R B R R S AT ) - b (s FR A K
2N o A b {F PR AR B ANRL R AT HE 6 %
BEEESIAR(RMEEG) o BERE
B {5 AR HA R PO DA B A0 A 1B e 2 T

27
o8

BEERE

() EZREMEREYFE
BB AR B 5 & E Al
BIHA &2 JF BN HA e MR TR T 1A 4%
REHARRY - AEEREHR
MENTEER - RENTE
HRERAKETIEAARET
Fl—IB ZIRBREMA A
HER

-  BEBANEARPBREE -

-  BH - miEREEEN
HEENEHASE

— EBATREWESET
HibgsE8 - &

— M WB - EERE
BREHATAE(Y
BB NERT M E -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &3 111



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 1
(i) Impairment of assets (Cont'd)

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables (Cont'd)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognized as

follows:

= For trade and other receivables carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets

with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

= If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 1 BAGTEE(E)
(i) Impairment of assets (Cont'd) (i) EEREE)
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables (Cont'd) () ESZREMEKFHEREE
(#&)
Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and other receivables, 2 36 BT 4 (B A AT B 1 AR AR RS
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote, are recorded using BRERAIEERENE H KR
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is remote, HtEWHIENE BRI ES
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade and other BFEARERLE - WAEE
receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to EHW R AT B LR - Bl
that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged BAETAKENSREITRE S
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other Ko E A FE WO IE AR BB R -
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts MERERPRHBEEEZED
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss. FEMSEE AR - Hig
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) |
(i) Impairment of assets (Cont'd)
(ij)  Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment;

= Interest in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases;

= Intangible assets;

= Goodwill;

- Prepayments; and

- Investments in subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In

addition, for goodwill and intangible assets that are not yet available for use,

the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any

indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 1 BAGTTEE(E)
(i) Impairment of assets (Cont'd) (i) EEREE)
(ij)  Impairment of other assets (Cont'd) (i) EEEREE)
- Calculation of recoverable amount —  FEAKEEFHE
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less BEMAKEBE£EAR
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated A EERHEEK AR

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets

that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, expect that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual

fair value less costs of disposal, or value in use (if measurable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) |
(i) Impairment of assets (Cont'd)
(ij)  Impairment of other assets (Cont'd)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is

not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as

it would at the end of the financial year (see Notes | (i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill
carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period

relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

®

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 1
(k) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment

of doubtful debts (see Note |(i)).

(I) Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

(m) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at cost.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within six months of maturity at

acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(o)

P)

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government in the PRC are recognised in the profit or loss as and when

incurred.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises

restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets

and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant

amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets

also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a

period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(P)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized

when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) |
(p) Income tax (Contd)
= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes

levied by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simuftaneously.

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will low to the Group and the

revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods leave the warehouse and are delivered to
the location designated by the customers and the related risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods are considered to have been transferred to the
customers. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statements of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
recognised initially as deferred income and amortised to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset by way of recognized in other

revenues.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) |
(s) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended

use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(t) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the

reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u) Related parties

@

®)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

0) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the

Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

0) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(u) Related parties (Cont'd)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(Cont’d)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or

is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides

key management personnel services to the Group or to the Group's

parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may

be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Segment reporting
Management has determined operating segments with reference to the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Group that are used to assess

the performance and allocate resources.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group assesses the performance and
allocates the resources of the Group as a whole, as all of the Group's activities are
considered to be primarily dependent on the performance on sales of pharmaceutical
products. Therefore, management considers there to be only one operating segment
under the requirements of IFRS 8, Operating Segments. In this regard, no segment

information is presented for the year end 3| December 2017.

No geographic information is shown as the Group’s operating profit is derived from

activities of manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments in applying the

Group's accounting policies are described below.

G

Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
The depreciation expense for future years is adjusted if there are significant changes

from previous estimation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

2

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Impairments

0]

(if)

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for certain property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and interests in lease hold land
held for own use under operating leases, recoverable amount of these assets
needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling price
because quoted market prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an amount that is
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of items such as

revenue and operating costs.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is exercised by the directors when assessing

the credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment losses would affect the net

profit or loss in future years.

2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Contd)

(c) Capitalised development costs
Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy for
research and development costs in Note |(g) to the financial statements. Determining
the amounts to be capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and
the expected period of benefits. At 3| December 2017, the best estimate of the
carrying amount of capitalised development costs was RMB57,157,000. Further details

are contained in Note | | to the financial statements.

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales of pharmaceuticals.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers. Revenue excludes sales
taxes and surcharges and is after deduction of any trade discounts. The amount of each

significant category of revenue is as follows:

2

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

A RAE(E)

(c) ERBEREZH
77 85 52 TR B TS SRR T R | (g) AR D AR
REFETHOBHBRERNE - 7
REBALSBE  FREEEYHT
MEIEEH R - ZEETE KA
EENReNE  CRANTRERE
TS - R2017F12A318 - B
ERNMbz RBEL BN REGERDE
BARARKES7,157,0007 © #—HF1E
ERMEIRERMFEN o

EE S
AEENEREGREmEEMHEE ©

EEBERELRTPNEMHEEE 2
EETEEEERLMINE - S EHRER
BT - STBLEBERWSHMT -

2017 2016

20175 20164F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETFT

Sales of anti-viral drugs HETURE ) 1,407,948 739,824
Sales of cardiovascular drugs SHE DI E B2 96,331 89,182
Sales of endocrine and metabolic drugs SHE AN D MWL 2 41,355 46,739
Sales of other medical products $HE HAn ey 55,933 65,759
1,601,567 941,504

The Group'’s customer base is diversified and includes one customer (201 6: one) with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenues for the year ended 31 December
2017, including sales to entities which are known to the Group under common control with
single customer. Revenues from this customer amounted to approximately RMB638,490,000
(2016: RMB384,468,000). Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from this customer

are set out in Note 24(a).

AEENEFEZ L  BE2017F 128
SIRIEFE  BF—HA(0165F - —H)R
SHERBAEEEEEINNES (BER
AEEMERELEE T HARER 2 EE
HE) - REZEBREPNEERNEARY
638,490,000 7T (2016 4F : A EE # 384,468,000
L) c REBRPHELAEERREFOHFE
BRI FE24(@) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £3% 129



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 4 H g AR HAth (B58) WA
(a) Other revenue (@ EHftlkA

2017 2016

20175 20165F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Government grants B8 Bl

— Unconditional subsidies — BB 2,486 3,322

— Conditional subsidies (Note 21) — B IEHRB(BE21) 4,379 4,379

Interest income FEWA 14,737 8,104

Others Hits 221 193

21,823 15,998

(b) Other net (loss)/income (b) Hf(EHE) WAEE

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEETEENEE (345) (136)
Exchange (loss)/gain M (E518), ek (24,733) 32,765
Others Hith (337) (2,000
(25,415) 30,629
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5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

5 BRBE AR R
BRBATE A IR (GEA) R T & BRE

) 2

(a) Finance costs (@) MERKX
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Interest expenses (Note 18(c)) FEFZ (FIE18(c)) 4,289 7233
(b)  Staff costs (b) EBIRK
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARKETT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits He o TE& - BAANER 105,101 71,942
Contributions to defined contribution retirement TERRNEFIFT S 5K
benefit schemes 14,203 7,820
119,304 79,762

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the local government authorities whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authorities are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees. The Group has no
other obligations for payments of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of

employees other than the contributions described above.

RETEWIERSERBIRMRG - RNEE2
B2y 3t 75 T A4 R 7 Ak B0 SE SR FOR IR AR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Cont'd) 5 BRBLADREF(4F)
(c) Otheritems (c) HfEE
2017 2016
20175 20165
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
LiEss AR®TT ARETF T
Depreciation e 10 31,793 27,449
Less: amount capitalised as development costs B BRI (5,985) =
25,808 27,449
Amortisation S I'l 17,987 =
Auditor's remuneration ZERRT N
— audit services — EZRTS 1,300 1,200
— non-audit services — BRI 600 600
(Reversal)/provision of impairment losses on REEE(8EE),FHE 16
— trade receivables — B S REWFIE (2,228) 500
— other receivables — E b FEIGRIE 733 (1.064)
Operating lease charges KEHEER 655 1,094
Research and development cost (other than SRR (B E E SR AR
amortisation costs of intangible assets) (i) BRI () 96,915 64,236
Cost of inventories (ii) FE RN (i) |5 142,484 136,793
() Research and development cost include RMB31,984,000 (2016: (i) 2k A FEE 8 T KA -
RMB27,068,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses, amortisation WERY  BEBHEHBAIAMKES
expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the HEERMEEANYTEARK

respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in the Note 5(b) for

each of these types of expenses.

(ii) Cost of inventories include RMB36,909,000 (2016: RMB31,400,000) relating to
staff costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in

the Note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR 6
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CY)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

FEBREREMEEBERANRER

Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive (@) HGEBmREMEERSERANRAE
income represents: Bitg
2017 2016
201745 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Current tax BIHEA%E 18
Provision for PRC CIT for the year (Note 22(a)) REFEHRHSESHEE
(MI7E22(3a)) 138,264 73,768
Under/(over) provision for PRC CIT in respect BEFEHBEBEMENR
of prior years TR,/ (HBF) B 402 (276)
Deferred tax IEIERITE 138,666 73,492
Origination of temporary differences R ERENES (16,828) (1,023)
Total income tax FRSHiARE 121,838 72,469
Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FIBHAXEIZERBERITEND
rates: i B
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Profit before taxation R 55 AT yzs ) 748,195 453,066
Applicable tax rate (i) BRI 25% 25%
Notional tax on profit before taxation M B E A R HEE R IR 187,049 113,267
Under/(over) provision for PRC CIT in respect BAFEHRRCEMSHTE (B
of prior years ) EHE 402 (276)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAIB AL OB E 3,720 8,630
Tax effect of preferential tax rate (ii) BER R AT (i) (80,052) (45,303)
Tax effect of bonus deduction of research and R BRI
development expenses (iii) TS 52 22 (iil) (2,246) (3,849)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RIERHART AR IEE BN ST E 12,965
Income tax expenses i8R 121,838 72,469
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR 6
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Cont'd)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting profit at applicable tax
rates: (Cont'd)
0] The PRC CIT rate is 25%.

(i)~ The PRC CIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the certificate of “High and
New Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE") which entitles the qualified companies
to a preferential income tax rate of 15%. The Company was recognised as
"HNTE" to enjoy a preferential CIT rate of 15% from 2014 to 2016 pursuant
to documents issues by local government authorities. The Company is
approved to extend of “HNTE" and entitle of the preferential income tax rate
from 2017 to 2019. The PRC CIT rate applicable to the Company was of 5%
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

(i) According to relevant tax rules in the PRC, qualified research and
development expenses (“R&D expenses”), which are not capitalised, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax purpose, i.e. an additional 50% of

such expenses could be deemed as deductible expenses.
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7

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION

The details of directors’ remuneration are disclosed as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

7 EEREEME
BEMS ZFHBHBELT ¢

Contributions
to defined
Salaries, contribution

allowances retirement

Directors’  and benefits benefit Discretionary 2017
fees in kind schemes bonuses Total

e 2MR  EERMFEHK 20175

Ezns EWEN  BAEMHR BiBTEA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR  AR®TR AR®TR AR®TT AR%TR

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Jiang Junca BOTRE - 194 20 110 324
Mr. Wang Danjin FHERE - 163 15 77 255
Mr. Chen Yangui BRI A - 214 20 132 366
Mr. Zhu Qiachong (i) RITHESEA() - 170 15 71 262
Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. Tang Xinfa BIELE - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Yingwe (ii RE(E A (i) - = = - -
Mr. Mo Kit ERKAE = = = - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES

Mr. Tang Jianxin Bt 80 - - - 80
Mr. Fu Hailiang EREE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lee Chi Ming ZERLE 160 - - - 160
Supervisors E=x

Ms. Huang Fangfang BRALL - - - - -
Mr. Wang Shengchao (i) T RSB 5 A (i) - 98 9 50 157
Mr. Luo Zhonghua (iv) ERELE(v) - - - - -
Ms. Xue Lian (jii) B3 20 (i) - 86 12 - 98
Mr. Lin Jian (iv) SR A (iv) - - - - -
Total st 320 925 91 446 1,782

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 #£3% 135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

7 DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd) 7 EBERESEME(E)
Contributions
to defined
Salaries, contribution
allowances retirement
Directors' and benefits benefit Discretionary 2016
fees in kind schemes bonuses Total
HE Rk EREGURK 20165
EEikn EWEN  RREEIGER IBIEAL st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT AR®TE ARETT ARETR
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Jiang Juncai B4 EE - 163 16 ) 21
Mr. Wang Danjin FHERE - 156 14 4 212
Mr. Chen Yangui BRAEEESLAE - 213 20 60 293
Non-executive directors FBTES
Mr. Tang Xinfa iy - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Yingwei (i) REEI A (i) = = = - =
Mr. Mo Kit EAKE = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors BAKHTES
Mr. Tang Jianxin BENEE 80 = - = 80
Mr. Fu Hailiang 8RR EE 80 = = = 80
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE 160 - - - 160
Supervisors E2x
Ms. Huang Fangfang Lt - . . . )
Ms. Xue Lian (i) BB L (i) - 128 14 ) 184
Mr. Lin Jian (iv) M2 FEH (v) - - - - -
Total 5t 320 660 64 186 1230
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd) 7 EERESEME(E)
0] Mr. Zhu Qiaohong was appointed as executive directors on 16 June 2017. 0] RITHFEER2017F6H 16 B EZER
WTES -
(ii) Mr. Zhu Yingwei resigned as non-executive director on 9 May 2017. (if) KRR FHEN201755 A9 B BHEIEH
TES o
(i)~ Mr. Wang Shengchao was appointed as supervisor and Ms. Xue Lian resigned as (i)  FERHBEAER017F7H2 BEZER
supervisor on 21 July 2017. EEEMEEEL T RINF B EHEEES -
(iv)  Mr. Luo Zhonghua was appointed as supervisor and Lin Jian resigned as supervisor on (v) BEEFLERW0ITFAIBEZER
16 June 2017. EFMMREERRFI REHIES -
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 EEHMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2016: three) is the director hEmEmHMALHR - R =5(2016%F :
whose endowments are disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of =R)BEE  BHEFMEERNTE7 - BT
the other two (2016: two) individuals are as follows: B AL(2016%F : %) RIEBHRZEIN T ¢
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Salaries and other emoluments < N E b3 384 406
Discretionary bonuses EYIBIEAL 129 78
Contribution to retirement schemes RIRETEIER 47 52
560 536
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8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 8 BEHFMALE)
The emoluments of the two (2016: two) individuals with the highest emoluments are within M (20165 : M) &= 2 A TR BN
the following bands: FLATEE :

2017 2016

20175 2016%F

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

A N

Nil to HKD 1,000,000 £ 1,000,000/ 7T 2 2

9 BREF

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) BREXRER

HEGRERRFIETARAT LR
%5 AR ER A8 3 A A R 647,101,000
70 (2016 % : A R ¥ 380,597,000 7T )
FERNE #IT LB MET S
451,9044948% (20164 : 450,814,367%)
REE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB647,101,000 (2016:
RMB380,597,000) and the weighted average of 451,904,494 (2016: 450,814,367)

ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

EBARE IR T

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

2017 shares 2016 shares

20175 BRE 20165 AR E

Issued ordinary shares at | January (Note 23(c)) R A I BB BT B (FRE23(0) 450,822,850 450,659,450

Effect of shares issued (Note 23(c)) BT D IR 2 (i EE23(0)) 1,081,644 154917

Weighted average number of ordinary shares R 12831 B E@AR T H 2 451,904,494 450,814,367

at 31 December
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREFEER

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in 2017 and 2016, and therefore, 20174 R20165F » 3 £ B ik fE
diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per share. HEE T mAR - WEREER RS

REARRFIER -
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10  FIXED ASSETS 10 EEEE

Interests in

leasehold

land held

for own

Office use under

Plant and equipment Motor  Construction operating
Buildings ~ Machinery  and others vehicles  in progress Sub-total leases Total

RESEHE

HAZRE BFERZ
RERET He R AE ERIR PNt BEHBER &t

RMBOOD RMBO0O RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBO0D RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBO0O
ARETE  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETE  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR

Cost: BA
At | January 2016 RWI6FI 18 24444 183,661 55,992 647 12866 497,608 96,709 594317
Additions RE 15,289 13278 8691 130 23380 60,768 - 60,768
Transfer from construction in progress BRI 1287 6,244 6,063 10,297 = (32.604) = = =
Disposals RE - (171) (224) (136) - (531) - (831)
At 31 December 2016 R016E12A31H 25975 202831 T4756 64l 3642 557,845 96,709 654554
Addttions AE 67,526 9671 11,522 649 117674 207,048 - 207,048
Transfer from construction in progress B2 T1248# 409 5091 3628 - (5.129) - - -
Disposals RE = (1,020) (2726) (511 - (4257) - (4257)
At 31 December 2017 K017 128318 343910 216579 87,180 7 112,188 760636 96,709 857,345
Accumulated depreciation: 2EHE
At | January 2016 RI6FIAIR (41733) (49,680) (27034) (360) = (118807) (13010) (131817)
Charge for the year ERAR 743 (11,356) (6552) (66) = (25517) (1932) (27449
Wiitten-back on disposals REEEHH - 0l 201 9 - 394 - 394
At 31 December 2016 0165124318 (49.276) (60.935) (33385) (334) - (143,930) (14942) (158872)
Charge for the year FRR (8646) (12.380) (8763) ) - 9861) (1932) (31,793)
Written-back on disposals PR BRI = 918 2286 4| = 3545 = 3545
At 31 December 2017 R0I7E12831H (57922) (72.397) (39.862) (65) = (170246) (16874) (187,120)
Carrying amount: RAEE
At 31 December 2017 R0I7E12A31 8 285,988 144,182 47318 714 112,188 590390 79835 670225
At 31 December 2016 R016F 12831 A 226699 141,89 41371 307 3642 413915 81,767 495,682
0) All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are located in the PRC. 0) NEBEBEZFREYME MELK
BN E -
(ii) As at 3|1 December 2017, the Group was applying for certificates of ownership for (ii) 2017F 128318 - X AR IEFEEE
certain properties, with carrying value of RMB84,512,000 (2016: RMB5,171,000). BAANE®-84512,0007T (20164 : A
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the use of and the conduct of EREES | 71,0007T) A THIEBEEE
operating activities at the properties referred to above are not affected by the fact BEEEZ - RRRIESRANEHEH K
that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant property title certificates. N EEERAREZN T E

R L ERNEXERES -
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11  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1 E\FEE

Capitalised

development

costs Patents Total
BRI =57 At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARKETT ARKETTT ARET T
Cost: RN :
At | January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 201651 A18 ~ 20165
| January 2017 12A31BKk2017F1 A 18 - = =
Capitalised development costs of insulin (i) BERMERSEME ) 57,157 = 57,157
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary AU S P A R
(Note 12) (F7E12) - 335,000 335,000
a2 L AU SN - ST
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At | January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 201651 A1H 20165
| January 2017 12A31BX2017F1 A 1H - = =
Charge for the year F AR - (17,987) (17,987)
g oeeemberAo  PVOVERIRARNE S CN 7
Net book value: FRERE :
At 3| December 2017 20174128318 57,157 317,013 374,170
At 3| December 2016 R20165F 12431 H = = =
0} The Group has obtained the necessary approvals and permits for clinical trials for a 0} REER2017F 12831 BERE R —

series of insulin research and development projects by the end of 31 December 2017.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the development expenditure

of the related projects meet the criteria of capitalisation after obtained the approval

of clinical trial and capitalised the expenditure as development costs under intangible

assets. As at 31 December 2017, the intangible assets under development were not

yet ready for use.
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GOODWILL 12 BE

2017
201745
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Cost and carrying amount B AN K BRE(E
At | January 2016, 31 December 2016 and | January 2017 2016F 1 A18 ~ 2016F 12831 H K
20171 HI1H -
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary BT B A RIS 75,896
At 31 December 2017 20175124318 75,896

Acquisition of HEC TaiGen

Pursuant to the agreement signed on 30 October 2016 among the Company, TaiGen
Biopharmaceuticals Co. (Beijing), Ltd. (“TaiGen") and TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Holdings
Ltd., which is the controlling shareholder of TaiGen, the Company and TaiGen set up
Dongguan HEC TaiGen Biopharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (R[5 AN S BB EFRE (T
2\, “HEC TaiGen") in the PRC on 10 January 2017. HEC TaiGen engages in the research,
development, production and sales of new anti-Hepatitis C drugs. The registered capital of
HEC TaiGen was RMB683,400,000, of which the Company contributes RMB348,400,000
by way of cash and TaiGen contributes RMB335,000,000 by way of injection of the patents
related to Furaprevir (Note | ), a protease inhibitor for Hepatitis C. Upon set up of HEC
TaiGen, the Company and TaiGen held 51% and 49% of the equity interests of HEC TaiGen,

respectively.

On 27 March 2017, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement (“Equity
Transfer Agreement”) with TaiGen and acquired additional 9% equity interests in the HEC
TaiGen held by TaiGen. The consideration of the equity transfer was USD20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB37,402,000). Upon completion of the equity transfer,
the Company and TaiGen held 60% and 40% of the equity interests of HEC TaiGen,
respectively. Management considers the above transactions, as a whole, consist an acquisition
of 60% equity interests of HEC TaiGen. The differences between the total consideration of
60% equity interests of HEC TaiGen and net asset value of HEC TaiGen attributed to the

Company were recognised as goodwill, which was amounting to RMB75,896,000.

R AR

BEARAR - ARBEFEULR)ERAR]
(TRF ) RAREIEIRAR A = B8 ZERf 842
B B PR A R 20165 10 A30H HE &1
# - AQAIEASR207F A I0BEFE
B RERG A RBEEREFREERA
(TREBXARE]) - RBRKAZHERAR
BN - EEREE - REBEXARNFE
& A A A R #683,400,0007T + HAFARDA]
LAIR & H & A R #348,400,0007T + A& BAE
AR E B B 6IE R A im & HF 5 = E
A B #335,0000007T (KizE1 1) » REFH AR
I f8 « RAREARDBIFAERBHAR
519K 49% % HE

M201763H278 » KRB EKRRF K
s ([ REEEG ) LMK
BASFERBE AR oBMAE - RiEEE
B %1 {8 /220,000,000 T (KIHEE R AR
137,402,0007T) * PRAEEETTAKIRZ - ARE K
K= B A 35 K 5 60% K 40% 4 - &
BEK MRS ER—ERE  REKER
5 H R R 60%RXHE  ANA BIHGER G FE AR 60%
R DEN B EEAA R EERBEIAS
MEEFEZENEZERRAANE @8R
AR H#75,896,0007T °
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12  GOODWILL (Cont'd) 12 BEE)
Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement, subject to the positive result of Phase Il clinical RIS ek - BURNIUA T 3% — 5
trial of new anti-Hepatitis C drugs and certain conditions, the Company will additionally pay BARBONEEERRE TREKSE AR
USD20,000,000 in aggregate to TaiGen by four instalments and offer a right to TaiGen to Al YA M)A = BB AN SE - #£5120,000,0003
purchase up to 9% equity interests in HEC TaiGen from the Company at the price equal to TC 0 WRIA SR T ARSI P
that set out in Equity Transfer Agreement. As at 31 December 2017, the agreed conditions BERMAQTEE KRG AT THBIBI%R
have not yet been met. RERRER  R20174F 12831 8 - B E G
The following table summarises the consideration paid for HEC TaiGen, and the fair values TREGABREG AR ERRE KA EE
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. BENMTEERBHOAAEE -
Recognised
values on
acquisition
s B R R AR
HEE
RMB'000
ARETTT
Intangible asset B EE 335,000
Other receivables E b pE R IE 348,400
Total identifiable net assets acquired Al BIFT U IR F A E 4 A 683,400
Non-controlling interests SRR = (273/494)
Net assets acquired attributable to the Group AEEERFTKEFEE 409,906
Total consideration BRE 485,802
Goodwill 2 75,896
Net cash flow arising from acquisition: WHmESR @ RERHE
Consideration satisfied in cash B @ STV (E 485,802
Less: Cash acquired R FTEE & -
Consideration net yet paid RERE (348,400)
Net cash out flow W@ TR 137,402
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GOODWILL (Cont'd) 12 EEE)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill BEEHENELEEENNRERNR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGU) identified according to HEBESCEMERSR R N E 52D i
country of operation and operating segment as follows: ERBEFFNAEEReEEEM(REE
AT )
2017
20174
RMB’000
AR®TR
HEC TaiGen RGHAR 75,896
The recoverable amount of the HEC TaiGen is determined based on value-in-use e AR EI S ETIZFEREBETE
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets FEETFE HEBEEEEEBILERE 145
approved by management covering a fourteen-year period. The cash flows are discounted MM EEENE S REEE - BERE
using a discount rate of 10.8%. The discount rates used are post-tax and reflect specific risks FEARI108%MITIREITIE - FrAITIAR ARZ
relating to the HEC TaiGen. FIRE - WREERG X AREBHEER
Bgs o
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 REEARZEKE

As at 3| December 2017, the Company has direct interests in the following subsidiaries,

which are private companies. The particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below:

Place of Issued and

incorporation fully paid up/

R2017F 128318 ° ZARIRATHEBA R
(BIEEMAR)BHAEEEER  EHZNB
ARIFBEHIIAT

Proportion of

direct ownership

Name of company and business registered capital interest  Principal activities
R AR S B BERTRER 2]
DR AR R R EREES HEESLS FEXK
Yichang HEC Pharmaceutical PRC RMB2,000,000 100% Sales of pharmaceutical products
HERGRLEEE a3 AR #2,0000007T 100%  SHEREEEEmR
HEC TaiGen PRC RMB5 15,900,000/ 60% Research, development, production
RMB683,400,000 and sales of drugs
RERARR H ARE 60%  HiEE - EEKRHEEMR
515,900,0005T,
AR #683,400,0007C
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 13 RHBRRZREE)
The following table lists out the information relating to HEC TaiGen, the only subsidiary of TR AR EE M — B E AR R
the Group which has a material non-controlling interest (NCl). The summarised financial MEBARRBERRNRHHMBEER - T2
information presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination. MNP ERBE A AR EEHATANESRE -

2017

201746

RMB’000

ARBTR

NCI percentage FEERERBE DL 40%

Current assets mENEE 195,937

Non-current assets FEMENE EE 443,413
Current liabilities mENEE (7,809)

Non-current liabilities SERBAE =

Net assets FEE 631,541

Carrying amount of NCI FEIE AR I R PR TE (B 252,750

Revenue == -
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year FRABEBREEBA L (51,859)
Loss allocated to NCI DI EIFERIER A EE (20,744)

Dividend paid to NCI [ 3EPE AR R AR B -
Cash flows from operating activities KEFHHESRE (167,350)

Cash flows from investing activities BEFESHEERE 129

Cash flows from financing activities MEEBRERE 180,900
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14 PREPAYMENTS 14 FENRE

2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETFT

Prepayments for intangible assets A ETAN T8 400,000 400,000
Prepayments for fixed assets BB ERMNFIEAE 158,811 22,544
558,811 422,544

On 22 July 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with Sunshine Lake Pharma Co,,
Ltd. (BEREGHEEFX AR /A A, “Sunshine Lake Pharma’) which is a related party of the
Group. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group have acquired the right to use all the relevant
knowhow and patents relating to yimitasvir phosphate and follow-up direct anti — viral agent
compounds (the “Compounds”) and, upon obtaining the necessary government approvals,
the right to manufacture and sell worldwide. A consideration was RMB700,000,000, which
comprised a down payment of RMB250,000,000 and eight milestone payments totalling
RMB450,000,000 payable upon each stage of development or production approval of
yimitasvir phosphate or the Compounds. The agreement expires on 3| December 2030 or

the date when the first patent mentioned above expires, whichever is earlier.

Up to 31 December 2017, the Group had made payments of RMB400,000,000 to Sunshine
Lake Pharma. As at 3| December 2017, phase | clinical trial of yimitasvir phosphate was
accomplished, and Sunshine Lake Pharma is in progress of the phase Il clinical trial. Sunshine
Lake Pharma is targeting to obtain the necessary approvals and permits for yimitasvir
phosphate on or before 2019 and begin commercial introduction of relevant products in
2020. The necessary approvals and production permits for the Compounds are expected to

be obtained in 2020 and onwards.

R20I15F7828 - AEBERERRG K
SEERAR(TERRMBNESE ]| AAE
Bz BER ) HE o BiEZG® - A%
B2 G E M ERAORM EREEEENR
AW (BB ELEY ) MAER
BRI A SR B0 (8 A #E - W FEERIG AR A BUR
EBPIMBL X AIRT AT B 1% - R E R IRAEEA
HEMER - HBERERAR700000000
7T BIEE E KA R ¥250,000,0007T AN
£ 158 A A R #450,000,0007T K 2 HARA B B
R B BB AR B AW REBE T
BEFE EREVISTIR » 22 s i 70 20304F 12 A 31 H
B EME-IBERNIHEREFERES
Hi o

BZE2017F 1273181k - AEEERERR
f% 3t B 35 2 -7 A R #5400,000,0007T © 742017
F 12731 BEEBEFOR M 2 B ST ER R — HiE
5 - MRS Y B EEETTRR R —HiSt
5 o RIS SR B 2019F 5 2 ATHRS
BEBA AR th 2 69 % EHE SR FF RT3 I 722020
FHIAIERAE BV R EHERE o BB AORME
{b&Wa) W ERE N R EEFT A & B AR
2020F S AT IEAT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 £3% 145



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

15 INVENTORIES

2017 2016

20175 20165

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKETT

Raw materials BRAE 43,481 56,260
Work in progress -l 26,148 33,051
Finished goods LUK h 18,338 21313
87,967 110,624

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in profit

ERRBAAXALAABRRNFESEDN

and loss is as follows: IR
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FaE AR¥TT ARETTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEREE 142,484 135,769
Write down of inventories FEMR - 1,803
Reversal of write-down of inventories T &M = (779)
Cost of inventories FERKZA 5(c) 142,484 136,793

146 YICHANG HEC CHANGJIANG PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. EERB X R T HEXRHER AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EBERAMEWRIE
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Current RE
Trade receivables B S REWIE 613,436 286,176
Bills receivable eSS 119,534 56,409
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (Note |6(b)) A RERZERE (MR 16(0)) (11,060) (13,847)
721,910 328,738
Prepayments for inventories TEREER 11,704 5538
Other receivables H i e R IE 16,151 4,944
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RERER (2,804) (2071)
13,347 2,873
Total #RET 746,961 337,149

(@) RESH
RBEBR - BUETR R EREER(E
FTAE 5 K H th WK1 ) 123 22 A A
EHBRRREFBN R DITAT

(a) Aging analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivable (which are included in trade and other receivables), based on the invoice

date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

As at 31 December

RI12A31R

2017 2016

20175 20164F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

Within 3 months MfEAA 689,540 280,266

More than 3 months but within | year HiE3MEAEIFA 32,370 48,472

721,910 328,738
Trade debtors are generally due within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Bills FEURBE S — G B 3 HBR &5 B HAAEZ130290H
receivable is due in 3 months or 6 months from the date of billing. The Group's credit ANEH - EUNEE A2 HBRES B EAfEET 3@
policy is set out in Note 24(a). All of the trade and other receivables of the Group Ase@ ARSI - "EENEEREHR
are expected to be recovered within one year. MiiE24(a) - NEBFTE B 5 K b el zE

R AT —F AR -
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 16
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills

receivable directly (see Note |(i)(i)).

B REMEYRRIEAGE)

(b)

AT A ES DA
75 A FE MK R 0 K E M S 9 1 L (L s 48
TIAB R - RIFAREBERIK
B4 BA KB RO AT AE AR - AR L1
SR OREEE & 1 R IR R R FE UL
EREEMEE R 1)a) ©

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as follows: FARBRBEENESHOT :
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
At | January ®IAIR 13,847 13,347
Impairment loss recognised B HERREERE 5 500
Impairment loss reversed B EREEE (2,233) -
Uncollectible amounts written off B8 A] I [E R0E (559) -
At 3| December RKI2A31H 11,060 13,847

At 31 December 2017, trade debtors of RMBI[4,761,000 (2016: RMB17,609,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and management assessed that
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of RMBI 1,060,000 (2016: RMB13,847,000) were

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 16 ESRHMERKEZE)
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired (c) YEBENEVWERRERRE
The aging analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are neither individually nor I A5 A8 1 3% H [RIAR 1E IR (E B FE U R 5K
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: KMEWEIEIRE DT
2017 2016
20176 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Not past due 3 #2380 5 659,949 274,284
Less than 3 months past due #HR D3 ME A 50,577 36512
More than 3 months but within | year past due w BRI (E AE I £ 7,683 14,180
718,209 324976
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of R B N SR RVE B FE U 7k T8 ER 3 HA P
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. EH RN ZZREER -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent B H A RBENE WIS EE T
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BEAEFEZERIFR S IHENBE YR
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these FPAEME - BERFLRE  EEERLE
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances HBEMZEESIELRERE Bz
are still considered fully recoverable. EBEZUWESAEHEERDERR

QE=¢H{El

TIME DEPOSITS 17 EHER
As at 3| December 2017, the time deposits represented bank deposits with original maturity 2017128318 » TEAFFIEERE| EAEAFR
over three months. iBim =8 ARIRITER °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW 18

INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

RERREEEHRERAMREREER

) H2RELESEEAGE:

2017 2016
20174 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETFT

Cash on hand FoEIR S 115 442
Cash at bank RITHR S 887,068 1,211,630
887,183 1,212,072

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

operations:

(b) BRBAEFNELERSRESNHER

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT

Profit before taxation STl 748,195 453,066
Adjustments for: 4R ER -
Depreciation e 25,808 27,449
Amortisation iy 17,987 -
Interest income FLESA (14,737) (8,104)
Impairment reversal of trade and other receivables RO E 5 K H AR KFIRRE (1,495) (564)
Finance costs RE AR 4,289 7,233
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEENEE 345 136
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) (& 5 e (e )R8 23,598 (32714)
Changes in working capital 2B E S EE)
Decrease in inventories FEmd 22,657 44,004
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K H R GRIEIE AN (405,953) (76.017)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R EAhRE FRIAIE N 339,422 34510
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 760,116 448,999
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW |8 HeLHSEZEEEREMRAESAEER

INFORMATION (Cont'd) (&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (c) RETBRMEEEEMNHE:
Loans and Interest
borrowings payable Total
BERRAER RIS At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT ARETT
Note 20
FEE20
At | January 2017 R201751 AR 90,000 137 90,137

Changes from financing cash flows: RMERSRESE :

Repayments of bank loans BEIFITER (70,000) - (70,000)
Finance costs paid ETRE A - (4394) (4,394)
ol dtangssitem enchgeshitrs Sl (0000 N (5 I 522

Other changes: Hih# e :
_nterestonbankloans (note S@) _____ FATEBMBMESG) oR. ... A 28
At 3| December 2017 2017128318 20,000 32 20,032
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19 EBERAMENTRE

2017 2016

20175 20164

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

iEz3 ARBT R ARETFT

Trade payables (i) B S FEFRIE() 55,368 19,279
Bills payable FENEZ5E = 2,635
Trade and bills payables B ZEMNFIERENER 55,368 21914
Amounts due to related parties FE S RAESE 5 1A 26(b)(ii) 20,549 2,392
Receipts in advance TEWFRIR 13,826 9,933
VAT and other taxes payable FEAT ISR R At Fi IE 69,893 17,605
Accrued payroll and benefits ezt T & NREF 39,214 17,483
Other payables and accruals Hih N FIE R EFE R 350,692 113,050
549,542 182,377

() An ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice date is as follows: (i) NBRZERHARENE S EMNRIER
DM

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFT
Within | month HE AR 44,764 14,554
Over | month but within 3 months BB | EAE3MEA A 4,948 2,109
Over 3 months but within | year HBiE3ME AE I FR 2,782 1392
Over | year BIA | F 2,874 1,224
55,368 19,279
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 BANKLOANS

As at 3| December 2017, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

20

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

BITER
2017 128318 » SRITERAEZNT :

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within | year or on demand | FF Ak iRk 10,000 70,000
After | year but within 2 years | SFIRE2FER 10,000 20,000
Total st 20,000 90,000

At 31 December 2017, the bank loans were secured as follows:

20179128318 » SRITEFIRHMT ¢

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Secured HiEHH = 60,000
Unsecured rE 3 20,000 30,000
20,000 90,000

At 31 December 2016, the bank loans of the Group of RMB60,000,000 were secured
by certain buildings, machinery and interests in leasehold land owned by Shenzhen HEC
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. ORI RGH EEZER AR A7), “Shenzhen HEC

Industrial”) and its subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the bank loans of the Group were guaranteed by Mr.
Zhang Zhongneng, who is the director of the Shenzhen HEC Industrial, and his spouse Mrs.

Guo Meilan.

20165F 128310 - AR#60,0000007T 2 A&
SEBTERERRINTREREXERES
BARNDRYITREEAE ] REKE AR
Az ETET  #BEREE T ERE
o

R2017F K%2016F 128318 » AEE ZR1T

EFRRYIMRGLEEXEERTRELEER
HICEBEbeM ik -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

21

22

DEFERRED INCOME 21 EEWRE
2017 2016
20175 20165F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
At | January RIAIH 73,400 77,779
Credited to profit or loss (Note 4(a)) sTAER (Mi5E4() (4,379) (4,379)
At 3| December »I2A31 8 69,021 73,400
Net carrying amounts representing: BREDVFE S -
Current portion BUHEA=R {7 4,379 4,379
Non-current portion JERNERER 64,642 69,021
69,021 73,400
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, deferred income of the Group mainly included various R2017ER2016E 128318 » NEBEHELE
conditional government grants for research and development projects of new or existing W3S = BB A B 5 e IR A B L A A R
pharmaceutical products and subsidies relating to purchase of fixed assets. I8 B W ZIEE (R EBTMmE) - AN EEE S E
EBERRNMEL -
Deferred income relating to purchase of fixed assets are recognised as income on a straight- EEEE T EENRERSERBEED
line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant assets. BRI B E A A B G LR A -
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 22 &ABSYRE R M FTas

POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

(@ HaUBRARAMNANSRBIARE

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Provision of PRC CIT for the year (Note 6(a)) FRMPESERSHEE
(Hi7E6(@a)) 138,264 73,768
Under/(over) provision for PRC CIT in respect BEFEPBEBEMEH
of prior years TR/ (858 B 402 (27¢6)

PRC CIT paid for the current year REFE AR E NP B EMGH (89,365) (51793)

49,301 21,699
Balance of PRC CIT at | January RIA | BRI R B EPRISH A A 27,525 5,826
Balance of PRC CIT at 3| December R12A31 BB RS B 76,826 27,525
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION (Contd)

(b)

(<)

Deferred tax assets recognised
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statements of

financial position and the movements during the year are as follows:

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

22 REMBRRRANFAES(E)

(b)

CRRIELERAEE
RER A B BAONE AR RLETIA
BEMNMAKED MAFEANZEAT

Provisions for

inventory Accrued

Deferred and expenses
revenue receivables and others Total

FERER &R
EE W s IR REAM #st
Deferred tax arising from: KB THFIER RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IRIERIA - ARKETT ARKETT ARKETT ARETT
At | January 2016 201651 A1H8 423 3,047 6922 10,392
(Charged)/credited to profit orloss ~ (Hf&) /#t AdB2k (50) (558) 1,631 1,023

At 31 December 2016 and M2016F12A318 &
| January 2017 20171 A 18 373 2,489 8,553 [1,415
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss ~ (¥1B&) 5t AfE25 (50) (308) 17,186 16,828
At 3| December 2017 720174128318 323 2,181 25,739 28,243
Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) TTFRANWELEREEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note |(p), the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB5 1,859,000
(2016: nil) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The deductible
tax losses expire within 5 years from the year of 2017 when such losses were

incurred under current tax law.

IR EE | () FTE & RTEUR - BARTE
BRAZBISREERE R ARIM
T TREREH AR R FERB FIl LA
SHAI B 2 BIEEIE - A KM
EpL 2ET AR IR A RS 1,859,0007T
(2016%F : E)ERELCHBLEE - 18
PEIRITRUE - MBS G R20176
(AZEBEMEEFE)BITRFEA
FIER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERBEN - HUARBSIT)
23 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS 23 BX - HERRE
(@) Movements in components of equity of the Company (@) FTRRZERDOE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of AREBIGREER SN 2 EN R E
the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes RiER 2 ERE BRI AR A e 2

BRA - AEARRFONEFRY

in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below: IR A B E R 2 2 B E =S
&yl
Capital Statutory Retained
Share capital reserve reserve earnings Total equity
A BAREE ETE R REEM s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
Note 23(c)  Note23(d)()  Note 23(d)(i)
fEE23©) MR  FEEE23(d)i)
Balance at | January 2016 R20165F 1 A1 B &R 450,659 1,456,646 26,567 208,762 2,142,634
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 H 2% - - - 380,657 380,657
Dividends approved in respect of the HEBEFEERS
previous year — — — (67,623) (67,623)
Shares issued upon the over-allotment  {7{#RSEACALIE
options exercised BB TTRIRR D 164 1,820 - - 1,984
Appropriation to statutory reserve RS ETRE = = 38,065 (38,065) =
Balance at 31 December 2016 and 42016128318
I January 2017 R2017F1A1H
5 450,823 1458466 64632 483731 2,457,652
Issue of ordinary shares BITERK 1,200 18,144 - - 19,344
Total comprehensive income for the year  F A2 2% - - - 677,381 677,381
Dividends approved in respect of the HEBTFERE
previous year = = = (135,607) (135,607)
Dividends approved in respect of the BERFERE
current year - - - (180,809) (180,809)
Appropriation to statutory reserve RS ETFRE = = 67,738 (67,738) =
Balance at 31 December 2017 R2017512A31 A&# 452023 | 476610 132,370 776958 2837961
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

23  CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 23 EX - FERRE(GE)
(b) Dividends (b) KE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable () FRAEMELADEZRELR
to the year B
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKET T
Interim dividend declared and paid of RMB0.40 BEEREZ AR EERER
per ordinary share (2016: nil) AR AR¥0407T(20165F « ) 180,809 -
Final dividend proposed after the end of the R E AR B ER RS
reporting period of RMB0.30 (2016: RMB0.30) BRI EAR A R¥0.307T
per ordinary share (20165 : AR¥0307T) 135,607 135,607
316,416 135,607
Pursuant to the resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting on |3 BER2017F 107 138 RERE
October 2017, a cash dividend of RMB0.40 per ordinary share (2016: nil) for FIREMBAIRER  BE
the six months ended 30 June 2017 were declared and paid to shareholders. 201756 A30R I8 A 2 Tk
ERRETREARK040T

(20165 : #&)E RIS FRRER ©

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 23 March 2018, BERWISFIABEESTE
a cash dividend of RMB0.30 (2016: RMB0.30) per share for the year ended EETBBZIREE C HE2017
3| December 2017 were proposed for shareholders’ approval at the annual FNDABAILEFEFE 2GRS
general meeting. The final dividend proposed after the end of the year has not BB AR¥030L(2016%5F @ A
been recognised as liabilities as at 31 December 2017. R®0307T) ERNRHRAE RS

FIREBRFRME - RAFERZ
BRERIR 2R ERER A
201741283 1Bz A& -

(ii)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) REAHERZ A EERBE
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year EREMRAGEZRENRE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Final dividends in respect of the previous RE R K E AR R
financial year, approved and paid during the year, R R EARR B AR TR A R
of RMB0.30 (2016: RMBO.15) per ordinary share 0.3070(2016%F : AR#0.157T) 135,607 67,623
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B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

23  CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 23 EBEXR RFERRE#E)
(c) Share capital AR
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ERTRHZEER
2017 2016
20175 20165
Number of Number of

shares RMB’000 shares RMB'000
RIDBE ARBT T RIHER ARETFT
At | January R®IAIR 450,822,850 450,823 450,659,450 450,659

Shares issued to controlling IR SR BT AR (D
shareholder 1,200,000 1,200 - -

Shares issued upon the 1T{E B EERC PRI

over-allotment options exercised BT D - - 163,400 |64
As at 31 December ®12 A31H 452,022,850 452,023 450,822,850 450,823

On 6 February 2017, the extraordinary general meeting had resolved to issue
1,200,000 additional ordinary shares of RMBI.00 each to HEC Pharm Co., Ltd. (B &
REGHBEZERD AR AT, "HEC Pharm”) (the immediate controlling shareholder)
at a price of HK$18.05 per ordinary share. Proceeds of RMBI,200,000 representing
the par value of these ordinary shares, were credited to the Company's share capital
and the excess of the proceeds over the nominal value of the total number of
ordinary shares issued after offsetting share issuance costs of RMB18,144,000 were

credited to the capital reserve account of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Cont'd)

(@)

O)

®

Reserves
(i) Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group and the Company mainly represented premium

arising from capital injection from equity owners.

(iij)  Statutory reserve
According to the Company's Articles of Association, the Company is required
to transfer at least 10% of its net profit as determined in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC to its statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to equity owner. The statutory
reserve can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary, provided that the

balance after such issue is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to
equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under the provisions of Company

Law of the PRC, was RMB776,958,000 (2016: RMB483,731,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products commensurately

with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
maintain a balance between the higher shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of bank loans and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

O

®

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

BX - HERRE(E)
(d)

it
O EAGE

ARERAAA L AREHBE

BRIEEEOREHAAEE
B

(i) EERE

BEBEARAAMNARER AR
AARBHEMNDREIEED
109 9 75 R 88 A% T 22 4 1
% BEEREARED MR
NE)50% o B8 A BN AT
EREmEA AR E 2 Al

T o KEBE BIER - KR
it B 9T 18 45 SR ME 70 EL SE R AR AR
225% SRR AR R
SHEBSIEMEARZ ER -

EIRp 310

M2017F 12A318 » AIDRFEER A
P[RR 2 7] 48 2 IR 3R 95 I B9 17 5 4
BUR(RBEABRE)REFTHE) B

R #7769580007C (20164F : AR
483,731,0007T) °

EXER
FEBEBERNETERMERER
FELEMRE ) EMEE AR
BEBKFREREE - AR
SEKARGRHE - BERKRRREM
OI%R - W AR A RIEARREE R

AEERGBEEHFEREEREER
B AERESRARRORREE
KFEFH 2 - AR E AR
REBE R 2 2 GRS TE - It
ST E BB E MBHBEEAR
58
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B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

23  CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 23 EX- #RERRE(E)
(f) Capital management (Cont'd) ) EBXEEHE)
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net debt-to- AE B AL R ETFEE AN REE
capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which BEHEREE - Btk s - KAEF
includes interest bearing bank loans) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash BT R E ABER (BT ERTE
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity, less F)IMAREZZREBES LIRS
unaccrued proposed dividends. EEHIER - KPAEERBDEERNAN
BHEBEM -
During 2017, the Group's strategy was to maintain the capital in order to cover any R2I7FEE @ NREBZREABERR
debt position, which was unchanged from 201 6. UAFERHE(R] & B H) & AN 7KF B0 1 657
_ﬁ o
The Group'’s adjusted net debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as REER2017F K20165F12A31HZ
follows: KRAEFAEHERLERAT ¢
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M AR¥T T ARETFT
Bank loans-current SRITE R — BN 10,000 70,000
Bank loans-non-current SRITE R —JFRIH 10,000 20,000
Total debt HBIETS 20 20,000 90,000
Add: Proposed dividends i EERE 23(b) 135,607 135,607
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W ERENESEEER |18 (887,183) (1,212,072)
Adjusted net debt RARBETFE (731,576) (986,465)
Total equity B 3,060,586 2457807
Adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio RERFEEHRSLE N/A N/A
TEA NiE A
Neither the Company nor its subsidiary are subject to externally imposed capital ARB) REEANE R RABESZ RN

requirements.

SNEBREINE EARES o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of

the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management

policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Credit limit is established for
each distributor which represents the maximum open amount or credit term without
requiring approval from the Board of Directors. The Group chases the customers to
settle the due balances and monitors the settlement progress on an ongoing basis.
The Group usually granted credit term to distributors which was generally due within
30-90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily

arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.

24

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

MEEAREERANEE

AEENEEEBBRTEELER )

i ib

Ao MXRRE®RE - REBMESHZ

=3 )

b M AEE AN E R Z SRR E

b EIEBCR KB PIF AT

(@)

FERR
FEENEERREIZREEH LA
fFEURIA - BEIREEHIEBEENE
EBE TAREEREUEERR
WEE -
HEZREMEYFIANS @ AKE

SHAMBERR T —ELBEENE
FETEREEF b - 25 EEE
BERBEREERLHIA KRB ATAE
W EEBERNEFARER

o B

)
TABE

AP EIRIZ I E
HEMERECERBARBARE

FgitEnRe REESERERG
R ARBREN TP ABE B
B UREERAEERE - A5EE

DHAREZ EERR—RRBE
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R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(C)

(b)

BBEBREERAABEGE)

Credit risk (Cont'd) (@) EERBRE)
The Group has a concentration of credit risk of the total trade receivables due from AEENEERBESR @ BUARS
the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors as follows: B ABEBARTIAXEHEANE S
FEYFIRARERIAT
2017 2016
20175 20164F
Due from JEH
— largest trade debtor —RAEBA 5% 13%
— five largest trade debtors —hAAREBA 19% 42%
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk AREBAARE R 5 N H M EURIR
arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note |6. MEELNEERBRIE—FESHE
HRHTRE 6 °
The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each e saiEERRKERAEE
financial asset in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group does not provide any BERAZSRSREE ZREE
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. A& B BB EAEAEEARE
ERREER -
Liquidity risk (b) RBESEE

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may encounter deficiency of funds in
meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company and its individual
subsidiaries are responsible for their own cash management, including short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the Company’s board when the bank loans exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd) 24 BIBEBEERAAEEGE)
(b) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (b) REBESEAMRE)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of each TREIWAERZ SR BE(TBIEE
report periods of the Group'’s financial liabilities (excluding advances from customers W B 2k N S R O B4 ) N &l & B
and provision for sales return), which are based on contractual undiscounted cash KRBT ZEHNRNEB - HERELAR
flows (including interest payments computed at contracted rates) and the earliest WRBLR(BRERENFRTEZF
date the Group can be required to repay: BRRRRAEEHRERERE L HF
HEA

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRRFTRASRH
More than

Within | year but 2017
| year or less than Carrying
on demand 5 years Total amount
1£R B 1F 20175
FRER B5FR #st ARE{E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR® T AR¥T T AR¥T T

Bank loans HBITER 10,942 10,419 21,361 20,000
Trade and other payables B 5 [k HL M FE AT RIE 549,542 = 549,542 549,542
Total RET 560,484 10,419 570,903 569,542

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRRTRESR
More than

Within | year but 2016
| year or less than Carrying
on demand 5 years Total amount
IR il | F 20165
HIRER B5F R 5T ARE(E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARKETT ARKETT ARKET T

Bank loans RITER 74316 21,361 95,677 90,000
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M EFUE 182,377 - 182,377 182,377
Total FEE 256,693 21,361 278,054 272377
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B RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 24 HIHREREERAAEBEGE)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) RIEER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. Bank loans that are REBEZMERRFEZER 5 RITE
at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk  FBEREEREKRITEREARE
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group's interest rate profiles as BESRmEReREN KRR RA R
monitored by management is set out in (i) below. BERERR - TX(0) PE#HINEHE
BEERZAEBREANRR -
(i)  Interest rate profile (i) FIFEMRER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's bank loans TRAMPREHRANEE R
at the end of the reporting period: TERZFIEMRR
2017 2016
20175 20165
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
RS =8 E{GYES -t
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Fixed rate instrument: BEEFZRIA : 74,316 21,361 95,677 90,000
Bank loans IRITER = _
Floating rate instrument: FEIR:
Bank loans RITERK 5.23% 20,000 501% 90,000
Net fixed rate instruments as B EF = T B FEEG N/A N/A
a percentage of total instruments TEHBENAED TERA NE R
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BEBESH
At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 25 R2I17F12A318 - £#FBE
basis points in bank loans interest rates, with all other variables held constant, b ERFETENERT © &
would have decrease/increase the Group's profit after tax and retained profits SHRTTERFEEE EFH T
by approximately RMB43,000 (2016: RMBI91,000). Other components of PR EER  BERAEE
equity would not be affected by the changes in interest rates. B BR A5 12 0 A K AR BB g A 99 Bl

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the Group's profit for the

year and retained profits that would arise assuming that there is an annualised

impact on interest expense by a change in interest rates. The analysis has been

performed on the same basis as 201 6.
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24  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through shares issued upon
initial public offering which give rise to cash balances and time deposits that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this

risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars.

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in

RMB, translated using the spot rate at the year end date.

24

MERREERAAEBEE)
d) EH¥ER

AREEEEREHRAFETRETR
MELMNRSERRAINE (BIER 5
BRNEBHS KNI EE®)HE
WERERMAREERAR - 518Ut

FHRBHEE TR RET

() EBEKEE

TRFFAMAE BRI EHARPT
ERELERBAGHERY
BEEBEUIINNERTENE

=]

=1
FEENERRR -

=
250

5 ERREEUAAREIIR

BREEAREERBRE -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

0 B /0 5 L B (A A R 31 R)

2017 2016
20175 20164

United States

Hong Kong United States Hong Kong

Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars

EYH BT ETT BT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT ARBT T ARETT ARETTT

Trade and other receivables B 5 N EMEFRIE 100 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEEE 679 226,731 2,319 463,878

Trade and other payables B 5 Ik E M ESTRIE (2,615) - - -
Net exposure arising from recognised FEREE N B ER)

assets and liabilities [2\Be 7 EE (1,836) 226,731 2,319 463,878
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B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 24 HBEREERAAGEGE
(d) Currency risk (Cont'd) d) E¥RREE)
(ij)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEDI

At 3| December 2017, it is estimated that a general appreciation/depreciation
of 5% in RMB, with all other variables held constant, would have increased/

decreased the Group's net profit for the year and retained profits as below.

20179124318 - IEFTAE
it FESRGETEHOBERT &
FFARMERETEBE%
1 28 BN 52 (B B £F (0% AR
REBEF DRI, HAT

2017 2016
20174 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

United States Dollars =TT (78) 99
Hong Kong Dollars BT 9,636 19,715

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rate had
been applied to re-measure the bank deposits which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of the financial statement of

foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency.

L SRRE D TR R E R
ERREFAERREPRS
AREREH FRSMNE AR IR1T 7
K ZAM T BEGEINER
MHBERBERAEEZ2IE
WEENZERE -

25 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 25 EAEIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2017 not provided for in the consolidated 2017 12831 B - EERE M B mE P RE
financial statements were as follows: HORBITEREAELT

2017 2016

20175 2016%5F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARKET T

Contracted for REIFS)

— Acquisition of fixed assets —-RBEERTEE 350,503 24,835

— Acquisition of intangible assets (Note |4) —BEELEE(M14) 300,000 300,000

650,503 324,835
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26

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2017 and 2016, the directors are of the view that related parties of the Group

include the following:

Name of related parties

B S &8

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

26 EABBAIRS
R0I7ER2016F - EERBAEE B BEH
FEBATER :

Relationship with the Group

EREENEER

HEC Pharm Co., Ltd. (E & R[5 R MK AR A F)

HERBGHEZRHERAA

Sunshine Lake Pharma

FER R 5  BEE

Shaoguan HEC Packaging and Printing Co, Ltd. ((AREERIS Yt BEEIFIB R A 7))
(“Shaoguan HEC Printing”")

ARG K BEERIGR DR ([ AR ER )

Yichang HEC Power Plant Co,, Ltd. (EERE X X HEBHR A )
(“HEC Power Plant”)

HERBGHANBEERAF(TEERGHEE)

Yidu Shangchengshuidu Project Construction Co., Ltd.
(EEBILR KRR SE TF2 AR A F)) (“Yidu Construction”)

the immediate controlling shareholder

BRI R

effectively owned by the controlling shareholder
HERERERRES

associate of the intermediate controlling shareholder

rh R R AR AR Y

Hii P2YAN Ej

CEN=NAN

effectively owned by the controlling shareholder

MR ESER

effectively owned by the ultimate shareholder

HHEILHOKEZE TR AR A AT EA L) HASRRRRERES

Yidu Changjiang Machine and Equipment Co., Ltd. (B # R I XA R A 7)) effectively owned by the ultimate shareholder
HHRIEWRE AR AR HRRRRESES

& The English translation of the above companies’ names is for reference only. The official names of & L ARz EXGERERSE - ZERAEZ

these companies are in Chinese.

EXREATX

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3% 167



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 26 BARBBERZ(E)
(a) Transactions with related parties () BEEBEZRS
During 2017 and 2016, the Group entered into the following material related party R2017F K20165F - KEBEFTIA
transactions: TEREEHITRS :
Recurring transactions BEMEXE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETFT
Purchase of goods from: BATEFBEER :
HEC Pharm Co., Ltd. HERGHEERNHBERRA] 9,417 10,375
Shaoguan HEC Printing HRRA R 5 E 11,514 8407
HEC Power Plant HERGAEE 4,976 4,632
25,907 23414
Accept service amount of liquid waste processing from: B WA Z 5 RIES/KIRGE :
HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd. HERGREEBRNBR AT 2,137 256
Non-recurring transactions FEEMRL S
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETFT
(i) Sales of goods to: () MATEAHEEER :
Sunshine Lake Pharma EREG e 2,594 242
(i) Purchase of fixed assets from: (iy MATELREREEE :
Yidu Changjiang Machine and Equipment Co,, Ltd. HERTHMREER DA 586 -
(iiiy Other services received from: (i) BEZUATEFREREAMART
Yidu Construction HER R 83,949 2,093
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 26 BABEBEXS(E
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EREEEET RVAERR
(i) Amounts due from related parties () EREETE
2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Prepayment and trade receivable from: KB A& AR R &
2 ZEMGIA -
Sunshine Lake Pharma ERRIG B 400,000 400,000
(i)  Amounts due to related parties (i) BB E
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT
Trade payables to: JERAT & HFHE SRIEA -
Shaoguan HEC Printing FRREER 5 St EN 4,499 2,392
Other payables to: FER AT &5 M EAth 5108 -
Yidu Construction E bR 16,050 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 26 EBARBEBAHIRZ(E)
(c) Key management personnel compensation (c) EEEEASHIRM
Key management personnel compensation comprised: FEFEABMNRMELE
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETFT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 2,243 1936
Contribution to defined retirement benefit schemes TE RN EFFT SI4E 5k 124 16
2,367 2,052
(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions d) HEEXZEBENLWHAANERME

The recurring transactions with related parties in respect of Note 26(a) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter |4A of the Listing
Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules are provided in

section headed "Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 27 AT EEZHHEMR R T
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EE&E
— Property, plant and equipment — W R MR 590,333 413,851
— Interests in leasehold land held for own use —RIERLHEREBA
under operating leases 2 TihiER 79,835 81,767
670,168 495,618
Intangible assets B EE 57,157 -
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 %E 487,834 2,032
Prepayments AN RIA 558,811 422,544
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 28,220 11,392
1,802,190 931,586
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 87,967 [ 10,624
Trade and other receivables B 5) I EL A FEWRTE 742,121 336,650
Time deposits TEEATF K 346,519 238,988
Pledged deposits EEAER - 2,635
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 870,158 1,210,177
2,046,765 1,899,074
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMERFRIAR 845,229 182,083
Bank loans RITER 10,000 70,000
Deferred income RN S 4,379 4,379
Current taxation BHATR 18 76,744 27,525
936,352 283987
Net current assets REEEFRE 1,110,413 1,615,087
Total assets less current liabilities REERADEE 2,912,603 2,546,673
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B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

27 AREEZBERRERGE)

2017 2016
20176 20165
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iEz3 AR¥T R ARKETT
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank loans SRITER 10,000 20,000
Deferred income FEIEW 2= 64,642 69,021
e .. 89021
Net assets BEE 2,837,961 2,457,652
Capital and reserves BEXRKHE
Share capital R&Zx 23(c) 452,023 450,823
Reserves Gl 23(d) 2,385,938 2,006,829
Total equity e 2,837,961 2,457,652
28 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 28 WEHBEIFEAREIE

RBERR 2% AAREZSEIERSR
DIk o B ZFIEHRBRMTE230)

After the end of the reporting period, the board of directors of the Company approved a

distribution of dividends. Further details are disclosed in Note 23(b).

29 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES 29 EERSKEZERKRR

R2017F12A31 R - EEZRA/REE 2 B
BARIREGRE - MAKE 2 REERS B
PR B A S B FLIRE bR AR B AEE T
BXEERAR - ZEBIWEEEIERARA
RV ATEIRER

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate parent of the Group to
be HEC Pharm, while the ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Ruyuan Yao
Autonomous County Yuneng Electric Industrial Co., Ltd., which is incorporated in the PRC.

This entity does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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30

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a number
of amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2017 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These

30

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

REZE2017F 12831 BEILEECEMEE X
EMMIERT  FEARREBNBETE

HEANBHRETIEER - RS EZE
B BMEZEREZR2017F 128318 IL4F
& AR ER B W R AR HRET NN S

include the following which may be relevant to the Group. FIRFTAER o B AL EAEESBENEIE
THIRIA -
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUT RSz %
RSB AN
IFRS 9, Financial instruments | January 2018
BRI EAERIF 9% - 2/ TA 20185 1 A1 H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers | January 2018
BRI R ELRIE |5 5 - KEELEHZHA 20181 A1 H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these ANEFIR G EEE] - FEA LR ERE
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial HNRVERSEEEZE - HEE2 B A

application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for IFRS 9 and IFRS |5, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group's interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2018. The Group may also change its accounting policy elections, including the transition

options, until the standards are initially applied in that financial report.

AEEME R KA YR AT HRRELS
AEENFEANETHE - BHTEME
— D BEN T o EEH BRI iR %
BI 5955 K% B X B 765 3 2 42 B 55 | 55 /0 T A
EAERBGER - B0 B AR SERCHI TS Th BA
REEE A SNERRER - YL EAZX
FRANBETEAEGEMTR - mEA
EEEZE20185F6A30R 1L/~ A # = BT

BREPERERZEERIR - AJsegHnl
AE—TNEE - AR BRET ERERZ
SRR - AEBE TR E SR BORE

B(RIEEETR)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB I -
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HAAREFITR)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Cont'd)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial instruments, IAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, including the measurement of impairment
for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, IFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of IAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments and the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018 on a retrospective
basis. The Group plans to use the exemption from restating comparative information and
will recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance of equity at | January

2018.

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's financial statements are as

follows:

(a) Classification and measurement
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured
at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value

through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

. The classification for debt instruments is determined based on the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then
interest revenue, impairment and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Cont'd)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(a) Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

° For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless of the entity’s
business model. The only exception is if the equity security is not held for
trading and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income on
that security will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and impairments
on that security will be recognised in other comprehensive income without

recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost
will continue with their respective classification and measurements upon the adoption

of IFRS 9.

As the Group currently does not have any financial assets classified as “available — for-
sales” and therefore this change policy for available-for-sales investments will have no

impact on the Group.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities under IFRS 9
are largely unchanged from IAS 39, except that IFRS 9 requires the fair value change
of a financial liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of that
financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group currently does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement will not have any

impact on the Group on adoption of IFRS 9.

30

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

REZE2017F 12831 BILEECEMEE X
EMHEET - FEARREBNEESE(E)

BT EEREIR EMTA(E)
BHERTEE)

ZF

. BREEFME  THERK
EBEABESBR/EAFE
STARRE o ME—PIIME R B i
BREFLIFHIEEER  ME
BRI MR TR WE
FRIBATFEFT AL MEEIK

o fif #2578 F WG T RIRY

FEFAEMEE R - A

ERERE P REREF IS

A o ZEBEHF MW - BB IR

B EERT R E 2

WEsHR HERR
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k-
0

E\r

D»

RERABEIR A IR E AL IIREK - A
SE D FHEE B AR EER AT E R
EREEREEFEEREIENE -

AR BIR R X B DA AT
HE WSREE - BitbBEAHEE
RENBREDE I EHAEEGE
BEZ

BIBR A R XERIE R E T R &
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B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 30
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Cont'd)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(b) Impairment
The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39
with an “expected credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no
longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure either a 12 — month expected
credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that the application of the expected credit loss
model will result in earlier recognition of credit losses. As at 3| December 2017, the
Group’s financial instruments have not expected credit loss and therefore this new

requirement will not have any impact on the Group or adoption of IFRS 9.

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS |5 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue from contracts
with customers. IFRS |5 will replace the existing revenue standards, IAS |8, Revenue, which
covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and IAS | |, Construction

contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction contracts.
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30

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Contd)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has identified the following areas

which are expected to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition
The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed in Note |(r). Currently,
revenue arising from the sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and

rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under IFRS |5, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains control of the
promised good in the contract. IFRS |5 identifies 3 situations in which control of the

promised good is regarded as being transferred over time:

() When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example
work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced;

(i) When the entity's performance does not create an asset with an afternative
use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

30

PR RAR A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEEBIH - HUARETITR)

REZE2017F 12831 BILEECEMEE X
EMHEET - FEARREBNEESE(E)

B EREERE IS HEFNENE

£ ()
BIEES TR E - AEEERAAESE
FERNT @ :
(a) WAREZIGE
A5 [ A WA RE SR BUR 3 R R

|®°EW’%%E%§EWWA@%
FEPRA R B B O R = R PR R

R e

REBEBRMEHRELRF IS5 EF
PEUS A #I70 AT AT 56 B0 7 n O 22 Il 4
RRRER U - BIFR AR 3RS 2E RIS 15
5% 2 BRI P RT AR Y P R VIR IR R
ERRREEERN=RER

() EBBEEAR ZEFRARRE

MHBERERBREAOMMEH-NF

iy EBOBHTABIEIMRT
BEEAEWAIENR B
RHIWEE(NERTIE)

(i EBRHOBOTAILAREE—IE

RIEATTHER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &3 177



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R Y aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=HEHEBIH - HUARETIR)

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 30
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Contd)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(a)  Timing of revenue recognition (Contd)
If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any of these 3 situations,
then under IFRS |5 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service
at a single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be considered in determining

when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not likely to have significant

impact on how it recognises revenue from sales contracts.

(b) Significant financing component
IFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant financing component, regardless of whether the

payments from customers are received significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a policy when payments are significantly
deferred, which is currently not common in the Group's arrangements with its
customers. Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when payments are

received in advance.

Advance payments are not common in the Group's arrangements with its customers
and therefore this new requirement will not have significant impact on the Group on

adoption of IFRSI5.
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“AGM”
[ERBEAE ]

“Annual Report”
[ 4]

“Articles of Association”

[RAERR]

“Board of Directors” or “Board"

[E5g]

“Board of Supervisors”

(%)

“China” or "PRC"

[

""Controlling Shareholder(s)"
[T RRARER |

"o "o

“"Company,” “the Company,” “we" or “us”
(AR I3k A

“Director(s)"”
[E%]

“Domestic Share(s)”

[AER]

"“Global Offering”

[2IREE]

“Group”
[R&E ]

DEFINITIONS
B=

the forthcoming annual general meeting for the year 2017 of the Company

RRABROI7FEERERAFAS

the annual report of the Company for the year 2017
RAR0I7FFR

articles of association of the Company

Z/NG e

board of directors of the Company

ARREEE

board of supervisors of the Company

ZA/NG

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this Annual Report and for geographical reference
only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan, Macau and Hong Kong

REARKNE - ERAFRL0E EME - BRAEEHAN  FTREQE BFIRES

has the meaning given to it under the Listing Rules

BB LRI T HORE

YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. (B &R G X RIT BB (D AR A F]), a company
established in the PRC on || May 2015 as a joint stock company
HERGAFRTEERNERAR - —FKN20I5F58 || HEFBIRKZAM D A F)

director(s) of the Company
KRBES

issued ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which is
(are) subscribed for or credited as fully paid in RMB
ARARARFREBEARE I 0THEETEER - HAARERB LR

the offer of the Company's H Shares for subscription as described in the prospectus of the Company

MR RIFBIREIZ B A R BIHAR S AR

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZA/NGINET )= NG
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DEFINITIONS
B=

“HKSCC”
[HEEHE ]

“HK$" or “HKD"”
[l

“Hong Kong"
(&%

“H Shares”
[HA%

“|FRSs"

[ B s s 22 Al

“Latest Practicable Date”
[RRERAITTHA
“Listing Date”

[ Em B

“Listing Rules”

[ EmR Al

“Model Code”
S

““Parent Company”

(827

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
ERRREEERAA

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for the time being of Hong Kong

BT BERREAEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EERITTH R

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which is (are)
listed on the Stock Exchange and is (are) subscribed for and traded in HKD
ARRRIRAHEREEARE 00T E @R - RERRM ML AETREREE

the International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards and interpretations promulgated by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
interpretation issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Committee (IASC)

BRI EER  SERER e AR EeRMNER R R BEE S ERIZ S RN

B ER LR E

|7 April 2018, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining certain information

contained in this Annual Report prior to its publication

201854 H 170 - MAFHRTEA AREEEFAEE TERNKKRERATEH

29 December 2015, on which the H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and from which dealings in
the H Shares were permitted to commence on the Stock Exchange

2015 12298 + HIRRBERFT LA A ER - S B It B8R - HIREERE R IR E &

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as amended
from time to time

ERMERZMARAFES ETRR - L TRHERT

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules
TR B SR AT TR EIT ABREITE SR SHERESTR

HEC Pharm Co,, Ltd* (EERIG X BB AR A A]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 12
January 2004 and the immediate controlling shareholder of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date
HERGREZRHER AR - —KR2004F | A 2BEFRBEFEMKZARAE] - REREERAT
BE - RALDRIEEZERERR
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“PBOC”
(B ARRT]

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
[ARE]

“Reporting Period”
[HREH ]

“SFO”

(&7 RS {5 ]

“SFC”

[FEEE]

kaj

““Shareholder(s)"
[ &3

“Shares”

[ A&7

“Shenzhen HEC Industrial”

[FYITRG LTS

““Stock Exchange” or

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
[ B 52 Pfr o[ BB ZZ

“Supervisor(s)”

B

nog
[%]

DEFINITIONS
B=

AR A FRER 1T (People’s Bank of China)
B A RIRTT

the lawful currency of the PRC
HEDATE B

the year ended 3| December 2017
EZE2017F 12831 BIEFE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented

or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDIES7 | BESRIEGD] - B TRHERT - BREIAR M AEHK

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BRRLFLHEEREREES

holder(s) of our Shares, including holders of H shares and holders of domestic shares of the Company

RRRROIFAAN » BREARFHEREARRNERFEE A

shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMBI.00 each

A FIRRAN R A E (A A K | 007 RO B

Shenzhen HEC Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (FIITTRZ K E X ZERBRAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 27 January 1997) and a Controlling Shareholder
RITRSHEEBERARART - —FKRI1997F1 827 BEFEFMKZN AT - A —BERAR
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BRBERHMER AT

the supervisor(s) of the Company

ZANG =

per cent.

ADt
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REER

REGISTERED NAME
YiChang HEC Changliang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. JIANG Juncai

Mr. WANG Danjin

Mr. CHEN Yangui

Mr. ZHU Qiaochong

Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Xinfa (Chairman)
Mr. MO Kit

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Jianxin

Mr. FU Hailiang

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE
Mr. FU Hailiang (Chairman)

Mr. JJIANG Juncai

Mr. TANG Jianxin

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. TANG Jianxin (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. TANG Xinfa

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LEE Chi Ming (Chairman)

Mr. ZHU Qiaohong

Mr. FU Hailiang
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. HUANG Fangfang
Mr. WANG Shengchao
Mr. LUO Zhonghua

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. PAN Sanxiong
Ms. NG Wing Shan (FCS, FCIS)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. TANG Xinfa

West Fourth Floor, Building 106

Huafa North Road, Futian District, Shenzhen

Guangdong Province, the PRC

Ms. NG Wing Shan
I8/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
No. 38 Binjiang Road
Yidu, Yichang, Hubei Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 38 Binjiang Road
Yidu, Yichang, Hubei Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

|8/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

China Construction Bank Co,, Ltd.
Qingjiang Branch

56 Changjiang Avenue

Yidu, Hubei Province, PRC
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REER

INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

DOMESTIC AUDITORS
KPMG Huazhen LLP Guangzhou branch

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISORS
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

55th Floor, One Island East

Taikoo Place, Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

PRC LEGAL ADVISORS
Jia Yuan Law Offices

F408 Ocean Plaza

158 Fuxingmennei Avenue
Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1 712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
01558

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.hec-changjiang.com

LISTING PLACE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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